
�

�������������������������������� �� �

v1�2015�

AGENDA���
�

Meeting� London�Assembly�(Plenary)�

Date� Wednesday�4�November�2015�

Time� 10.00�am�

Place� Chamber,�City�Hall,�The�Queen's�
Walk,�London,�SE1�2AA�

Copies�of�the�reports�and�any�attachments�may�be�found�at��
www.london.gov.uk/mayor-assembly/london-assembly/whole-assembly�
�
Most�meetings�of�the�London�Assembly�and�its�Committees�are�webcast�live�at�
www.london.gov.uk/mayor-assembly/london-assembly/webcasts�where�you�can�also�view�past�
meetings.�
�

A�meeting�of�the�Assembly�will�be�held�to�deal�with�the�business�listed�below.�
�
Jennette�Arnold�OBE�AM�
Chair�of�the�London�Assembly�

Tony�Arbour�AM�
Deputy�Chairman�

� Tuesday�27�October�2015�
�
�
Further�Information�
If�you�have�questions,�would�like�further�information�about�the�meeting�or�require�special�facilities�
please�contact:�John�Barry,�Principal�Committee�Manager;�Telephone:�020�7983�4425;��
Email:�john.barry@london.gov.uk;�Minicom:�020�7983�4458.�
�
For�media�enquiries�please�contact:�Alison�Bell;�Telephone:�020�7983�5769;��
Email:�alison.bell@london.gov.uk;�Minicom:�020�7983�4458.��If�you�have�any�questions�about�individual�items�
please�contact�the�author�whose�details�are�at�the�end�of�the�report.��
�
This�meeting�will�be�open�to�the�public,�except�for�where�exempt�information�is�being�discussed�as�
noted�on�the�agenda.��A�guide�for�the�press�and�public�on�attending�and�reporting�meetings�of�local�
government�bodies,�including�the�use�of�film,�photography,�social�media�and�other�means�is�available�
at�www.london.gov.uk/sites/default/files/Openness-in-Meetings.pdf.��
�
There�is�access�for�disabled�people,�and�induction�loops�are�available.��There�is�limited�underground�
parking�for�orange�and�blue�badge�holders,�which�will�be�allocated�on�a�first-come�first-served�basis.��
Please�contact�Facilities�Management�on�020�7983�4750�in�advance�if�you�require�a�parking�space�or�
further�information.�
�

Proper�Officer:�Mark�Roberts,�Executive�Director�of�Secretariat.�
�



�

�
Certificate�Number:�FS�80233�

If�you,�or�someone�you�know,�needs�a�copy�of�the�agenda,�minutes�or�reports�
in�large�print�or�Braille,�audio,�or�in�another�language,�then�please�call�us�on�
020�7983�4100�or�email�assembly.translations@london.gov.uk.���
�

�
�



�

3�
�

Agenda�
London�Assembly�(Plenary)��
Wednesday�4�November�2015�
�

1 Apologies�for�Absence�and�Chair's�Announcements��
�
� To�receive�any�apologies�for�absence�and�any�announcements�from�the�Chair.��

�
�

2 Declarations�of�Interests�(Pages�1�-�4)�
�
� The�Assembly�is�recommended�to:�

�
(a)� Note�the�list�of�offices�held�by�Assembly�Members,�as�set�out�in�the�table�at�

Agenda�Item�2,�as�disclosable�pecuniary�interests;��
�
(b)�� Note�the�declaration�by�any�Member(s)�of�any�disclosable�pecuniary�interests�

in�specific�items�listed�on�the�agenda�and�the�necessary�action�taken�by�the�
Member(s)�regarding�withdrawal�following�such�declaration(s);�and��

�
(c)�� Note�the�declaration�by�any�Member(s)�of�any�other�interests�deemed�to�be�

relevant�(including�any�interests�arising�from�gifts�and�hospitality�received�
which�are�not�at�the�time�of�the�meeting�reflected�on�the�Authority’s�register�
of�gifts�and�hospitality,�and�noting�also�the�advice�from�the�GLA’s�
Monitoring�Officer�set�out�at�Agenda�Item�2)�and�to�note�any�necessary�
action�taken�by�the�Member(s)�following�such�declaration(s).�

�
�

3 Question�and�Answer�Session�-�London�&�Partners�(Pages�5�-�8)�
�
� Part�A:�

�

The�Assembly�will�put�questions�to�Sir�Edward�Lister,�Board�Chairman,�London�&�Partners,�and�

Gordon�Innes,�Chief�Executive,�London�&�Partners,�on�the�work�of�London�&�Partners.�

�

Part�B:�

�

Motion�submitted�in�the�name�of�the�Chair:�

�

“That�the�Assembly�notes�the�answers�to�the�questions�asked.”��
�
�

� �
�
�



�

4�
�

4 Action�Taken�by�the�Chair�Under�Delegated�Authority�and�Outcome�of�
Confirmation�Hearings�(Pages�9�-�26)�

�
� Report�of:�Executive�Director�of�Secretariat���

Contact:�Rebecca�Arnold,�rebecca.arnold@london.gov.uk;�telephone�020�7983�4421.�

�

The�Assembly�is�recommended�to:��

�

(a) Note�the�action�taken�by�the�Chair�of�the�Assembly,�Jennette�Arnold�OBE�AM,�

in�accordance�with�the�authority�delegated�to�her,�namely�to�agree�to�hold�

Confirmation�Hearings�in�relation�to�the�proposed�appointment�of:�(i)�Sir�

Merrick�Cockell�to�the�office�of�Chairman�of�the�London�Pensions�Fund�

Authority;�and�(ii)�David�Edmonds�CBE�to�the�office�of�Chairman�of�the�London�

Legacy�Development�Corporation,�and�to�ask�both�candidates�to�provide�a�CV�

and�supporting�statement.�

�

(b) Note�the�decisions�of�the�Confirmation�Hearings�Committee,�further�to�its�

meetings�held�on�20�May�2015�and�13�October�2015�and�as�set�out�at�

Appendices�2�and�5,�to�recommend�that�the�Mayor�should�proceed�with�his�

proposed�appointments�to�those�offices.��

�

(c) Note�the�responses�from�the�Mayor�attached�at�Appendices�3�and�6�which�

mark�the�end�of�the�Confirmation�Hearings�process�in�respect�of�the�

appointments.�

�

(d) Note�the�letter�attached�at�Appendix�4�from�the�Chair�of�the�Confirmation�

Hearings�Committee�meeting�held�on�20�May�2015,�Valerie�Shawcross�CBE�AM,�

to�Sir�Merrick�Cockell,�setting�out�issues�raised�during�the�confirmation�

hearing�discussion,�which�has�been�copied�to�the�Chair�of�the�GLA�Oversight�

Committee�for�follow-up�action�as�deemed�necessary.�
�
�

5 Mayoral�Commitments�(Pages�27�-�64)�
�
� Report�of:�Executive�Director�of�Secretariat���

Contact:�Rebecca�Arnold,�rebecca.arnold@london.gov.uk,�telephone:�020�7983�4421�

�

The�Assembly�is�recommended�to�note�commitments�made�by�the�Mayor,�Boris�

Johnson�MP,�during�London�Assembly�Mayor’s�Question�Time�meetings�held�

between�October�2014�and�October�2015.�
�

� The�appendix�has�been�attached�for�Members�only�and�can�be�downloaded�from:�

http://www.london.gov.uk/mayor-assembly/london-assembly/whole-assembly�
�
�
�



�

5�
�

6 Future�Plenary�Meetings��
�
� London�Assembly�(Plenary)�Meetings�–�2�December�2015�and�10�February�2016�

�

It�is�proposed�that�the�Assembly�uses�2�December�2015�Plenary�meeting�principally�to�hold�a�

Functional�Body�Question�Time�with�the�Commissioner�for�Fire�and�Emergency�Planning�and�

the�Chairman�of�the�London�Fire�and�Emergency�Planning�Authority,�and�the�10�February�

2016�Plenary�meeting�principally�to�hold�a�Functional�Body�Question�Time�with�the�Chairman�

of�Transport�for�London�and�Commissioner,�Transport�for�London.�

�

Recommendations:�

�

(a) That�the�Assembly,�under�section�61�of�the�Greater�London�Authority�Act�

1999,�requires�the�attendance�of�Ron�Dobson�CBE�QFSM�(Commissioner�for�

Fire�and�Emergency�Planning),�and�Gareth�Bacon�AM�(Chairman,�London�Fire�

and�Emergency�Planning�Authority)�at�the�2�December�2015�London�Assembly�

(Plenary)�meeting,�for�which�notice�will�be�given�in�accordance�with�section�62�

of�the�Greater�London�Authority�Act�1999�in�due�course,�to�answer�questions�

in�relation�to�the�policies�and�work�of�the�London�Fire�and�Emergency�Planning�

Authority.�

�

(b) That�the�Assembly,�under�section�61�of�the�Greater�London�Authority�Act�

1999,�requires�the�attendance�of�the�Mayor,�Boris�Johnson�(in�his�capacity�as�

Chairman�of�Transport�for�London)�and�Mike�Brown�(Commissioner,�Transport�

for�London)�at�the�10�February�2016�London�Assembly�(Plenary)�meeting,�for�

which�notice�will�be�given�in�accordance�with�section�62�of�the�Greater�London�

Authority�Act�1999�in�due�course,�to�answer�questions�in�relation�to�the�

policies�and�work�of�Transport�for�London.�
�
�

7 Petitions�(Pages�65�-�68)�
�
� Report�of:�Executive�Director�of�Secretariat���

Contact:�John�Barry,�john.barry@london.gov.uk,�tel:�020�7983�4425�

�

The�Assembly�is�recommended�to�note�the�petitions�listed�in�the�report�and�to�

decide�whether�to�refer�the�petitions,�and�if�so�where�to,�and�to�seek�a�response�to�

the�points�raised.�
�
�

8 Motions�(Pages�69�-�76)�
�
� Report�of:�Executive�Director�of�Secretariat���

Contact:�John�Barry,�john.barry@london.gov.uk,�tel:�020�7983�4425�

�

The�Assembly�is�asked�to�consider�the�motions�submitted�by�Assembly�Members.�
�
�



�

6�
�

9 Statutory�Officers'�Protocol�(Pages�77�-�88)�
�
� Report�of�the�Head�of�Paid�Service�

Contact:�Juliette�Carter;�juliette.carter@london.gov.uk;�020�7983�4194�

�

The�Assembly�is�recommended�to�approve�and�adopt�(noting�that�it�is�a�joint�

decision�with�the�Mayor)�the�revisions�to�the�Statutory�Officers�Staffing�Protocol,�

attached�at�Appendix�A�to�the�report.�
�
�

10 Date�of�Next�Meeting��
�
� The�next�scheduled�meeting�of�the�London�Assembly�will�be�the�Mayor’s�Question�Time�

meeting�which�will�take�place�at�10.00am�on�Wednesday�18�November�2015�in�the�Chamber,�

City�Hall.��
�
�

11 Any�Other�Business�the�Chair�Considers�Urgent��
�
�
�

�



 

                                                                      

City�Hall,�The�Queen’s�Walk,�London�SE1�2AA�
Enquiries:
020
7983
4100
minicom:
020
7983
4458
www.london.gov.uk
 
 v7/2015�

 

Subject:�Declarations
of
Interests�


Report
to:
 London
Assembly




Report
of:

Executive
Director
of
Secretariat 



Date:
4
November
2015�



This
report
will
be
considered
in
public

 





1.
 Summary



�
1.1 This�report�sets�out�details�of�offices�held�by�Assembly�Members�for�noting�as�disclosable�pecuniary�

interests�and�requires�additional�relevant�declarations�relating�to�disclosable�pecuniary�interests,�and�

gifts�and�hospitality�to�be�made.�




2.
 Recommendations
�


2.1 That
the
list
of
offices
held
by
Assembly
Members,
as
set
out
in
the
table
below,
be
noted


as
disclosable
pecuniary
interests1;


2.2 That
the
declaration
by
any
Member(s)
of
any
disclosable
pecuniary
interests
in
specific

items
listed
on
the
agenda
and
the
necessary
action
taken
by
the
Member(s)
regarding


withdrawal
following
such
declaration(s)
be
noted;
and


2.3 That
the
declaration
by
any
Member(s)
of
any
other
interests
deemed
to
be
relevant

(including
any
interests
arising
from
gifts
and
hospitality
received
which
are
not
at
the


time
of
the
meeting
reflected
on
the
Authority’s
register
of
gifts
and
hospitality,
and


noting
also
the
advice
from
the
GLA’s
Monitoring
Officer
set
out
at
below)
and
any

necessary
action
taken
by
the
Member(s)
following
such
declaration(s)
be
noted.




3.
 Issues
for
Consideration�

�
3.1 Relevant�offices�held�by�Assembly�Members�are�listed�in�the�table�overleaf:�

                                                 
1�The�Monitoring�Officer�advises�that: Paragraph�10�of�the�Code�of�Conduct�will�only�preclude�a�Member�from�
participating�in�any�matter�to�be�considered�or�being�considered�at,�for�example,�a�meeting�of�the�Assembly,�
where�the�Member�has�a�direct�Disclosable�Pecuniary�Interest�in�that�particular�matter.�The�effect�of�this�is�
that�the�‘matter�to�be�considered,�or�being�considered’�must�be�about�the�Member’s�interest.�So,�by�way�of�
example,�if�an�Assembly�Member�is�also�a�councillor�of�London�Borough�X,�that�Assembly�Member�will�be�
precluded�from�participating�in�an�Assembly�meeting�where�the�Assembly�is�to�consider�a�matter�about�the�
Member’s�role�/�employment�as�a�councillor�of�London�Borough�X;�the�Member�will�not�be�precluded�from�
participating�in�a�meeting�where�the�Assembly�is�to�consider�a�matter�about�an�activity�or�decision�of�London�
Borough�X. 

�

Agenda Item 2

Page 1



        

�
 

Member
 Interest

Tony�Arbour�AM� Member,�LFEPA;�Member,�LB�Richmond�
Jennette�Arnold�OBE�AM� Committee�of�the�Regions��
Gareth�Bacon�AM� Chairman�of�LFEPA;�Chairman�of�the�London�Local�

Resilience�Forum;�Member,�LB�Bexley�
Kemi�Badenoch�AM� �
Mayor�John�Biggs�AM� Mayor�of�Tower�Hamlets�(LB);�Member,�LLDC�Board�
Andrew�Boff�AM� Member,�LFEPA;�Congress�of�Local�and�Regional�

Authorities�(Council�of�Europe)�
James�Cleverly�AM�MP� Member�of�Parliament�
Tom�Copley�AM� Member,�LFEPA�
Andrew�Dismore�AM� Member,�LFEPA�
Len�Duvall�AM� �
Roger�Evans�AM� Deputy�Mayor;�Committee�of�the�Regions;�Trust�for�

London�(Trustee)�
Nicky�Gavron�AM� �
Darren�Johnson�AM� Member,�LFEPA�
Jenny�Jones�AM� Member,�House�of�Lords�
Stephen�Knight�AM� Member,�LFEPA;�Member,�LB�Richmond�
Kit�Malthouse�AM�MP� Member�of�Parliament�
Joanne�McCartney�AM� �
Steve�O’Connell�AM� Member,�LB�Croydon;�MOPAC�Non-Executive�Adviser�for�

Neighbourhoods�
Caroline�Pidgeon�MBE�AM� �
Murad�Qureshi�AM� Congress�of�Local�and�Regional�Authorities�(Council�of�

Europe)�
Dr�Onkar�Sahota�AM� �
Navin�Shah�AM� �
Valerie�Shawcross�CBE�AM� �
Richard�Tracey�AM� Chairman�of�the�London�Waste�and�Recycling�Board;�

Mayor's�Ambassador�for�River�Transport������
Fiona�Twycross�AM� Member,�LFEPA�

 

[Note:�LB�-�London�Borough;�LFEPA�-�London�Fire�and�Emergency�Planning�Authority;��
LLDC�–�London�Legacy�Development�Corporation;�MOPAC�–�Mayor’s�Office�for�Policing�and�Crime]�

�
3.2 Paragraph�10�of�the�GLA’s�Code�of�Conduct,�which�reflects�the�relevant�provisions�of�the�Localism�

Act�2011,�provides�that:��
�

- where�an�Assembly�Member�has�a�Disclosable�Pecuniary�Interest�in�any�matter�to�be�considered�
or�being�considered�or�at��

�

(i)� a�meeting�of�the�Assembly�and�any�of�its�committees�or�sub-committees;�or��
�

(ii)� any�formal�meeting�held�by�the�Mayor�in�connection�with�the�exercise�of�the�Authority’s�
functions��

�

- they�must�disclose�that�interest�to�the�meeting�(or,�if�it�is�a�sensitive�interest,�disclose�the�fact�
that�they�have�a�sensitive�interest�to�the�meeting);�and��

�

-� must�not�(i)�participate,�or�participate�any�further,�in�any�discussion�of�the�matter�at�the�
meeting;�or�(ii)�participate�in�any�vote,�or�further�vote,�taken�on�the�matter�at�the�meeting�

�

UNLESS�

Page 2



        

�

-� they�have�obtained�a�dispensation�from�the�GLA’s�Monitoring�Officer�(in�accordance�with�
section�2�of�the�Procedure�for�registration�and�declarations�of�interests,�gifts�and�hospitality�–�
Appendix�5�to�the�Code).����

�

3.3 Failure�to�comply�with�the�above�requirements,�without�reasonable�excuse,�is�a�criminal�offence;�as�is�
knowingly�or�recklessly�providing�information�about�your�interests�that�is�false�or�misleading.�

3.4 In�addition,�the�Monitoring�Officer�has�advised�Assembly�Members�to�continue�to�apply�the�test�that�

was�previously�applied�to�help�determine�whether�a�pecuniary�/�prejudicial�interest�was�arising�-�
namely,�that�Members�rely�on�a�reasonable�estimation�of�whether�a�member�of�the�public,�with�

knowledge�of�the�relevant�facts,�could,�with�justification,�regard�the�matter�as�so�significant�that�it�

would�be�likely�to�prejudice�the�Member’s�judgement�of�the�public�interest.��

3.5 Members�should�then�exercise�their�judgement�as�to�whether�or�not,�in�view�of�their�interests�and�

the�interests�of�others�close�to�them,�they�should�participate�in�any�given�discussions�and/or�

decisions�business�of�within�and�by�the�GLA.�It�remains�the�responsibility�of�individual�Members�to�
make�further�declarations�about�their�actual�or�apparent�interests�at�formal�meetings�noting�also�

that�a�Member’s�failure�to�disclose�relevant�interest(s)�has�become�a�potential�criminal�offence.�

3.6 Members�are�also�required,�where�considering�a�matter�which�relates�to�or�is�likely�to�affect�a�person�
from�whom�they�have�received�a�gift�or�hospitality�with�an�estimated�value�of�at�least�£25�within�the�

previous�three�years�or�from�the�date�of�election�to�the�London�Assembly,�whichever�is�the�later,�to�

disclose�the�existence�and�nature�of�that�interest�at�any�meeting�of�the�Authority�which�they�attend�
at�which�that�business�is�considered.��

3.7 The�obligation�to�declare�any�gift�or�hospitality�at�a�meeting�is�discharged,�subject�to�the�proviso�set�

out�below,�by�registering�gifts�and�hospitality�received�on�the�Authority’s�on-line�database.�The�on-
line�database�may�be�viewed�here:��

http://www.london.gov.uk/mayor-assembly/gifts-and-hospitality.��

3.8 If�any�gift�or�hospitality�received�by�a�Member�is�not�set�out�on�the�on-line�database�at�the�time�of�
the�meeting,�and�under�consideration�is�a�matter�which�relates�to�or�is�likely�to�affect�a�person�from�

whom�a�Member�has�received�a�gift�or�hospitality�with�an�estimated�value�of�at�least�£25,�Members�

are�asked�to�disclose�these�at�the�meeting,�either�at�the�declarations�of�interest�agenda�item�or�when�
the�interest�becomes�apparent.��

3.9 It�is�for�Members�to�decide,�in�light�of�the�particular�circumstances,�whether�their�receipt�of�a�gift�or�

hospitality,�could,�on�a�reasonable�estimation�of�a�member�of�the�public�with�knowledge�of�the�
relevant�facts,�with�justification,�be�regarded�as�so�significant�that�it�would�be�likely�to�prejudice�the�

Member’s�judgement�of�the�public�interest.�Where�receipt�of�a�gift�or�hospitality�could�be�so�

regarded,�the�Member�must�exercise�their�judgement�as�to�whether�or�not,�they�should�participate�in�
any�given�discussions�and/or�decisions�business�of�within�and�by�the�GLA.�

�

4.
 Legal
Implications




4.1 The�legal�implications�are�as�set�out�in�the�body�of�this�report.�



5.
 Financial
Implications

�

5.1 There�are�no�financial�implications�arising�directly�from�this�report.�

Page 3



        

�

Local
Government
(Access
to
Information)
Act
1985


List�of�Background�Papers:�None�

Contact�Officer:� John�Barry,�Committee�Services�

Telephone:� 020�7983�4425�
E-mail:� john.barry@london.gov.uk��

�

Page 4



���������������������������������� �
�

London�Assembly�(Plenary)�

4�November�2015�

�

PRIORITY�ORDER�PAPER�
�

Report�No:�3�

Subject:��� Questions�and�Answer�Session�–�London�&�Partners�

Report�of:��Executive�Director�of�Secretariat�
�
Questions�will�be�put�to:�Sir�Edward�Lister,�Board�Chairman,�London�&�Partners,�
and�Gordon�Innes,�Chief�Executive,�London�&�Partners.�
�

�

�

London's�overseas�reputation�
Question�No:�2015/3550�
Stephen�Knight��
To�what�extent�is�government�policy�and�rhetoric�over�immigration�and�uncertainty�over�EU�
membership�damaging�the�reputation�of�London�overseas�and�our�city's�economic�interests?�

London�&�Partners'�strategic�delivery�
Question�No:�2015/3551�
Fiona�Twycross��
How�effective�is�London�and�Partners�in�delivering�jobs,�investment�and�tourism�for�London?�

Tourism�in�Outer�London�
Question�No:�2015/3549�
Tony�Arbour��
What�more�will�you�be�doing�to�ensure�that�Outer�London�sees�an�increase�in�visitor�footfall?�

A�Fairer�London�
Question�No:�2015/3548�
Jenny�Jones��
What�is�London�&�Partners�doing�to�promote�the�living�wage�and�apprenticeships?�

��
�
�

�

Agenda Item 3

Page 5



�
�
�

�

Israeli�high�tech�
Question�No:�2015/3552�
Andrew�Dismore��
What�business�links�and�investment�have�you�made��with�Israeli�high�tech�companies?�

London's�Jewish�heritage�
Question�No:�2015/3553�
Andrew�Dismore��
What�efforts�have�you�made�to�promote�London's�Jewish�heritage�to�visitors?�

Visitors�from�the�rest�of�the�EU�
Question�No:�2015/3554�
Andrew�Dismore��
How�many�visitors�do�you�estimate�came�to�London�from�the�rest�of�the�EU�in�each�of�the�last�
3�years?�

Businesses�based�in�the�rest�of�the�EU�
Question�No:�2015/3555�
Andrew�Dismore��
How�many�businesses�based�in�the�rest�of�the�EU�have�you�helped�set�up�in�London�in�each�of�
the�last�3�years;�and�how�many�jobs�were�created�as�a�result?�

Tour�de�France�grande�depart�(1)�
Question�No:�2015/3556�
Andrew�Dismore��
What�do�you�consider�the�impact�of�London's�last�minute�rejection�of�the��Tour�de�France�
grande�depart�will�be,�in�attracting�other�high�profile�sporting�events�and�visitors��to�London?�

Tour�de�France�grande�depart�(2)�
Question�No:�2015/3557�
Andrew�Dismore��
What�do�you�estimate�the�revenue�to�London�businesses�and�services�would�have�been�as�a�
consequence�of�the�Tour�,�if�the��Tour�de�France�grande�depart�had�taken�place�in�2017�as�
originally�intended?�

Questions�for�Written�Answer�

Page 6



Formula�1�
Question�No:�2015/3558�
Andrew�Dismore��
What�work�are�you�doing�on�bringing�a�Formula�1�race�to�London?�

�

Page 7



Page 8

This page is intentionally left blank



 

                                                                    

�
City�Hall,�The�Queen’s�Walk,�London�SE1�2AA�
Enquiries:
020
7983
4100
minicom:
020
7983
4458
www.london.gov.uk




 

Subject:�Action
Taken
by
the
Chair
Under

Delegated
Authority
and
Outcome
of

Confirmation
Hearings�


Report
to:
 London
Assembly
(Plenary)




Report
of:

Executive
Director
of
Secretariat 



Date:
4
November
2015�



This
report
will
be
considered
in
public



 





1.
 Summary




1.1 This�report�outlines�recent�action�taken�by�the�Chair�of�the�London�Assembly,�in�accordance�with�

the�authority�delegated�to�her,�in�relation�to�two�Confirmation�Hearings,�and�notifies�the�Assembly,�

in�accordance�with�Standing�Order�10.6H,�of�the�outcome�of�two�Confirmation�Hearings.�





2.
 Recommendations
�


2.1 That
the
Assembly
notes
action
taken
by
the
Chair
of
the
Assembly,
Jennette
Arnold
OBE


AM,
in
accordance
with
the
authority
delegated
to
her,
namely
to
agree
to
hold



Confirmation
Hearings
in
relation
to
the
proposed
appointment
of:
(i)
Sir
Merrick
Cockell


to
the
office
of
Chairman
of
the
London
Pensions
Fund
Authority;
and
(ii)
David
Edmonds


CBE
to
the
office
of
Chairman
of
the
London
Legacy
Development
Corporation,
and
to
ask


both
candidates
to
provide
a
CV
and
supporting
statement.





2.2 That
the
Assembly
notes
the
decisions
of
the
Confirmation
Hearings
Committee,
further


to
its
meetings
held
on
20
May
2015
and
13
October
2015
and
as
set
out
at
Appendices
2


and
5,
to
recommend
that
the
Mayor
should
proceed
with
his
proposed
appointments
to


those
offices.
�

�

2.3 That
the
Assembly
notes
the
responses
from
the
Mayor
attached
at
Appendices
3
and
6


which
mark
the
end
of
the
Confirmation
Hearings
process
in
respect
of
the
appointments.�

�

2.4 That
the
Assembly
notes
the
letter
attached
at
Appendix
4
from
the
Chair
of
the


Confirmation
Hearings
Committee
meeting
held
on
20
May
2015,
Valerie


Shawcross
CBE
AM,
to
Sir
Merrick
Cockell,
setting
out
issues
raised
during
the


confirmation
hearing
discussion,
which
has
been
copied
to
the
Chair
of
the
GLA
Oversight


Committee
for
follow-up
action
as
deemed
necessary.


�

Agenda Item 4

Page 9



        




3.
 Background






Action
taken
under
Delegated
Authority



3.1 The�Mayor�wrote�to�the�Chair�of�the�Assembly,�Jennette�Arnold�OBE�AM,�on�24�August�2015�and�

on�24�September�2015,�in�accordance�with�the�provisions�of�Section�60(a)�and�Schedule�4A�of�the�

Greater�London�Authority�Act�1999�(“the�GLA�Act”)�as�amended,�to�advise�the�Assembly�of�his�

proposed�appointment�of:�(i)�Sir�Merrick�Cockell�to�the�office�of�Chairman�of�the�London�Pensions�

Fund�Authority�(LPFA);�and�(ii)�David�Edmonds�CBE�to�the�office�of�Chairman�of�the�London�Legacy�

Development�Corporation�(LLDC)�respectively.�The�letters�from�Mayor�are�attached�at�Appendix
1.��

��

3.2 As�allowed�for�by�the�provisions�of�Schedule�4A�to�the�GLA�Act,�the�Chair�of�the�Assembly�has�been�

granted�a�standing�delegation�of�authority�to:�(i)�decide�whether�to�hold�a�Confirmation�Hearing�for�

the�Mayor’s�candidate�for�appointment�to�any�of�the�offices�listed�in�Section�60(a)(3)�of�the�Act;�

and�(ii)�to�request�that�the�Mayor’s�candidate�for�appointment�produce,�under�paragraph�6(4)�of�

Schedule�4A�of�the�GLA�Act,�documents�that�relate�to�his�or�her�proposed�appointment.�

�

3.3 The�Chair,�in�accordance�with�that�delegation,�decided�to�hold�Confirmation�Hearings�in�relation�to�

both�proposed�appointments�and�to�ask�the�candidates�to�provide�their�CV�and�a�supporting�

statement�if�they�wished.��

�

�

4 Issues
for
Consideration





Confirmation
Hearings
Committee
Decision
–
Appointment
to
the
office
of
the
Chairman


of
LPFA



�

4.1 The�Confirmation�Hearings�Committee�met�on�7�September�2015�to�put�questions�to�Sir�Merrick�

Cockell�in�relation�to�his�proposed�appointment�to�the�office�of�Chairman�of�the�LPFA.�

�

4.2 The�Committee�decided,�unanimously,�to�recommend�that�the�Mayor�proceed�with�his�appointment�

of�Sir�Merrick�Cockell�to�the�office�of�Chair�of�the�LPFA.�

�

4.3 The�recommendation�letter�which�was�sent�to�the�Mayor�is�attached�as�Appendix
2�and�the�Mayor’s�

response,�which�marks�the�end�of�the�confirmation�hearings�process,�is�attached�as�Appendix
3.�

�

4.4 The�GLA�Oversight�Committee�agreed,�at�its�meeting�of�24�April�2014,�that�any�issues�raised�in�

respect�of�prospective�mayoral�appointments�during�the�confirmation�hearings�process�should�be�

reported�to�the�appropriate�Assembly�bodies�for�follow-up�action�as�deemed�necessary.�

 

4.5 During�the�confirmation�hearing�discussion�several�issues�were�raised�and�the�Committee�agreed�to�

write�to�Sir�Merrick�Cockell,�once�appointed,�with�a�summary�of�these�issues.��This�letter�is�attached�

as�Appendix
4,�and�has�also�been�sent�to�the�Chair�of�the�GLA�Oversight�Committee�for�follow-up�

action�as�deemed�necessary.���

�







Page 10



        

Confirmation
Hearings
Committee
Decision
–
Appointment
to
the
office
of
the
Chairman


of
LLDC


�

4.6 The�Confirmation�Hearings�Committee�met�on�13�October�2015�to�put�questions�to�David�Edmonds�

CBE�in�relation�to�his�proposed�appointment�to�the�office�of�Chairman�of�the�LLDC.�

�

4.7 The�Committee�decided,�unanimously,�to�recommend�that�the�Mayor�proceed�with�his�appointment�

of�Mr�Edmonds�to�the�office�of�Chair�of�the�LPFA.�

�

4.8 The�recommendation�letter�which�was�sent�to�the�Mayor�is�attached�as�Appendix
5
and�the�Mayor’s�

response,�which�marks�the�end�of�the�confirmation�hearings�process,�is�attached�as�Appendix
6.�

�

4.9 The�wording�of�the�recommendation�letter�was�agreed�by�the�Chair�of�the�meeting�under�delegated�

authority,�in�consultation�with�Members�of�the�Confirmation�Hearings�Committee.�





5.
 Legal
Implications




5.1� Section�60(a)�and�Schedule�4A�to�the�Greater�London�Authority�Act�1999�(as�amended)�sets�out�the�

provisions�relating�to�the�confirmation�process.��An�explanation�of�the�provisions�has�been�set�out�in�

the�text�above.�

�

5.2� The�GLA�Act�specifies�that�the�end�of�the�confirmation�process�is�reached�when:�

The�Mayor�has�given�the�Chair�of�the�Assembly�the�notification�required�by�paragraph�5(2)�of�

Schedule�4A�in�respect�of�acceptance�or�rejection�of�the�Assembly’s�recommendation;�

�

OR�

�

The�period�of�three�weeks�(from�the�day�on�which�the�Assembly�received�notification�from�the�

Mayor�of�the�candidate(s)�whom�he�intends�to�appoint)�has�expired�without�any�recommendation�or�

written�notice�of�a�decision�to�exercise�the�veto�(as�applicable)�being�given�to�the�Mayor�by�the�

Assembly.�

�

5.3� The�end�of�the�confirmation�process�has�therefore�now�been�reached�in�respect�of�the�appointment�

referred�to�in�the�report.�







6.
 Financial
Implications

�

6.1� There�are�no�financial�implications�arising�from�this�report.�

�

�

�

List
of
appendices
to
this
report:


�

Appendix�1�–�letters�from�the�Mayor,�re�LPFA�and�LLDC�Chairmen�nominations,�dated�24�August�and�24�

September�2015��

Appendix�2�–�letter�of�recommendation�to�the�Mayor�re�LPFA�Chair,�dated�7�September�2015�

Page 11



        

Appendix�3�–�letter�from�the�Mayor�re�LPFA�Chairman�appointment,�dated�17�September�2015�

Appendix�4�–�letter�to�Sir�Merrick�Cockell,�dated�18�September�2015�

Appendix�5�-�letter�of�recommendation�to�the�Mayor�re�LLDC�Chair,�dated�14�October�2015�

Appendix�6�-�letter�from�the�Mayor�re�LLDC�Chairman�appointment,�dated�23�October�2015�

�

Local
Government
(Access
to
Information)
Act
1985


List�of�Background�Papers:�Member’s�Delegated�Authority�Forms�625,�636�and�637�

�

Contact�Officer:�Rebecca�Arnold,�Committee�Services�Manager�
Telephone:�020�7983�4421�

E-mail:�rebecca.arnold@london.gov.uk��

�

Page 12



Page 13



Page 14

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 15



Page 16



Page 17



Page 18

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 19



Page 20

This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

 Valerie Shawcross CBE AM, Chair of the Confirmation Hearings Committee  
 
  London Assembly 

  City Hall 
  The Queen’s Walk 
  London, SE1 2AA 
   
 
    18 September 2015   

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

Dear Sir Merrick 
 

Confirmation Hearings Committee – 7 September 2015, City Hall 
 

In accordance with Schedule 4A to the GLA Act 1999, I wrote to the Mayor following the Confirmation 

Hearing we held with you on 7 September 2015 to recommend that he should proceed with his 

appointment of you to that office. Many congratulations on your appointment. 

 

Following on from the interesting discussion the Committee held with you, it was agreed to write to you 

with a summary of some of the issues discussed (a draft transcript of the discussion is enclosed with this 

letter).  During the discussion you undertook to provide: 

An update on the progress the LPFA has made in respect of administering pensions on an equal 

basis to members who are in civil partnerships and those who are married (for example, whether the 

LPFA has different beneficiary nomination requirements for its members who are in civil 

partnerships compared to its members who are married. 

Other issues discussed, which we would be grateful for further information on were: 

The LPFA’s future investment in carbon fossil fuels and renewables and clean technologies; 

The future role of the LPFA in investing in housing infrastructure both in the public and private 

sectors in London; and 

The ongoing issue of ensuring that the composition of the LPFA Board is balanced in terms of the 

gender and ethnicity of its members. 

 

The London Assembly’s GLA Oversight Committee is responsible for scrutinising the work of the LPFA on 

behalf of the Assembly and therefore I would be grateful if you could address your response to Len 

Duvall AM, Chair of the GLA Oversight Committee (please copy me into the letter and I will ensure your 

response is circulated to Members of the Confirmation Hearings Committee).   

 

If you have any amendments of a factual nature to the draft transcript please contact Teresa Young or 

Joanna Brown, Senior Committee Officers, on 020 7983 6559 or at teresa.young@london.gov.uk / 

joanna.brown@london.gov.uk.  In the meantime, the transcript will be published on the GLA’s website as 

a draft, until it is confirmed at the next appropriate meeting.

Sir Merrick Cockell 
Chairman 
London Pensions Fund Authority 
2nd Floor 
169 Union Street 
London 
SE1 0LL 
 

Page 21



 

 

On behalf of the Confirmation Hearings Committee, I would like to wish you well in carrying out your new 

role as Chairman of the LPFA. 

 

Yours sincerely  

 

 

 

 

 

 Valerie Shawcross CBE AM

 Chair of the Confirmation Hearings Committee 
 
Cc:  Len Duvall AM, Chair of the GLA Oversight Committee 
 

 

Page 22



 

 Tom Copley AM, Chair of the Confirmation Hearings Committee  

 
  London Assembly 

  City Hall 
  The Queen’s Walk 

  London, SE1 2AA 
   
 
     14 October 2015   

 

 

 
 

 

 
Dear Boris 

 

Confirmation Hearing: Proposed Appointment of David Edmonds CBE to the 
Office of Chairman of the London Legacy Development Corporation 
 

In accordance with Schedule 4A to the GLA Act 1999, I write to inform you of the Confirmation Hearings 

Committee’s recommendation with regard to your proposed appointment of David Edmonds CBE to the 

office of Chairman of the London Legacy Development Corporation (LLDC). 

 

The Confirmation Hearings Committee put questions to Mr Edmonds at its meeting on 13 October 2015 

in relation to his proposed appointment to that office.  The Committee agreed unanimously to 

recommend that you should proceed with his appointment.  

 

The Committee wished to emphasise that the Chairman should commit to ensuring greater transparency 

at the LLDC, including in relation to key contracts let by the LLDC. The Committee also wished to place 

on record that, noting the proposal to appoint Mr Edmonds for a period of three years, it would welcome 

such a period of stability at the LLDC in terms of continuity of leadership. 

 

On behalf of the Confirmation Hearings Committee, I would like to wish Mr Edmonds well in carrying out 

his new role. 

 

Yours sincerely  

 

 

 

 Tom Copley AM 

 Chair of the Confirmation Hearings Committee  

 

p yy

 
Mr Boris Johnson 
Mayor of London
City Hall 
The Queen’s Walk 
More London 
London SE1 2AA 

Page 23



Page 24

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 25



Page 26

This page is intentionally left blank



                                                                    

�
City�Hall,�The�Queen’s�Walk,�London�SE1�2AA�
Enquiries:
020
7983
4100
minicom:
020
7983
4458
www.london.gov.uk


 

Subject:�Mayoral
Commitments�


Report
to:
 London
Assembly
(Plenary)




Report
of:

Executive
Director
of
Secretariat 



Date:
4
November
2015




This
report
will
be
considered
in
public�
 



1.
 Summary



�

1.1 This�report�provides�a�summary�of�the�commitments�made�by�the�Mayor,�Boris�Johnson�MP,�in�

response�to�queries�or�requests�made�by�Assembly�Members�during�London�Assembly�(Mayor's�

Question�Time)�meetings�held�between�October�2014�and�October�2015.�





2.
 Recommendation�


2.1 That
the
Assembly
notes
commitments
made
by
the
Mayor,
Boris
Johnson
MP,
during


London
Assembly
(Mayor’s
Question
Time)
meetings
held
between
October
2014
and


October
2015.









3.
 Background





3.1 The�Assembly�questions�the�Mayor�at�Mayor’s�Question�Time�meetings,�in�public,�ten�times�a�year�as�

part�of�its�role�of�holding�him�to�account.��Questions�put�to�the�Mayor�by�the�Assembly�Members�

cover�the�full�range�of�the�Mayor’s�responsibilities�(including�policing,�the�fire�service,�regeneration�

and�transport)�and�can�also�range�into�almost�any�issue�of�concern�to�Londoners.��The�appendix�to�

this�report�reflects�the�Mayoral�responsibilities,�being�ordered�by�subject,�and�then�by�date.�

�

3.2 During�the�course�of�Mayor's�Question�Time�meetings,�the�Mayor�may�make�commitments�in�

response�to�queries�or�requests�raised�by�Assembly�Members�and�these�are�reported�to�the�Assembly�

on�a�quarterly�basis.��





4.
 Issues
for
Consideration�

�

4.1� The�commitments�made�by�the�Mayor�at�Mayor's�Question�Time�meetings�between�October�2014�

and�October�2015�are�set�out�at�Appendix
1.��

�

4.2� This�Appendix�is�attached�for�Members�and�officers�only�but�is�available�from�the�following�area�of�

the�GLA’s�website:��

� www.london.gov.uk/mayor-assembly/london-assembly/whole-assembly�




Agenda Item 5

Page 27



        



5.
 Legal
Implications




5.1 The�Assembly�is�able�to�receive�and�note�this�report.�





6.
 Financial
Implications

�

6.1 There�are�no�direct�financial�implications�arising�from�this�report.�

�

�

�

List
of
appendices
to
this
report:


�

Appendix
1�–�Commitments�made�by�the�Mayor�at�Mayor’s�Question�Time�meetings�since�October�2014.�

�

Local
Government
(Access
to
Information)
Act
1985


List�of�Background�Papers:�None�

Contact�Officer:� John�Barry,�Principal�Committee�Manager�

Telephone:� 020�7983�4425�

E-mail:� john.barry@london.gov.uk��

 

Page 28



Appendix 1 

�

Transport�
�
Pedestrian�and�cycle�river�crossings�
Question�Number:�2014/3558� � 13�Oct�2014� � Caroline�Pidgeon�AM�
�
Caroline�Pidgeon�MBE�AM:��What�I�am�asking�is�for�you�to�guarantee�that�transport�money�will�not�be�
pushed�into�this�when�it�will�not�allow�cyclists,�for�example,�to�go�across�it.��What�I�am�really�trying�to�get�
your�‑‑�

Boris�Johnson�(Mayor�of�London):��It�is�a�garden.�

Caroline�Pidgeon�MBE(AM:��‑‑�support�for,�Mr�Mayor,�if�you�will�allow�me�to�finish�questioning,�is�that�
Sustrans�is�planning�to�launch�a�new�competition�to�design�this�bridge,�which�it�has�worked�on�for�some�time,�
from�Rotherhithe�to�Canary�Wharf.��They�are�calling�it�the�Brunel�Bridge.��It�would�really�increase�cycling�and�
provide�a�river�crossing�where�it�really�is�needed�and�it�would�potentially�help�relieve�overcrowding�on�the�
Jubilee�line.��Will�you�consider�supporting�this�project?�

Boris�Johnson�(Mayor�of�London):��Please�tell�them�to�come�in�as�soon�as�possible�and�we�will�have�a�look�
at�it.�

Caroline�Pidgeon�MBE�AM:��You�will�have�a�look�at�it?�

Boris�Johnson�(Mayor�of�London):��I�am�always�interested�in�that�type�of�scheme.��I�do�agree�there�should�
be�a�crossing�in�that�area.��Let�us�see�what�they�are�proposing.�

Caroline�Pidgeon�MBE�AM:��They�are�looking�at�doing�a�really�interesting�competition,�looking�at�getting�
architects�on�board�and�coming�up�with�a�really�creative�design.��It�would�cost�a�similar�amount�of�money.��Is�
this�the�sort�of�project�that�you�would�also�consider�putting�some�transport�money�towards,�as�you�have�with�
the�Garden�Bridge?�

Boris�Johnson�(Mayor�of�London):��If�it�has�a�good�business�case�and�it�works.��One�of�the�difficulties�is�
that�in�that�area�you�have�to�go�very�high�up.�

Caroline�Pidgeon�MBE�AM:��It�has�to�have�a�mechanism�to�go�‑‑�I�know�there�are�issues,�but�they�have�
developed�one�in�the�past.�

Boris�Johnson�(Mayor�of�London):��Is�it�a�sort�of�curly�wurly�Fisher-Price�thing�where�you�go�up�‑‑�

Caroline�Pidgeon�MBE�AM:��They�are�going�to�go�out�to�design�to�try�to�work�that�out.��They�have�had�
designs�in�the�past.�

Boris�Johnson�(Mayor�of�London):��That�sounds�brilliant.�

Caroline�Pidgeon�MBE�AM:��Is�this�something�‑‑�

Boris�Johnson�(Mayor�of�London):��Perhaps�you�could�have�a�sort�of�catapult.��Let�us�have�a�look.�

Caroline�Pidgeon�MBE�AM:��A�catapult?��Maybe�that�can�be�your�submission�to�the�design�competition,�
Mr�Mayor.�

Page 29



Boris�Johnson�(Mayor�of�London):��Have�a�look.��Bring�it.��Let�us�have�a�look�at�it.�

Caroline�Pidgeon�MBE�AM:��You�will�agree�to�meet�Sustrans�to�look�at�this�proposal�and�to�help�support�it?�

Boris�Johnson�(Mayor�of�London):��They�can�come�and�see�Isabel�[Dedring,�Deputy�Mayor�for�Transport],�
yes.�

Caroline�Pidgeon�MBE�AM:��Come�and�see�Isabel,�not�you.��OK,�that�is�great.��Thank�you�very�much.�

Bakerloo�Line�Extension�(1)�
Question�Number:�2014/3626� � 13�Oct�2014� � James�Cleverly�AM�
�
James�Cleverly�AM:��Finally,�one�of�the�other�plans�that�has�been�discussed�with�regard�to�greater�
connectivity�for�my�constituency�is�a�better�connection,�whether�that�be�through�heavy�rail�or�light�rail,�to�
Bromley�North.��People�have�expressed�concerns�to�me�that�the�Bakerloo�line�extension�proposal�would�in�
some�way�mean�greater�connectivity�to�Bromley�North�would�be�off�the�table.��Can�you�confirm�whether�or�
not�these�projects�could�both�happen?�

Boris�Johnson�(Mayor�of�London):��There�is�strong�support,�I�can�tell�you,�for�the�Bakerloo�extension�to�
run�both�to�Hayes�and�to�Bromley�town�centre.��I�suppose�by�that�you�mean�that�it�might�preclude�running�to�
Bromley�North�as�well.��Obviously�there�is�a�scheme�to�run�the�Docklands�Light�Railway�(DLR),�as�you�know,�to�
Bromley�North.��I�am�not�convinced�we�can�necessarily�do�them�all.��I�will�look�at�it.��Looking�at�it�superficially,�
it�looks�to�me�if�you�go�for�Bromley�town�centre�you�are�probably�making�it�less�likely�that�you�will�have�DLR�
running�to�Bromley�North.�

Hackbridge�Regeneration�Scheme�(3)�
Question�Number:�2014/3646� � 13�Oct�2014� � Steve�O'Connell�AM�
�
Steve�O’Connell�AM:��OK.�Also�may�I�ask�you�-�because�what�is�concerning�me�is�that�again�this�is�meal�
money�and�taxpayers’�money�that�actually�has�been�poorly�and�badly�spent�-�to�perhaps�ask�your�Deputy�
Mayor�to�take�a�direct�interest�in�this�because�it�is�a�gross�municipal�incompetence�in�spending�funds?��I�take�
your�point�and�I�know�it�is�for�me�and�others�to�take�this�up�with�Sutton�Council.�

Boris�Johnson�(Mayor�of�London):��It�is.�

Steve�O’Connell�AM:��I�know�residents�are,�but�it�actually�is�your�money�that�is�being�spent�and�I�would�ask�
you�indeed�to�ask�your�Deputy�Mayor�to�take�this�up�with�that�particular�council.�To�try�to�get�to�the�bottom�
of�what�has�gone�wrong�on�the�ground,�why�that�money�has�been�misspent�and�why�we�now�have�a�much�
more�dangerous�scheme�than�we�had�in�the�past,�if�I�could�ask�for�your�commitment�around�that.�

Boris�Johnson�(Mayor�of�London):��Yes.��Obviously�I�am�not�certain�that�my�team�altogether�agrees�with�
your�characterisation�of�the�effects�of�the�scheme,�but�I�am�happy�to�take�your�points�on�board�and�to�see�
what�improvements�we�can�make.�

Steve�O’Connell�AM:��My�comments�are�reflecting�the�1,000�local�people�that�have�responded�to�the�
survey.��They�are�not�my�comments;�they�are�those�of�the�local�constituents.��I�will�leave�it�at�that,�Chair.�

Page 30



Testing�New�Flight�Paths�at�Heathrow�Airport�
Question�Number:�2014/3652� � 13�Oct�2014� � Tony�Arbour�AM�
�
Tony�Arbour�AM:��Yes.��Given�that�it�is�clearly�a�blessing�in�disguise,�do�you�find�it�astonishing�that�
Howard�Davies�[Sir�Howard�Davies,�Chairman,�Airports�Commission]�has�not�commented�on�this,�given�the�
enormous�weight�of�objection�there�has�been�already�to�what�it�has�done?�

Boris�Johnson�(Mayor�of�London):��I�have�made�my�views�pretty�well�known�about�Sir�Howard’s�report�so�
far.��I�do�not�think�it�will�stand�the�test�of�time.��This�is�helping�to�speed�it�on�its�way�down�the�oubliette�of�
history.��It�will�be�forgotten�in�a�year’s�time.�

Tony�Arbour�AM:��Would�it�be�appropriate�for�you�to�prompt�him�into�commenting�on�this�or�into�
incorporating�what�has�happened�in�his�report�simply�by�you�saying�there�has�been�this�great�weight�of�
evidence?��I�can�assure�you�that�local�authorities�under�the�flight�path�will�be�taking�this�line.��They�will�be�
making�formal�objection�to�[Sir�Howard]�Davies,�if�not�saying�that�he�should�reopen�the�matter�and�that�there�
certainly�should�be�an�addendum�to�his�final�report�saying,�if�you�like,�what�has�happened�post�his�mistaken�
original�decision�in�ruling�out�the�Estuary�Airport.�

Boris�Johnson�(Mayor�of�London):��To�be�fair�to�Howard,�I�do�not�know�what�account�they�are�taking�of�
what�has�happened�on�the�flight�paths,�but�it�would�be�interesting�to�know.��Perhaps�it�might�be�a�good�idea�
for�us�to�get�something�on�the�record.��I�will�be�writing�to�him�and�making�sure�he�has�properly�understood�the�
impossibility�of�delivering�the�sorts�of�changes�at�Heathrow�that�he�is�still�canvassing.�

Cycle�superhighways�
Question�Number:�2014/4042� � 13�Oct�2014� � Darren�Johnson�AM�
�
Richard�Tracey�AM:��I�think�there�is�a�general�view�that�the�whole�network�that�you�have�been�producing�
over�the�last�six�years�is�actually�pretty�impressive,�despite�this�sort�of�carping�criticism�you�are�getting�from�
the�other�parties.�

However,�can�I�pursue�one�other�point?��The�network�will�be�near�to�completion�only�when�you�have�done�far�
more�in�the�outer�London�boroughs,�the�mini-Hollands�and�the�Quietways.��You�have�mentioned�the�
Quietways.��When�are�we�going�to�have�the�final�specific�figures�for�the�spending?��I�know�there�was�a�press�
release�issued�by�TfL�yesterday�about�the�outer�London�boroughs,�but�we�really�do�need�to�know�precise�
figures�pretty�quickly�from,�I�guess,�TfL�as�well�as�Andrew�Gilligan�[Cycling�Commissioner].�

Boris�Johnson�(Mayor�of�London):��Yes.��I�should�have�said�that�the�mini-Hollands�are�another�feature�of�
the�cycling�revolution�and�several�outer�London�boroughs�are�now�getting�that�going.�

The�exact�sums�I�cannot�give�you�off�the�top�of�my�head.��The�£913�million�you�know.��That�is�the�overall�
package.��I�cannot�tell�you�what�we�have�pushed�out�of�the�door�so�far,�but�I�would�be�happy�to�try�to�find�
that�if�we�can.�

Richard�Tracey�AM:��I�have�put�down�a�written�question�to�you�asking�that�and�perhaps�you�will�answer�it�
quickly.�

Boris�Johnson�(Mayor�of�London):��OK.��I�will�do�my�best�to�get�an�answer�to�you�as�fast�as�possible.�

Richard�Tracey�AM:��Thank�you.�

Page 31



Sexual�Harassment�on�the�Transport�Network�
Question�Number:�2014/4312� � 10�Nov�2014� � Joanne�McCartney�AM�
�
Boris�Johnson�(Mayor�of�London):��As�I�say,�we�think�that�there�has�been�a�considerable�impact�from�this�
campaign�because�the�reports�of�sexual�offences�have�gone�up�38%,�we�think�as�a�result�of�the�greater�
awareness�by�officers�and�the�staff�of�this�issue,�the�training�that�we�now�give�them�and�all�the�various�ways�in�
which�we�are�engaging�with�stakeholder�groups�who�are�campaigning�against�this�to�raise�awareness.�

Joanne�McCartney�AM:��Mr�Mayor,�TfL’s�own�survey�shows�that�96%�of�interviewees�say�they�did�not�report�
the�incident�and�so�only�4%�are�reporting.��An�awareness�campaign�is�needed.��If�we�see�those�figures�go�up�
as�a�result�of�an�awareness�campaign,�we�are�going�to�actually�support�you�in�that.�

Boris�Johnson�(Mayor�of�London):��As�I�say,�you�are�being�a�little�unfair,�Joanne,�in�saying�that�nothing�is�
going�on.��

Joanne�McCartney�AM:��I�am�not�saying�that.��You�should�do�more,�a�proactive�--�

Boris�Johnson�(Mayor�of�London):��That�I�am�willing�to�accept.��Before�I�commit�myself�to�a�gigantic�
poster�campaign,�I�want�to�go�and�look�and�see�just�exactly�what�we�have.�

Joanne�McCartney�AM:��Mr�Mayor,�in�September�you�told�me�you�would�do�that.�

Boris�Johnson�(Mayor�of�London):��Let�us�see�how�we�are�getting�on.�

Joanne�McCartney�AM:��I�will�put�the�question�down�again�in�two�months’�time.�

Boris�Johnson�(Mayor�of�London):��OK.�

Spending�on�increased�road�capacity�
Question�Number:�2014/5002� � 08�Dec�2014� � Darren�Johnson�AM�
�
Darren�Johnson�AM:��What�assessment�have�you�done�of�the�pollution�impact�of�your�plans?�

Boris�Johnson�(Mayor�of�London):��I�am�fairly�certain�that�as�part�of�the�Silvertown�Tunnel�consultation�
and�as�part�of�the�preparatory�work�there,�we�have�indeed�looked�at�the�reduction�in�pollution�that�you�will�
get�in�both�Greenwich�and�on�the�north�side�of�the�river�as�a�result�of�enabling�the�traffic�to�flow�more�
smoothly�and�reducing�congestion.��You�should�look�at�that,�Darren.��Actually,�your�argument�is�completely�on�
its�head.�

Darren�Johnson�AM:��What�assessment�have�you�done�of�all�of�these�plans?�

Boris�Johnson�(Mayor�of�London):��I�would�be�very�happy�to�send�you�all�such�assessments,�particularly�of�
the�Silvertown�crossing,�which�is�far�advanced.��The�Inner�Orbital�Tunnel�that�you�mentioned,�again,�you�could�
see�very,�very�easily�how�such�an�investment�could�radically�reduce�pollution�on�the�Marylebone�Road,�on�the�
Euston�Road�and�on�the�hideous�congestion�that�exists�currently�on�the�non-existent�South�Circular.��You�
could�radically�reduce�emissions�and�pollution.��Therefore,�these�schemes�should�be�progressed.�

Page 32



Night�Tube�(1)�
Question�Number:�2014/5158� � 08�Dec�2014� � Steve�O'Connell�AM�
�
Steve�O’Connell�(AM):��I�bow�to�my�colleagues�on�the�Transport�Committee�who�have�obviously�been�urging�
for�that�for�some�considerable�time.��Far�be�it�for�me�to�take�all�the�benefit�for�this�or�any�at�all,�I�hasten�to�
add.�

My�last�point�is�slightly�more�far-reaching.��Clearly,�on�train�services�the�Overground�is�a�great�success�and�has�
proven�to�be�such.��In�the�spirit�of�getting�people�home�overnight�to�the�far�reaches�of�West�Croydon�and�
elsewhere,�could�I�ask�that�you�ask�TfL�at�some�stage�to�look�at�the�potential�of�increasing�the�lateness�of�the�
service�of�the�Overground,�working�towards�in�some�future�point�a�night�service�on�potentially�the�
Overground?�

Boris�Johnson�(Mayor�of�London):��A�night�service�on�the�Overground?��

Steve�O’Connell�(AM):��Yes.��How�about�that?��

Boris�Johnson�(Mayor�of�London):��We�will�look�at�it.��It�would�not�have�been�possible�with�Labour’s�plans�
for�the�TfL�budget,�but�it�may�be�that�we�can�do�it.��We�will�look�at�it.��

Steve�O’Connell�(AM):��Like�I�said�‑‑�

Boris�Johnson�(Mayor�of�London):��I�do�not�know.��I�do�not�want�to�make�any�promises�at�all�because�it�
may�just�be�completely�undoable.��I�will�look�at�it.��

The�Autumn�Statement�
Question�Number:�2014/5266� � 08�Dec�2014� � Valerie�Shawcross�AM�
�
Fiona�Twycross�AM:��Hopefully,�some�of�these�homes�will�actually�be�genuinely�affordable�because�people�
are�just�finding�the�cost�of�living�in�London,�including�housing�and�transport,�just�too�much�to�cope�with.��In�
the�year�to�April,�over�37,000�children�in�London�were�fed�by�Trussell�Trust�food�banks.��The�total�number�the�
charity�provided�food�for�was�just�short�of�100,000�people.�

Two�major�reports�published�over�the�past�few�weeks�have�attributed�the�rise�of�hunger�in�the�UK�in�large�part�
to�the�failings�of�the�benefit�system,�including�the�recent�all-party�inquiry,�Feeding�Britain.��One�advice�agency�
told�me�that�some�disabled�people�in�London�are�waiting�up�to�12�months�to�have�their�Personal�
Independence�Payments�processed.��Have�you�lobbied�the�Government�over�systematic�failures�in�processing�
benefits?�

Boris�Johnson�(Mayor�of�London):��I�have�not�made�representations�on�that�because�I�have�not�received�
specific�representations�on�those�delayed�payments.��I�am�very�happy�to�do�so,�Fiona,�if�you�want�to�forward�
the�correspondence�to�me.��I�am�very�happy�to�try�to�be�of�assistance�where�I�can.�

Fiona�Twycross�AM:��I�will�forward�it�to�you.�

Page 33



Chair's�Question�Regarding�Gallow's�Corner�Junction�
Question�Number:�2014/5938� � 22�Oct�2014� � Roger�Evans�AM�
�
Boris�Johnson�(Mayor�of�London):��Thank�you�very�much,�Roger.��The�issue�is�topmost�in�TfL.��Thank�you�
very�much�for�raising�it�on�behalf�of�your�constituents.��TfL�is�commissioning�design�work�to�see�if�we�can�
improve�Gallows�Corner�Junction�and�those�improvements�should�be�completed�by�the�spring�of�2016.��TfL�is�
very�happy�to�go�through�in�detail�with�you�what�is�being�proposed.�

Roger�Evans�AM�(Chairman):��All�right,�thank�you.��I�would�not�normally�raise�a�question�from�the�Chair,�
obviously��

Boris�Johnson�(Mayor�of�London):��No,�sure.�

Roger�Evans�AM�(Chairman):��‑‑�but�in�this�situation�the�motion�was�approved�cross-party�at�Havering,�
which�is�no�small�feat�considering�they�now�have�six�different�political�parties�on�the�Council.��One�of�the�
things�that�people�tell�me�is�that�you�did�say�you�would�come�and�have�a�look�at�the�junction�at�some�time�
and�they�have�not�seen�you�there�yet.��Will�you�reaffirm�your�promise�to�pay�us�a�visit?�

Boris�Johnson�(Mayor�of�London):��If�I�possibly�can.��Obviously�I�have�been�there�several�times�and�I�have�
seen�it�in�a�general�way.��I�do�not�think�I�have�done�a�public�meeting�there.��I�will�do�my�best.��What�I�can�
certainly�do�is�make�sure�that�you�are�involved�personally,�Roger,�in�the�changes�that�are�being�proposed�and�
that�you�can�have�those�explained�to�you.��We�are�considering�Gallows�Corner�in�the�long�run�for�more�
fundamental�change�and�it�may�be�that�other�solutions�will�be�necessary�in�the�long�run.�

24�hour�tube�service�
Question�Number:�2015/1259� � 12�May�2015� � Joanne�McCartney�AM�
�
Joanne�McCartney�AM:��Thank�you.��Will�you�actually�then�personally�take�up�the�issue�of�no�single�staffing�
between�outer�London�stations�with�Peter�Hendy�[Commissioner�of�Transport�for�London],�and�will�you�come�
and�chat�to�me?�

Boris�Johnson�MP�(Mayor�of�London):��What�I�undertake�to�do,�because�I�really�ought�to�talk�to�the�
experts�about�how�they�see�safety�in�outer�London�stations,�is�that�I�will�get�back�to�you�with�an�explanation�
of�how�we�see�the�Night�Tube�service�working�to�make�sure�that�it�is�as�safe�as�possible�both�for�passengers�
and�for�our�staff.��

Joanne�McCartney�AM:��Thank�you.��The�other�issue�that�I�have�raised�with�you�on�a�regular�basis�has�been�
the�rise�in�sexual�assaults�and�harassment�that�have�been�reported�on�the�Tube�network,�and�obviously�the�
running�of�the�Night�Tubes�will�mean�that�lots�more�people�will�be�coming�back�in�the�early�hours�of�the�
morning.��You,�I�noticed�yesterday,�have�started�a�consultation�on�reducing�some�of�the�night�bus�services�in�
my�area,�for�example.��How�will�you�be�factoring�in�the�risk,�particularly�to�women,�of�sexual�assaults�and�
harassments�that�this�policy�may�result�in?��

[...]��

Joanne�McCartney�AM:��OK.��Mr�Mayor,�if�you�cannot�tell�me�today,�could�you�write�to�me?��Have�TfL�
talked�to�either�the�BTP�or�the�MPS�about�having�visible�police�officers,�particularly�in�outer�London,�when�
you�go�live�with�24-hour�trains?��It�will�have�implications�for�their�organisations�as�well.��

Boris�Johnson�MP�(Mayor�of�London):��I�will�genuinely�get�back�to�you�about�the�ways�in�which�we�are�
going�to�ensure�that�the�Night�Tube�is�safe�both�for�passengers�and�for�staff,�and�I�will�give�you�a�broad�and�
full�answer.��Hello?�

Page 34



Cycle�Superhighways�
Question�Number:�2015/1639� � 08�Jun�2015� � Caroline�Pidgeon�AM�
�
[...]�

Caroline�Pidgeon�MBE�AM:��When�will�you�see�Cycle�Superhighway�6�if�you�have�a�long�list?��As�far�as�I�am�
aware,�it�has�been�cancelled.��That�was�in�an�answer�from�you�back�in�September.�

Boris�Johnson�MP�(Mayor�of�London):��Caroline,�would�you�forgive�me?��I�am�looking�at�this�chart�and�I�
do�not�see�Cycle�Superhighway�6.��I�assume�that�you�are�right.��I�am�going�to�have�to�get�back�to�you�about�
Cycle�Superhighway�6.�

Caroline�Pidgeon�MBE�AM:��In�one�of�your�answers,�you�confirmed�that�it�has�been�cancelled�and�I�want�to�
know�why�and�what�on�earth�this�reason�means�if�it�is�to�do�with�deliverability�constraints�within�the�supply�
chain?�

Boris�Johnson�MP�(Mayor�of�London):��I�am�so�sorry.��I�cannot�give�you�further�information�about�that�
because�I�simply�do�not�have�it�with�me�now.��What�we�are�doing�is�proceeding�with�a�huge�amount�of�
investment�in�cycling�infrastructure.��It�is�the�thick�end�of�£1�billion.��It�is�having�a�massive�impact�on�the�
carriageway.��You�should�see�the�letters�I�get�from�‑‑�

Caroline�Pidgeon�MBE�AM:��I�am�sure.�

Cycle�Superhighways�
Question�Number:�2015/1639� � 08�Jun�2015� � Caroline�Pidgeon�AM�
�
Kit�Malthouse�AM�MP:��Just�on�that�point,�Mr�Mayor,�do�you�think�it�would�be�more�effective�if�cyclists�
who�were�caught�going�through�red�lights�had�their�bikes�impounded�immediately�so�that�their�mode�of�
transport�is�removed�and�they�have�to�then�go�somewhere�to�recover�it�and�pay�a�fine�to�get�their�bike�back?�
�As�a�cyclist�myself,�the�most�inconvenient�thing�is�to�lose�your�bike�in�the�middle�of�a�journey�and�to�have�to�
then�clack�off�in�boots�and�Lycra�to�get�the�Tube.��Cyclists�are�much�more�likely�to�think�twice�about�that�than�
about�a�fine?��Not�that�I�wear�Lycra�when�I�cycle,�just�to�calm�everybody�down.�

[...]�

Boris�Johnson�MP�(Mayor�of�London):��I�would�have�to�think�about�that.��It�is�a�very�interesting�idea.��It�is�
a�custom�pretty�much�alien�to�English�law�to�take�away�people’s�property�unless�you�absolutely�have�to.�

Kit�Malthouse�AM�MP:��Of�course,�that�is�not�correct.��We�clamp�cars�all�the�time.��Cars�get�clamped�all�the�
time.�

Boris�Johnson�MP�(Mayor�of�London):��It�is�worth�looking�at.��Actually,�characteristically,�Kit,�you�might�
have�come�up�with�a�rather�interesting�idea.��I�will�talk�it�over�with�Bernard�[Sir�Bernard�Hogan-Howe�QPM,�
Commissioner�of�Police�of�the�Metropolis]�and�see�what�the�options�are.��I�do�not�know�how�we�would�
introduce�it.��I�do�not�know�what�regulations�we�would�need�in�order�to�make�it�possible.��It�is�something�that�
certainly�would�act�as�a�considerable�deterrent�and�you�are�spot-on�in�your�analysis.�

Kit�Malthouse�AM�MP:��Certainly�cars�that�are�uninsured�are�immediately�impounded.�

Boris�Johnson�MP�(Mayor�of�London):��Yes.��I�will�take�it�up�and�I�will�get�back�to�you.�

Page 35



Noisy�Tubes�
Question�Number:�2015/1743� � 08�Jun�2015� � Murad�Qureshi�AM�
�
[...]�

Murad�Qureshi�AM:��I�am�glad�that�I�have�brought�it�up,�but�I�do�think�that�there�is�a�wider�issue�about�
mitigating�the�impact�of�24-hour�Tube.��I�am�not�saying�people�in�central�London�are�against�it.��You�need�to�
certainly�work�with�local�authorities�and�the�MPS�because�I�do�not�see�any�evidence�of�that�in�Westminster.�

Boris�Johnson�MP�(Mayor�of�London):��Let�me�get�back�to�you�with�what�we�are�doing�to�muffle,�baffle,�
mitigate�and�do�whatever�we�have�to�do�to�make�sure�that�when�we�run�a�24-hour�Tube�it�does�not�keep�
people�up�at�night.��We�are�going�to�have�a�24-hour�Tube�but�we�cannot�be�rattling�people’s�teacups�at�
3.00am�and�so�we�will�sort�that�out.�

Murad�Qureshi�AM:��Yes,�that�is�the�reassurance�the�residents�want.�

Increase�in�proportion�of�cyclist�casualties�
Question�Number:�2015/1745� � 08�Jun�2015� � Valerie�Shawcross�AM�
�
Valerie�Shawcross�CBE�AM:��The�one�thing�we�have�political�consensus�on�is�that�we�want�to�see�cycling�
safety.��We�have�a�programme�that�is�kind�of�half�through.��It�is�really�still�only�phase�one�of�the�cycling�
revolution.��It�is�incredibly�important�that�there�is�a�detailed�continuity�plan�and�that�you�can�show�not�just�
how�we�are�going�to�continue�the�programme�for�Cycle�Superhighways�but�that�a�new�Mayor�can�pick�up�
projects�in�development.�

Boris�Johnson�MP�(Mayor�of�London):��Yes,�absolutely.�

Valerie�Shawcross�CBE�AM:��Will�you�actually�give�us�a�continuity�plan�in�some�detail�so�that�we�can�see�
into�the�next�administration�exactly�how�this�cycling�revolution�will�roll�forward?�

Boris�Johnson�MP�(Mayor�of�London):��Yes,�I�will.��Yes,�I�shall,�of�course.�

Valerie�Shawcross�CBE�AM:��It�is�not�in�your�business�plan�at�the�moment.��It�is�very�vague.�

Boris�Johnson�MP�(Mayor�of�London):��No,�I�do�not�accept�that,�Val.��If�you�look�at�the�action�plan�for�
cycling�or�the�cycling�revolution�plan,�it�contains�a�huge�raft�of�things,�all�of�which�are�very�detailed�and�all�of�
which�require�specific�interventions�and�specific�costs.��They�are�funded�and�they�are�going�ahead.��The�
Quietways,�the�Mini-Hollands,�the�expansion�of�the�Cycle�Superhighways,�the�expansion�of�the�cycle�hire�
scheme:�all�of�that�will�continue.��Yes,�there�will�come�a�moment�in�2017�or�2018�when�the�thing�will�need�a�
great�new�surge�of�energy�and�funding�and�I�hope�very�much�that�the�next�Mayor�will�see�what�a�priority�this�
is.��There�is�a�very�clear�roadmap.�

Valerie�Shawcross�CBE�AM:��Will�you�publish�that�roadmap�for�us�to�see?��For�example,�at�the�moment,�I�
could�not�find�a�date�for�the�completion�of�the�three�Mini-Hollands.��We�were�really�pleased�that�you�are�
actually�finally�doing�some�20mph-zone�pilots�on�red�routes,�which�is�hugely�important.��The�red�routes�are�
enormously�dangerous�and�people�have�lobbied�for�this�for�years.��What�we�want�to�see�are�some�completion�
dates.��We�want�to�know�there�is�some�design�work�in�progress�and�we�are�not�going�to�have�an�interregnum�
while�a�new�Mayor�has�to�completely�start�from�scratch?�

Boris�Johnson�MP�(Mayor�of�London):��No.��I�would�be�very�happy�to�share�absolutely�everything.�

Valerie�Shawcross�CBE�AM:��Will�you�publish�a�continuity�plan�for�us,�Mr�Mayor?�

Page 36



Boris�Johnson�MP�(Mayor�of�London):��Yes.��Obviously,�my�objective�is�to�lay�out�the�tram�tracks�for�the�
next�Mayor�as�far�into�the�future�as�I�possibly�can�in�the�hope�that�he�or�she�will�not�deviate�from�the�path�of�
common�sense.�

[...]�

Valerie�Shawcross�CBE�AM:��We�would�all�agree�that�one�death�is�one�death�too�many�and�it�is�still�true�to�
say�that�all�pedal-cyclist�accidents�have�gone�up�by�about�2,000�since�2008.��There�is�an�issue�and�what�we�
want�is�for�you�to�not�just�keep�your�foot�on�the�gas�but�give�us�a�really�good�‑‑�

Boris�Johnson�MP�(Mayor�of�London):��I�think�you�mean�‘foot�on�the�pedal’!�

Valerie�Shawcross�CBE�AM:��Keep�your�foot�on�the�pedal,�then.��Give�us�a�really�good,�clear�technical�plan�
for�how�an�incoming�Mayor�can�actually�continue�this�without�a�break.��That�is�all�we�ask�for.��Thank�you,�
Mr�Mayor.�

Boris�Johnson�MP�(Mayor�of�London):��Yes.��You�certainly�shall�have�that.�

Valerie�Shawcross�CBE�AM:��Thank�you.�

Boris�Johnson�MP�(Mayor�of�London):��You�have�that�already.�

Valerie�Shawcross�CBE�AM:��You�will�write�to�me�with�that,�will�you?�

Boris�Johnson�MP�(Mayor�of�London):��I�would�be�happy�to�get�Andrew�[Andrew�Gilligan,�Mayor’s�Cycling�
Commissioner]�to�talk�to�you.�

Jennette�Arnold�OBE�AM�(Chair):��OK.��We�understand�that�you�are�going�to�exchange�information.��Let�us�
move�to�the�next�question.�

Compensation�for�train�delays�and�cancellations�
Question�Number:�2015/1961� � 08�Jun�2015� � Richard�Tracey�AM�
�
Joanne�McCartney�AM:��Thank�you.��My�final�question,�then.��A�resident�has�suggested�to�me�that�the�
reason�for�this�issue�with�the�carriages�is�because�TfL�was�not�able�to�inspect�them�before�it�inherited�the�
rolling�stock.��Do�you�know�if�that�is�correct?�

Boris�Johnson�MP�(Mayor�of�London):��I�do�not,�but�I�would�be�happy�to�get�back�to�you�about�that.�

Joanne�McCartney�AM:��Thank�you.��It�appears�to�me�that�in�future,�if�TfL�is�to�inherit�other�lines,�we�
cannot�have�this�situation�occurring�again.�

Boris�Johnson�MP�(Mayor�of�London):��Yes.��I�completely�understand�the�point�that�is�being�made�and�I�
just�repeat�the�message�to�passengers�in�that�part�of�northeast�London.��It�will�get�better.��We�are�on�it.��Our�
objective�is�to�invest�in�these�stations,�invest�in�these�services�and�invest�in�new�trains,�which�is�what�we�are�
going�to�do.��They�have�already�seen�a�reduction�in�their�fares,�to�be�fair.�

Joanne�McCartney�AM:��A�reduction�in�capacity�as�well,�which�is�not�good.�

Boris�Johnson�MP�(Mayor�of�London):��It�is�not�good.��I�accept�that.�

Page 37



Compensation�for�train�delays�and�cancellations�
Question�Number:�2015/1961� � 08�Jun�2015� � Richard�Tracey�AM�
�
Joanne�McCartney�AM:��Thank�you.��The�other�thing�I�want�to�ask�is�about�the�issue�of�compensation.��At�
the�moment,�looking�at�the�TfL�website,�it�says:�

“Apply�for�a�refund.��At�the�moment�you�can’t�apply�online�for�a�service�delay�refund�if�your�delayed�journey�
was�on�TfL�Rail�or�London�Overground�services�between�Liverpool�Street�and�Enfield�Town,�Cheshunt�and�
Chingford�...”�

I�am�going�to�ask�you�if�you�would�make�sure�that�every�station�on�that�line�has�a�notice�clearly�displayed�
apologising�to�customers�and�telling�them�exactly�how�they�can�apply�for�refunds,�given�that�online�it�is�not�
available.�

Boris�Johnson�MP�(Mayor�of�London):��If�they�are�delayed,�yes,�I�will�make�sure�that�we�do�something�to�
that�effect.�

Cyclists�killed�by�HGVs�
Question�Number:�2015/2042� � 03�Jul�2015� � Caroline�Pidgeon�AM�
�
Caroline�Pidgeon�MBE�AM:��I�would�like�that�to�be�soon�but�what�about�the�trial�of�a�rush-hour�ban?��Is�it�
something�you�will�consider?�

Boris�Johnson�MP�(Mayor�of�London):��Sorry,�on�peak�hour�lorries,�I�will�look�at�this.��I�have�to�tell�you�
that�this�is�something�that,�as�you�rightly�say,�TfL�has�traditionally�rejected�because�it�would�just�drive�lorries�
into�the�surrounding�periods�of�the�day�and�you�would�have�real�congestion.��You�would�have�all�sorts�of�
unseen�consequences.��You�would�have�lorry�drivers�flooring�it�‑‑�

Caroline�Pidgeon�MBE�AM:��You�will�look�at�it?�

Boris�Johnson�MP�(Mayor�of�London):��‑‑�flooring�it�to�beat�the�ban�and�causing�even�more�accidents.��All�
sorts�of�objections�like�that�are�raised.��However,�we�are�actively�studying�that�option�now.��I�can�tell�you�that.�

Caroline�Pidgeon�MBE�AM:��Fantastic.��I�really�go�with�that.�

Boris�Johnson�MP�(Mayor�of�London):��Whether�it�leads�to�a�trial�I�cannot�promise,�but�we�are�actively�
looking�at�it.�

Page 38



The�Night�Tube�
Question�Number:�2015/2225� � 06�Jul�2015� � Valerie�Shawcross�AM�
�
Andrew�Dismore�AM:��Can�you�tell�me�why�there�was�no�consultation�with�residents�whose�homes�back�on�
to�the�Northern�line�about�the�additional�noise�problems�that�emanate�overnight?�

Boris�Johnson�MP�(Mayor�of�London):��It�has�been�drawn�to�my�attention�that�one�of�the�impacts�of�the�
Night�Tube�may�be�extra�noise.��We�are�looking�into�that,�particularly�at�Baker�Street.��In�that�type�of�area,�I�
have�been�alerted�to�possible�consequences.��Murad�[Murad�Qureshi�AM]�drew�it�to�my�attention�last�time�and�
we�are�working�very�hard�to�mitigate�all�such�impacts�and�to�make�sure�that�the�unquestioned�benefits�of�the�
Night�Tube�do�not�disadvantage�some�people�in�the�city.�

Andrew�Dismore�AM:��You�did�not�actually�answer�my�question�about�why�there�was�no�consultation�with�
residents.�

Boris�Johnson�MP�(Mayor�of�London):��I�cannot�say.��I�am�not�certain�there�was�no�consultation.�

[...]��

Boris�Johnson�MP�(Mayor�of�London):��The�answer�will�turn�out�to�be�that�TfL�was�not�aware�of�a�very�
substantial�number�of�residents�who�might�be�so�affected.��We�are�now�getting�reports�of�this�and�thank�you�
for�drawing�the�complaints�of�your�constituents�to�my�attention.��We�will�obviously�be�doing�whatever�we�can�
to�mitigate�it.��I�have�to�say�that�in�eight�years�of�being�Mayor,�this�is�the�first�time�I�have�ever�had�any�protest�
from�any�of�you�about�nocturnal�noise�from�the�Tube.��Not�in�this�in�this�Question�Time.�

Andrew�Dismore�AM:��Frankly,�I�find�that�answer�incredible,�Mr�Mayor.��Are�you�simply�telling�me�that�TfL�
had�no�thought�about�the�impact�on�people�who�back�on�to�the�many�miles�of�over�ground�Tube�line�where�
they�are�going�to�be�disturbed�at�night?�

Boris�Johnson�MP�(Mayor�of�London):��What�I�have�been�saying�‑‑�

Andrew�Dismore�AM:��Are�you�seriously�telling�me�that�the�TfL�had�no�thought�about�it?��It�presumably�had�
no�thought�about�it�because�it�made�no�attempt�to�consult�people�in�the�first�place.��If�it�had�done,�it�would�
have�heard.�

Boris�Johnson�MP�(Mayor�of�London):��I�cannot�tell�you�about�the�consultations�that�were�made.�

Andrew�Dismore�AM:��There�were�not�any.�

Boris�Johnson�MP�(Mayor�of�London):��I�would�be�happy�to�get�back�to�you�on�that.��What�I�can�tell�you�is�
that�in�the�course�of�doing�this�job�for�a�long�time,�Night�Tube�noise�is�not�something�that�has�really�been�
raised�with�me,�but�I�am�listening�to�you�now�and�I�am�going�to�do�what�I�can�to�sort�it�out.��It�is�not�
something�that�has�been�raised�with�me�before.�

Page 39



Electric�vehicles�in�London�
Question�Number:�2015/2554� � 07�Sep�2015� � Stephen�Knight�AM�
�
Stephen�Knight�AM:��Can�I�ask�you�this?��What�assessment�has�TfL�made�of�the�possibility�in�the�short�to�
medium�term�of�converting�diesel�buses�to�run�on�compressed�natural�gas,�a�much�cleaner�fuel�than�diesel,�in�
order�to�rid�our�streets�of�diesel�buses�as�soon�as�we�possibly�can?�

Boris�Johnson�MP�(Mayor�of�London):��What�is�happening�on�buses�is�that�they�are�all�going�to�be�‑‑�

Stephen�Knight�AM:��No,�I�asked�specifically�about�converting�to�natural�gas.�

Boris�Johnson�MP�(Mayor�of�London):��I�am�not�aware,�particularly.�

Stephen�Knight�AM:��None�at�all?�

Boris�Johnson�MP�(Mayor�of�London):��The�plan�is�to�go�for�Euro�6�standards�or�better�‑‑�

Stephen�Knight�AM:��Will�you�ask�TfL�to�look�at�this�option?�

Boris�Johnson�MP�(Mayor�of�London):��They�have.��Believe�me,�they�have�and�‑‑�

Stephen�Knight�AM:��You�just�said�that�no�consideration�has�been�given�to�it.�

Boris�Johnson�MP�(Mayor�of�London):��I�do�not�believe�that�there�are�plans�to�go�forward�with�the�
conversion�of�our�current�fleet�of�buses�to�liquid�gas�or�natural�gas�‑‑�

Stephen�Knight�AM:��Please�could�you�write�to�me�with�a�copy�of�what�assessments�have�been�done?�

Boris�Johnson�MP�(Mayor�of�London):��‑‑�because�we�think�that�we�can�achieve�the�air�quality�benefits�in�
other�ways.��I�have�spelled�out�some�of�them.��When�you�get�the�Ultra�Low�Emission�Zone�(ULEZ)�in�‑‑�

Stephen�Knight�AM:��Could�you�ask�TfL,�please?�

Boris�Johnson�MP�(Mayor�of�London):��‑‑�you�will�have�much�cleaner�buses�running�in�the�centre�of�
London.�

Stephen�Knight�AM:��Mr�Mayor,�the�current�plans�seem�to�leave�our�streets�dominated�by�diesel�buses�for�
many�years�to�come.��You�have�said�that�TfL�has�looked�at�gas�bus�conversions�and�has�dismissed�it.��Please�
could�you�publish�or�ask�TfL�to�publish�its�assessment�of�doing�that?�

Boris�Johnson�MP�(Mayor�of�London):��I�would�be�very�happy,�Stephen,�to�do�that.�

Page 40



Electric�vehicles�in�London�
Question�Number:�2015/2554� � 07�Sep�2015� � Stephen�Knight�AM�
�
Caroline�Pidgeon�MBE�AM:��Then�what�I�wanted�to�ask�you�about.��Given�that�there�is�a�lack�of�availability�
at�the�moment�of�zero-emission�taxis�and�that�could�be�a�barrier�to�adoption�and�also�the�cost�of�them�‑�I�have�
heard�that�the�new�ones�are�looking�good,�but�the�cost�of�them�‑�would�you�consider�TfL�looking�at�procuring�
a�replacement�fleet�of�zero-emission-capable�taxis�directly�and�then�leasing�them�to�taxi�drivers,�much�the�
same�way�‑‑�

Boris�Johnson�MP�(Mayor�of�London):��Like�the�bus,�yes.�

Caroline�Pidgeon�MBE�AM:��‑‑�you�have�with�the�New�Bus�for�London,�in�order�to�get�the�prices�down�to�
get�that�real�hit�early�on�of�clean�vehicles�on�our�streets?�

Boris�Johnson�MP�(Mayor�of�London):��It�is�a�very�interesting�idea.��As�you�know,�we�have�£65�million�
from�the�Office�for�Low�Emission�Vehicles�(OLEV)�that�we�are�intending�to�use�to�subsidise�the�acquisition�of�
these�new�vehicles.��It�might�be�worth�considering�whether�we�can�use�our�finance�and�borrowing�ability�to�do�
just�that.��I�will�certainly�not�see�a�problem�with�looking�at�that.��It�may�not�be�possible�but�it�is�certainly�worth�
considering.�

Caroline�Pidgeon�MBE�AM:���It�seems�that�you�have�done�it�for�buses�and,�from�memory,�New�York�do�this�
for�its�taxi�fleet.��It�leases�them�out.��It�would�be�a�way�that�you�could�buy�them�quickly.��It�would�help�get�
through�the�system.��Otherwise,�we�are�going�to�be�looking�at�2033�before�the�taxi�fleet�is�completely�zero-
emission-capable.��I�would�like�you�to�seriously�put�this�to�TfL�and�see�if�it�can�find�a�way�to�make�this�work.�

Boris�Johnson�MP�(Mayor�of�London):��Yes,�I�shall.��I�did�not�know�it�was�being�done�in�New�York�and�we�
will�certainly�look�at�that�possibility,�although,�as�I�say,�I�would�not�want�to�commit�to�it�right�now.�

Caroline�Pidgeon�MBE�AM:��It�seems�a�good�option�to�try�to�clean�the�fleet�as�quickly�as�possible.��Thank�
you,�Mr�Mayor.�

Page 41



Environment�
�
Supreme�Court�Judgement�against�the�UK�government�over�breaches�of�EU�air�
pollution�limits�
Question�Number:�2015/1498� � 12�May�2015� � Jenny�Jones�AM�
Nicky�Gavron�AM:��Yes.��Good�morning.��I�agree�with�Assembly�Members�Jones�and�Qureshi�that�we�need�to�
expand�the�ULEZ�and�I�am�glad�you�are�now�considering�that�but�we�cannot�wait.��There�are�some�measures�
that�we�absolutely�have�to�have�very,�very�soon.��It�is�not�just�cars.��I�want�a�bit�of�a�preamble;�only�one�
question.��It�is�not�just�cars�that�use�roads.��It�is�schoolchildren.��It�happens�to�be�National�Walk�to�School�
Week.��All�over�London�now,�more�and�more�children�are�walking�to�school.��It�is�a�great�initiative.�

However,�the�issue�is�that�we�have�over�1,000�schools�on�or�near�polluted�roads.��There�is�new�scientific�
evidence�done�in�London�with�800�children�at�23�schools,�longitudinally,�that�shows�that�just�the�daily�walk�to�
and�from�school�for�half�an�hour�damages�children’s�lungs�and�stunts�their�growth.��We�used�to�push�safer�
routes�to�school�and�quite�rightly,�but�now�we�need�safe,�clean-air�routes�to�school.�

On�behalf�of�the�Labour�Group�-�and�coming�to�the�question�-�I�put�forward�an�amendment�to�your�budget�
[2015-16],�which�you�did�not�take�up.��It�said�that�this�year�you�should�be�piloting�clean-air�routes�to�school�
with�a�view�to�putting�a�much�bigger�budget�line�in�next�year.��My�question�is:�will�you�now�commit�to�
supporting�some�pilots�this�year�for�clean-air�routes�to�school�for�schoolchildren�in�primary�schools?�

[...]�

Nicky�Gavron�AM:��The�point�is�that�children�are�walking�along�very�polluted�roads.��They�have�to�find�other�
routes.��That�has�to�be�worked�out.��TfL�should�have�a�role�in�that.��Will�you�support�clean-air�routes�to�
school?�

Boris�Johnson�MP�(Mayor�of�London):��Yes,�of�course.��Just�going�back�to�what�I�was�saying,�TfL�‑‑�

Nicky�Gavron�AM:��It�is�not�doing�it�now.��Will�you�do�it?��Will�you�support�it?�

Boris�Johnson�MP�(Mayor�of�London):��‑‑�will�be,�I�am�sure,�happy�to�give�you�a�full�briefing�on�what�we�
do,�but�Surface�Transport�has�a�massive�programme�of�engagement�with�schools.��If�there�is�something�we�can�
learn�from�your�programme,�then�I�would�be�very�happy�to�do�so,�Nicky.��I�do�not�in�any�way�wish�to�dismiss�it.�

Page 42



Planning�and�Housing�
�
Homelessness�
Question�Number:�2014/4313� � 10�Nov�2014� � Jennette�Arnold�AM�
Jennette�Arnold�OBE�AM�(Deputy�Chair):��OK.��That�might�well�be�working�for�some�people.��I�am�glad�
you�are�agreed�that�the�situation�has�not�got�any�better�and�that�we�now�have�an�85%�increase�of�rough�
sleepers.��That�is�looking�from�2007/08�when�there�were�just�over�3,000�to�now�when�there�is�6,500.�

I�just�want�to�spend�the�next�few�minutes�drawing�to�your�attention�the�plight�of�London’s�young�people�who�
are�homeless.��I�want�to�know�if�you�know�that�many�young�people�who�are�homeless�through�no�fault�of�their�
own�use�your�bus�network�as�a�place�to�call�home�and�a�place�of�safety.��If�you�do,�would�you�agree�with�me�
that�is�something�that�has�to�be�stopped�because�it�is�totally�unacceptable�and�will�you�commit�to�revisiting�
the�work�of�the�Bus�Outreach�service�that�formed�part�of�the�Government’s�No�One�Left�Out�programme,�
which�was�stopped�about�two�years�ago?��It�cannot�be�acceptable�that�the�bus�service�becomes�the�home�and�
the�place�of�safety�for�our�homeless�children�of�this�city.�

Boris�Johnson�(Mayor�of�London):��I�will�certainly�have�a�look�at�that.��Obviously�the�impact�of�that�on�the�
bus�service�is�not�being�felt�because�the�crime�continues�to�be�very�low.��In�fact,�crime�has�fallen�by�45%�on�
buses,�but�I�will�certainly�look�at�what�is�happening.�

Carlton�Tavern�
Question�Number:�2015/1486� � 12�May�2015� � Steve�O'Connell�AM�
�
Steve�O’Connell�AM:��We�need�to�congratulate�Westminster�Council�and�the�Members�across�both�parties�to�
support�that�enforcement�action�in�giving�a�particularly�bloody�nose�to�the�developer.��Particularly�I�know�
Tom�[Tom�Copley�AM]�and�myself�are�very�keen�to�protect�pubs.��I�know�Tom�has�a�written�question�in�to�
you.��I�have�probably�no�doubt�that�the�developer�may�try�to�appeal�against�this�enforcement,�and�my�first�
point�to�you�is�could�you�try�to�ensure�that�any�support�you�can�give,�through�this�building,�in�support�of�
Westminster�Council�in�rebuffing�any�potential�appeal,�will�be�made�properly�available?�

Boris�Johnson�MP�(Mayor�of�London):��Yes.�

Steve�O’Connell�AM:��In�other�words,�would�you�be�able�to�support�Westminster�Council�in�any�given�way?�

Boris�Johnson�MP�(Mayor�of�London):��Absolutely.��I�will�support�them�morally�and�intellectually.��They�
are�completely�right�and�we�should�all�agree�to�make�use�of�this�pub�ourselves�in�order�to�keep�it�going.���

Page 43



Paving�over�front�gardens�
Question�Number:�2015/1669� � 08�Jun�2015� � Jenny�Jones�AM�
�
[...]�

Jenny�Jones�AM:��It�is�not�just�about�that;�there�are�also�things�you�can�do�just�as�Mayor.��For�example,�you�
could�in�fact�set�up�a�GLA�website�where�you�could�urge�people�not�to�pave�over�their�gardens�and�you�could�
give�them�advice�about�other�methods�of�creating�a�flat�surface�if�that�is�what�they�want.��Would�you�be�
prepared�to�do�that?�

Boris�Johnson�MP�(Mayor�of�London):��Look,�we�have�campaigned�a�huge�amount�on�greening�up�
London,�protecting�green�space�and�creating�more�green�space�and,�as�you�know,�by�2025�25%�of�London�will�
be�under�a�canopy�of�leaves.�

Jenny�Jones�AM:��Will�you�do�what�I�am�asking?�

[...]�

Boris�Johnson�MP�(Mayor�of�London):��Your�idea�of�helping�people�with�some�sort�of�website�is�a�good�
one.��I�will�look�at�what�we�already�have�and�possibly�what�would�be�most�useful�is�if�we�had�some�traffic�
offline�about�this,�Jenny.��If�you�want�to�do�a�joint�initiative�on�this,�I�am�very�receptive.�

Jenny�Jones�AM:��OK.��Great.��You�could�use�the�advertising�on�London�buses,�for�example,�to�draw�people’s�
attention�to�this.�

Boris�Johnson�MP�(Mayor�of�London):��Yes.��Everybody�always�wants�that�advertising�for�almost�every�
good�cause,�but�I�will�look�at�it.��I�will�look�at�it.�

Jenny�Jones�AM:��I�will�be�writing�to�you.��Thank�you.�

Viability�in�planning�decisions�
Question�Number:�2015/2221� � 06�Jul�2015� � Nicky�Gavron�AM�
�
Andrew�Boff�AM:��Would�you�take�action�to�end�the�confidentiality�of�viability�assessments?�

Boris�Johnson�MP�(Mayor�of�London):��I�would�have�to�take�advice�on�the�effect�of�that�and�whether�it�
would�have�the�benign�effects�that�we�want.�

Andrew�Boff�AM:��You�will�try?�

Boris�Johnson�MP�(Mayor�of�London):��I�will�certainly�discuss�it.��I�do�not�know�whether�it�would�have�the�
positive�effect�that�we�want.��

Andrew�Boff�AM:��There�are�no�good�arguments�for�confidentiality�of�viability�assessments�that�I�have�
heard.��I�would�welcome�you�submitting�some�to�me�that�make�any�sense�whatsoever.�

Boris�Johnson�MP�(Mayor�of�London):��I�am�willing�to�look�into�it.��What�I�do�not�want�to�do�is�introduce�
into�the�whole�planning�process,�unwittingly,�things�that�give�developers�an�excuse�not�to�go�ahead,�and�that�
is�always�the�problem.��I�would�not�want�to�see�that.�

Page 44



Policing�
�
Local�Policing�-�Resources�and�Visibility�
Question�Number:�2014/3658� � 13�Oct�2014� � Joanne�McCartney�AM�
Len�Duvall�AM:��Mr�Mayor,�on�a�rolling�programme,�let�me�help�you--�

Boris�Johnson�(Mayor�of�London):��‑‑�but�you�can�take�it�from�me�that,�as�crime�comes�down,�we�may�face�
the�possibility�that�we�are�getting�better�at�cracking�the�easier�crimes�and�therefore�the�sanction�detection�
rate�may�not�be�so�easy�to�bring�down.��I�will�undertake�to�go�back�and�look�at�the�figures�since�we�last�spoke�
and�see�what�success�we�have�been�having.��Failures�on�sanction�detection�have�not�been�brought�to�my�
attention�recently�by�MOPAC�but�I�am�certainly�happy�to�look�at�them.�

Len�Duvall�AM:��It�is�a�poor�record,�Mr�Mayor.��It�is�not�moving�in�the�way�that�maybe�it�should�be�moving.��
Really,�I�do�not�think�it�is�unreasonable�for�me�to�ask�what�progress�has�been�made�since�July.�

Boris�Johnson�(Mayor�of�London):��It�is�not�at�all�unreasonable�and�I�accept�it.��It�is�not�at�all�
unreasonable,�Len,�and�I�know�that�Londoners�want�to�see�criminals�punished.��They�want�to�see�the�mills�of�
justice�grind�small�and�they�should�be.��There�are�many�moving�parts�in�this,�not�all�of�which�are�directly�under�
the�control�of�the�Metropolitan�Police�Service�.�However�we�are�working�very�hard�to�bring�together�all�the�
parties�concerned�to�try�to�make�sure�that�criminals�get�properly�caught�and�punished.�

Len�Duvall�AM:��Mr�Mayor,�will�you�write�to�Members�of�this�Assembly�just�outlining�that�progress�and�what�
steps�you�are�going�to�take?�

Boris�Johnson�(Mayor�of�London):��I�shall.��I�am�more�than�happy�to�do�that.��Just�do�not�be�in�any�doubt,�
Len,�that�we�do�take�sanction�detection�extremely�seriously.��As�crime�has�been�falling,�our�focus�has�moved�
on�to�that�and�we�want�to�do�better.��I�understand�your�impatience.�

Local�Policing�-�Resources�and�Visibility�
Question�Number:�2014/3658� � 13�Oct�2014� � Joanne�McCartney�AM�
�
Boris�Johnson�(Mayor�of�London):��The�Local�Policing�Model�(LPM)�is�barely�a�year�old�and�we�are�still�
drawing�conclusions�about�its�operation.��However,�just�so�you�know,�we�are�doing�a�review�and,�as�soon�as�we�
have�more�to�give�you�about�the�changes�that�we�think�are�necessary,�we�will�of�course�share�them.��

The�objective�is,�as�you�know,�to�get�more�officers�into�neighbourhood�teams�and�to�get�more�visibility.��I�
know�you�have�a�concern�about�visibility�in�some�areas�and,�where�we�can�address�those,�we�will.��

Joanne�McCartney�AM:��Thank�you.��Mr�Mayor,�we�were�told�by�the�Deputy�Commissioner�at�our�last�Police�
and�Crime�Committee�that�the�Metropolitan�Police�Service’s�review�into�the�LPM�was�going�to�the�
management�board�last�Tuesday�and�that�it�would�be�sent�straight�away�the�following�day�to�the�Mayor’s�
Office�for�Policing�and�Crime�(MOPAC).��Have�you�actually�seen�that?��

Boris�Johnson�(Mayor�of�London):��I�have�not�seen�it,�I�am�sorry�to�say,�but�as�soon�as�we�have�something�
to�give�you,�we�shall.��

Page 45



Local�Policing�-�Resources�and�Visibility�
Question�Number:�2014/3658� � 13�Oct�2014� � Joanne�McCartney�AM�
�
Joanne�McCartney�AM:��Thank�you.��Mr�Mayor,�can�I�just�check�a�few�things�with�you,�though?��When�we�
changed�to�the�LPM,�you�assured�Londoners�that�the�minimum�they�would�have�per�ward�would�be�one�police�
constable�(PC)�and�one�police�community�support�officer�(PCSO).��Is�that�still�a�commitment�that�you�are�
prepared�to�make?��

Boris�Johnson�(Mayor�of�London):��The�LPM�guarantees�one�PC�and�one�PCSO�per�ward�and�guarantees�
that�they�will�not�be�extracted�except�for�exceptional�events.��

Joanne�McCartney�AM:��OK.��Is�that�a�commitment�you�are�prepared�to�make�going�forward�and�that�you�
are�not�going�to�strip�that�down�further?��

Boris�Johnson�(Mayor�of�London):��Yes.��Just�so�you�know,�in�Haringey�and�Enfield,�which�you�represent,�
there�has�been�an�increase�in�officers,�for�instance�‑‑��

Joanne�McCartney�AM:��I�am�asking�about�the�minimum�per�ward.��Are�you�guaranteeing�going�forward�that�
that�one�PC�and�one�PCSO�will�be�the�minimum?��

Boris�Johnson�(Mayor�of�London):��Yes,�that�is�the�commitment�under�the�LPM.��

Joanne�McCartney�AM:��OK.��You�are�going�to�have�that�commitment�going�forward?��

Boris�Johnson�(Mayor�of�London):��To�the�best�of�my�knowledge,�that�is�the�intention.��

Local�Policing�-�Resources�and�Visibility�
Question�Number:�2014/3658� � 13�Oct�2014� � Joanne�McCartney�AM�
�
Joanne�McCartney�AM:��Hold�on.��I�have�already�quoted�at�the�last�meeting�to�you�that�residents�
associations�are�complaining�that�their�policing�teams�do�not�report�back�to�them�anymore�and�that�they�often�
cancel�attendance�at�very�short�notice.�

I�have�tried�to�find�out�by�putting�Mayor’s�Questions�to�you�how�many�officers�I�have�in�my�wards�who�are�
dedicated�and�how�many�are�in�this�flexible�number�that�can�move�around.��You�have�been�unable�to�give�that�
to�me,�saying�that�the�Metropolitan�Police�Service�does�not�hold�that�data�centrally.��It�begs�the�question�to�
me�how�you�can�know�what�is�going�on�and�monitor�it�if�the�Metropolitan�Police�Service�is�not�actually�
providing�that�‑‑�

Boris�Johnson�(Mayor�of�London):��Presumably,�you�have�raised�it�with�the�Borough�Commander,�have�
you?�

Joanne�McCartney�AM:��Yes,�but�I�am�asking�‑‑�

Boris�Johnson�(Mayor�of�London):��What�has�he�told�you?�

Joanne�McCartney�AM:��Hold�on.��I�am�asking�across�London�and�I�am�told�that�the�Metropolitan�Police�
Service�does�not�hold�it�centrally.��How�can�they�monitor�and�how�can�you�then�monitor�them�and�have�
oversight?��Will�you�look�into�that,�Mr�Mayor?��It�seems�to�be�a�gap�in�the�data�collection.�

Boris�Johnson�(Mayor�of�London):��I�am�interested�by�what�you�say.��All�I�can�say�is�that�in�the�figures�I�
have�-�and�I�have�figures�for�Enfield�and�Haringey�-�for�the�officers�appointed�to�neighbourhoods,�for�

Page 46



instance,�in�Enfield�there�will�be�by�next�year�144�compared�to�61�in�2011.��That�is�an�increase�of�136%.�

Joanne�McCartney�AM:��You�are�talking�about�neighbourhoods�as�a�whole.��Mr�Mayor,�I�think�you�are�
missing�the�point.�

Boris�Johnson�(Mayor�of�London):��In�Haringey,�there�will�be�an�increase�from�55�to�144�and�that�is�a�
162%�increase.��What�we�are�trying�to�do�is�to�get�officers�out�on�the�streets.�

Joanne�McCartney�AM:��Mr�Mayor,�I�think�you�are�missing�the�point.��We�have�this�number�of�officers,�but�
the�Metropolitan�Police�Service�does�not�hold�data�centrally�as�to�how�many�of�them�are�dedicated�to�wards�
and�how�many�of�them�are�in�a�flexible�model.��We�know�that�they�are�abstracted.��I�want�that�data�‑‑�

Boris�Johnson�(Mayor�of�London):��Of�course,�one�of�the�things�that�we�have�been�very�clear�on�is�that�
you�have�to�give�Borough�Commanders�some�flexibility�as�to�how�they�run�their�SNTs.��That�is�the�way�to�
bring�down�crime.��I�repeat�what�I�said:�crime�is�coming�down�very�substantially.��The�commitment�that�we�
have�made�is�that�there�will�be�one�PC�and�one�PCSO�in�every�ward.�

I�am�very�happy,�obviously,�to�find�out�from�your�Borough�Commanders�-�and�I�am�sure�you�can�do�it�yourself,�
but�I�am�very�happy�to�do�it�on�your�behalf�-�the�composition�of�the�SNTs�in�your�constituency.�

Child�Sexual�Abuse�
Question�Number:�2014/3662� � 13�Oct�2014� � Fiona�Twycross�AM�
�
Andrew�Boff�AM:��Following�on�from�that,�Mr�Mayor,�can�I�recommend�most�strongly�that�you�do�look�at�
the�initiative�being�taken�by�three�London�boroughs�-�Croydon,�Southwark�and�Lambeth�-�with�regard�to�the�
information-sharing�over�existing�Social�Services�casework�that�they�have�with�a�view�to�identifying�those�
victims�of�trafficking?��Often�those�victims�of�trafficking�cannot�really�be�seen�unless�you�have�been�trained�to�
see�that.��Croydon,�particularly,�has�developed�some�ground-breaking�training�programmes�which�need�to�be�
distributed�to�the�rest�of�London,�quite�frankly,�in�order�to�inform�professionals�-�and�indeed�hotels�may�come�
into�this�as�well�-�of�the�very�clear�signs�that�there�are�of�victims�of�trafficking,�which�obviously�includes�child�
sexual�abuse.��If�you�can�take�that�forward�‑‑�

Boris�Johnson�(Mayor�of�London):��I�will�make�sure�that�is�built�into�the�MOPAC�consideration.�

Andrew�Boff�AM:��Thank�you�very�much..�

Rise�of�Muslim�Hate�Crime�in�London�
Question�Number:�2014/3663� � 13�Oct�2014� � Murad�Qureshi�AM�
�
Murad�Qureshi�AM:��Yes,�that�is�true.��There�are�two�aspects.��No�doubt�a�lot�of�it�is�aimed�at�women.��
Perpetrators�by-and-large�are�men�and�it�is�being�targeted�at�visible�Muslim�women.��I�just�want�to�be�sure�
you�are�aware�of�that.��If�you�do�not�have�the�time�to�respond�now,�if�you�could�write�to�me�addressing�that�
issue,�it�would�be�very�useful.�

Boris�Johnson�(Mayor�of�London):��That�is�interesting.��That�is�not�part�of�the�details�I�have�about�that.��I�
am�not�aware�of�that�phenomenon.��I�will�dig�into�it�and�see�what�information�we�can�provide.�

Page 47



Rise�of�Muslim�Hate�Crime�in�London�
Question�Number:�2014/3663� � 13�Oct�2014� � Murad�Qureshi�AM�
�
Murad�Qureshi�AM:��Thank�you.��The�other�aspect�is�that�I�suspect�-�and�this�has�been�backed�up�by�
academic�research�-�that�there�is�a�fair�amount�of�under-reporting,�like�with�other�types�of�crime,�sexual�or�
whatever.��There�has�been�a�recent�study�done�by�Teesside�University�which�showed�clearly�there�were�about�
700-odd�incidents�over�a�nine-month�period�between�2013�and�2014.��They�concluded�that�under-reporting�
remains�a�challenge�in�analysing�the�crime�data,�particularly�for�hate�crime.�

Boris�Johnson�(Mayor�of�London):��In�London?�

Murad�Qureshi�AM:��Again,�I�suspect�you�are�not�going�to�be�able�to�respond,�but�if�you�could�ask�the�
Commissioner�or�MOPAC�to�meet�me�or�to�write�to�me�in�order�to�outline�their�course�of�action,�I�would�be�
most�grateful.�

Boris�Johnson�(Mayor�of�London):��I�will�certainly�do�that.��You�mentioned�the�Edgware�Road.��This�year�
we�saw�a�30%�decrease�in�Islamophobic�offending�in�the�Edgware�Road�because�we�led�a�specific�operation�
there.��

One�of�the�interesting�things�actually�has�been�that�we�thought�there�might�be�a�spike�in�this�type�of�
Islamophobic�incident�following�the�‘Jihadi�John’�videos�and�that�kind�of�thing.��Actually,�that�did�not�
happen.��It�is�wonderful�that�actually�people�are�making�the�distinction�between�Islam�and�this�foul�perversion�
of�Islam�that�is�publicised�by�terrorists.�

Murad�Qureshi�AM:��Thank�you.�

Meeting�London’s�Current�and�Future�Policing�Needs�
Question�Number:�2014/4962� � 24�Nov�2014� � Joanne�McCartney�AM�
�
Murad�Qureshi�AM:��Mr�Mayor,�you�can�say�that�but�I�can�give�you�instances�where�people�have�been�
burgled�and�whereas�before�they�have�gone�to�a�local�police�station�they�have�ended�up�going�to�the�other�
end�of�the�borough�in�Belgravia�to�pursue�their�insurance�claims.��I�am�not�sure�that�is�offering�the�residential�
parts�of�Westminster�the�service�that�they�may�get�in�other�parts�of�town.��That�is�the�premise�of�my�question.��
Can�I�also�move�on�to�--�

Boris�Johnson�(Mayor�of�London):��If�you�have�particular�evidence�of�people�having�to�travel�a�great�
distance�to�get�to�police�station,�obviously�we�will�look�at�that.��As�I�said�in�my�earlier�answer,�it�is�difficult�for�
me�to�describe�the�kind�of�provision�that�people�have�in�that�part�of�the�city�off�the�top�of�my�head�but�we�
would�be�more�than�happy�to�come�back�with�greater�detail.�

Page 48



Violent�Crime�in�London�
Question�Number:�2014/4963� � 24�Nov�2014� � Tony�Arbour�AM�
�
Andrew�Boff�AM:��Thank�you,�Mr�Mayor.��I�mean�you�will�forgive�us�for�concentrating�on�this�particular�area�
because�our�job�as�Assembly�Members�is�to�see�where�it�is�going�wrong,�not�where�it�is�often�going�right.��
While�the�decline�in�overall�reported�crime�is�welcome,�it�is�disturbing�that�we�have�these�particular�categories�
increasing.�

I�wondered�if�you�would�be�supportive�of�the�recommendations�in�a�report�published�by�the�Greater�London�
Authority�(GLA)�Conservatives�in�June�called�On�the�Wagon,�whereby�we�wanted�to�see�a�doubling�of�the�
penalty�notice�for�drunk�and�disorderly�behaviour�from�£90�to�£180.��Would�you�be�supportive�of�that?�

Boris�Johnson�(Mayor�of�London):��That�sounds�interesting.��If�that�would�make�a�big�difference�to�this�
kind�of�crime�I�would�certainly�be�willing�to�look�at�that.��As�you�know,�one�of�the�things�we�have�tried�is�the�
alcohol�detector�anklets�that�we�are�trialling�out�in�Croydon�I�think�to�stop�people�drinking�again�and�being�
responsible�again�for�domestic�abuse.��It�may�be�that�such�a�measure�would�be�useful�also�in�fighting�domestic�
VWI�because�we�think�that�the�increase�in�reporting�of�domestic�VWI�is�responsible�for�about�25%�of�this�spike�
that�we�are�seeing.��Anyway,�I�am�very�happy�to�look�at�it.�

Violent�Crime�in�London�
Question�Number:�2014/4963� � 24�Nov�2014� � Tony�Arbour�AM�
�
Joanne�McCartney�AM:��I�want�to�come�back�to�the�issue�of�the�rate�of�violent�crime�and�I�heard�and�I�have�
asked�questions�of�the�Mayor,�I�think�the�last�three�Mayor’s�questions,�about�what�is�driving�this�increase.��I�
would�just�like�to�comment�on�something�Andrew�Boff�[AM]�said�about�domestic�violence,�undoubtedly�part�
of�that�is�the�increase�in�recorded�domestic�violence,�however�I�am�hearing�from�my�boroughs�it�is�about�an�
increase�in�reporting,�however�also�about�an�increase.�

Boris�Johnson�(Mayor�of�London):��About�actual�domestic�violence,�yes.�

Joanne�McCartney�AM:��Therefore�I�was�wondering�if�either�the�MPS�or�perhaps�the�Mayor,�in�your�group�
you�have�that�look�at�violence�against�women�and�girls,�could�do�some�work�to�try�to�get�to�the�bottom�of�
this.��I�know�it�is�a�difficult�topic,�however�would�you�commit�to�doing�that?�

Boris�Johnson�(Mayor�of�London):��I�think�we�should�and�I�think�we�should�look�at�that�through�the�
Violence�Against�Women�and�Girls�Strategy�and�we�should�be�talking�to�all�the�rape�crisis�centres,�all�the�
organisations�across�London,�that�are�taking�in�women�and�girls�and�hearing�their�stories.��I�have�already�said�
this;�it�is�not�a�good�enough�reason�just�to�say�that�there�is�more�reporting�of�it.��That�does�not�mean�that�we�
can�ignore�it.��It�could�be�that�it�also�reflects�some�social�changes�that�are�going�on,�some�phenomenon�that�
we�need�to�understand�better,�and�that�is�not�showing�up�in�other�crime�types,�and�that�is�--�

Joanne�McCartney�AM:��Therefore�can�I�say�that�is�a�commitment�from�you�that�you�will�get�that�work�
done?�

Boris�Johnson�(Mayor�of�London):��I�certainly�think�we�should�because�I�have�now�heard�from�several�
people�that�they�are�suspicious�about�this�glib�assertion�that�it�is�just�reporting.��I�think�we�need�to�dig�deeper�
into�that�and�see�what�is�really�going�on.�

Page 49



Cuts�to�Policing�
Question�Number:�2015/0912� � 16�Mar�2015� � Joanne�McCartney�AM�
�
Andrew�Dismore�AM:��The�last�question�was�this.��What�percentage�of�burglaries�in�Barnet�resulted�in�a�
criminal�prosecution�last�year?�

[…]�

Boris�Johnson�(Mayor�of�London):��The�answer�is�that�I�am�very�happy�to�write�to�you,�Andrew,�with�the�
detail�and�the�breakdown�of�criminal�prosecutions�of�burglaries�in�Barnet.��However,�overall�crime�in�Barnet,�as�
indeed�crime�in�London,�has�come�down�very�substantially�not�just�over�the�last�four�years�but�over�the�last�
seven�years�and�you�‑‑�

Andrew�Dismore�AM:��That�is�not�what�your�figures�show.�

Boris�Johnson�(Mayor�of�London):��No,�that�is�not�true.�

Public�order�police�officers�and�Body-worn�video�cameras�
Question�Number:�2015/1482� � 12�May�2015� � Roger�Evans�AM�
�
Andrew�Dismore�AM:��On�the�issue�of�public�order,�I�wrote�to�you�yesterday�about�the�plans�of�anti-Semitic�
and�far-right�groups�to�hold�a�rally�in�Golders�Green�in�January�specifically�aimed�against�the�Jewish�
community.��It�is�clearly�very�provocative�and�threatening�in�the�wake�of�what�happened�in�Paris�and�
Copenhagen�and�the�significant�rise�in�anti-Semitic�attacks�in�London�over�the�last�year.��There�has�to�be�a�real�
risk�of�disorder�and�violence�against�Jewish�community�businesses�and�the�local�community.��What�will�you�do�
to�try�to�deal�with�this,�and�in�particular�to�try�to�stop�the�rally�taking�place?�

Boris�Johnson�MP�(Mayor�of�London):��Thank�you�for�writing�to�me�and�thank�you�for�taking�it�up.��I�will�
get�on�to�it�immediately�and�we�will�see�what�we�can�do.��As�you�know,�we�do�not�generally�like�to�ban�public�
demonstrations�or�rallies�except�where�absolutely�necessary,�though�in�the�case�of�inciting�anti-Semitic�hatred�
or�violence,�that�is�plainly�intolerable�in�our�city,�and�we�will�see�whether�it�meets�those�criteria.�

Knife�crime�in�London�
Question�Number:�2015/1562� � 19�May�2015� � Caroline�Pidgeon�AM�
�
Caroline�Pidgeon�MBE�AM:��[...]�I�have�asked�you,�Mr�Mayor,�previously�about�ensuring�accident�and�
emergency�(A&E)�departments�in�London�share�non-confidential�data�with�the�police�to�help�reduce�violent�
crime.�

Boris�Johnson�MP�(Mayor�of�London):��Yes,�I�remember�you�saying�this.�

Caroline�Pidgeon�MBE�AM:��After�I�questioned�you�last�year,�you�wrote�to�all�the�chief�executives�of�
London�hospital�trusts�to�encourage�them�to�adopt�this�model.��I�am�wondering�how�satisfied�you�were�with�
the�responses�you�received�and�perhaps�you�can�let�us�know�now�how�many�A&E�departments�are�now�sharing�
this�data�with�the�police?�

Boris�Johnson�MP�(Mayor�of�London):��Caroline,�I�would�be�very�happy�to.��First�of�all,�perhaps�I�could�just�
say�how�very�strongly�I�support�what�the�Commissioner�has�said�and�his�general�approach�is�right.��It�is�
important�to�stress�with�knife�crime�that�we�are�doing�better�than�we�were,�but�it�is�absolutely�vital�not�to�be�
complacent�about�this.��There�will�be�a�lot�of�action�now�on�this�front�to�make�sure�that�what�the�
Commissioner�described,�rightly,�as�a�blip�does�not�become�a�trend�and�that�we�really�get�a�handle�on�this.�

Page 50



Caroline�Pidgeon�MBE�AM:��In�terms�of�the�A&E�departments�‑‑�

Boris�Johnson�MP�(Mayor�of�London):��I�am�sure�that�the�Commissioner�will�be�wanting�to�use�the�full�
panoply�of�measures�that�he�brought�very�powerfully�into�effect�with�Operation�Big�Wing�in�2011.�

Caroline�Pidgeon�MBE�AM:��OK.��We�are�talking,�firstly,�specifically�about�the�A&E�departments.�

Boris�Johnson�MP�(Mayor�of�London):��On�A&E,�another�point�about�VWI�is�that�the�police�figures�that�
we�are�seeing�are�not�necessarily�being�corroborated�by�the�A&E�statistics�and�by�the�numbers�of�victims�
presenting�at�A&E.��That�is�an�anomaly�that�we�are�trying�to�get�to�the�bottom�of.��On�your�specific�question�
about�the�number�‑‑�

Caroline�Pidgeon�MBE�AM:��Yes,�that�is�what�I�asked.�

Boris�Johnson�MP�(Mayor�of�London):��‑‑�of�hospitals�that�have�responded,�I�am�afraid�I�do�not�have�that�
data�with�me�now.��I�would�be�very�happy,�Caroline,�to�get�back�to�you�on�that.�

Caroline�Pidgeon�MBE�AM:��OK,�but�given�I�do�not�think�yet�we�have�all�A&E�departments�sharing�this�data�
and�given�knife�crime�at�the�moment�is�slightly�starting�to�increase�and�we�are�concerned�about�it�and�given�
1,000�people�a�month�are�victims�of�knife�crime�in�London,�will�you�now�call�a�summit�to�get�together�at�City�
Hall�all�the�key�hospital�trusts�and�the�partners�to�find�a�way�forward�on�this?��We�have�talked�about�this�for�
years.��We�know�the�Cardiff�model�works.��Sharing�this�data�led�to�a�42%�reduction�in�violent�crime.��It�would�
be�great�if�you�could�take�a�lead�on�this.�

Boris�Johnson�MP�(Mayor�of�London):��Yes.��As�you�know,�we�have�written�to�them�all�and,�if�you�had�
given�me�specific�notice�of�that�aspect�‑‑�

Caroline�Pidgeon�MBE�AM:��I�am�surprised�your�office�did�not�pick�up�on�that.�

Boris�Johnson�MP�(Mayor�of�London):��‑‑�of�the�problem�that�you�wish�to�be�enlightened�about,�I�could�
certainly�have�provided�it.��However,�you�are�going�to�have�to�forgive�me.��I�will�get�back�to�you�later�about�
the�exact�responses�that�we�have�had.�

Page 51



Domestic�and�Sexual�Violence�
Question�Number:�2015/1746� � 08�Jun�2015� � Joanne�McCartney�AM�
�
[...]�

Joanne�McCartney�AM:��Could�you�make�sure�you�have�that�conversation�with�the�Commissioner�the�next�
time�you�meet�him?��It�is�vital.�

The�other�thing�we�have�heard�is�that�funding�from�the�Government�for�ISVAs�actually�ended�this�year�with�
only�five�organisations�in�London�receiving�Government�funding�directly.��Given�that�ISVAs�are�highly�
recommended�as�economically�viable,�particularly�because�they�ensure�that�cases�actually�proceed�to�Court�
and�perpetrators�are�actually�caught�and�hopefully�prevented�from�further�crimes,�would�you�support�
increasing�their�number,�firstly?�

Boris�Johnson�MP�(Mayor�of�London):��Yes.�

Joanne�McCartney�AM:��Yes?��Excellent.�

Boris�Johnson�MP�(Mayor�of�London):��I�have�told�you.��The�Rape�Crisis�Centres�also,�by�the�way,�help�to�
support�ISVAs�and�those�going�through�the�criminal�justice�system.��The�London�Crime�Prevention�Fund�is�
there�to�help�local�authorities.��We�are�putting�money�into�this�at�the�moment.��What�I�will�undertake�is�to�talk�
to�Bernard�[Sir�Bernard�Hogan-Howe�QPM,�Commissioner�of�Police�of�the�Metropolis]�about�his�remarks�to�
you�about�the�‑‑�

Joanne�McCartney�AM:��It�was�actually�his�response�in�writing�to�Dame�Elish’s�report.�

Boris�Johnson�MP�(Mayor�of�London):��Forgive�me;�I�will�talk�to�him�about�his�response�to�
Dame�Elish�Angiolini’s�report.��I�will�see�how�he�would�quantify�that�need�and�what�he�would�like�us�to�do�by�
way�of�funding�to�meet�this�and�what�sort�of�a�priority�we�need�to�give�it.�

[...]�

Joanne�McCartney�AM:��Yes.��ISVAs�deal�particularly�with�the�trauma�of�very�serious�rape�and�sexual�
violence�and�they�are�very�particular.��Will�you�agree�to�do�that�review�through�MOPAC?�

Boris�Johnson�MP�(Mayor�of�London):��So�do�IDVAs,�to�be�fair.�

Joanne�McCartney�AM:��Exactly,�yes.��There�is�overlap�but�you�do�need�those�specialist�ones�as�well.��Will�
you�commit�to�doing�that�review?�

Boris�Johnson�MP�(Mayor�of�London):��I�am�grateful�to�you�for�raising�it.��I�will�certainly�commit�to�
ensuring�that�we�are�spending�enough�on�ISVAs�and�IDVAs�and�everybody�in�that�field�and�I�will�make�sure�
that�MOPAC�writes�to�you,�Joanne.��I�will�write�to�you�with�an�account�of�how�we�are�doing�and�what�we�are�
doing�and�whether�I�think�it�is�adequate.�

Page 52



Police�Funding�
Question�Number:�2015/2750� � 07�Sep�2015� � Joanne�McCartney�AM�
�
Joanne�McCartney�AM:��Yes,�we�entirely�agree�with�that,�Mr�Mayor.��In�the�consultation�that�the�
Home�Office�is�doing�about�replacing�the�policing�formula,�under�various�scenarios�it�has�the�MPS�budget�
reducing�by�up�to�43%,�which�obviously�decimates�London’s�police�as�we�know�it.��These�figures�are�not�being�
given�out�as�part�of�the�consultation.��Therefore�police�forces�are�being�asked�to�respond�to�a�consultation�
where�the�Home�Office�is�refusing�to�release�the�data�that�lies�behind�the�changes.��

The�Police�and�Crime�Commissioners�Treasurers’�Society�has�come�up�with�possible�scenarios�that�lead�to�that�
43%�possibility�for�the�MPS.��The�Police�and�Crime�Commissioners�of�the�West�Midlands�and�Northumbria�
have�stated�that�this�indicates�a�shift�away�from�city�policing�to�rural.�

Boris�Johnson�MP�(Mayor�of�London):��Yes�--�

Joanne�McCartney�AM:��They�have�said�that�they�are�investigating�the�possibility�of�legal�action�against�the�
Home�Office.��Obviously,�in�your�position�as�Police�and�Crime�Commissioner�of�the�major�police�force�in�the�
country,�would�you�talk�to�those�two�Police�Commissioners�and�others�who�are�like‑minded�and�talk�about�
what�you�can�do�together,�perhaps�resorting�to�legal�action?��Otherwise,�unless�you�take�the�lead�in�this,�we�
could�be�looking�at�a�disaster�for�our�police�funding.�

Boris�Johnson�MP�(Mayor�of�London):��I�share�that�concern.��You�may�have�had�a�copy�of�the�letter�I�have�
written�to�Theresa�May�[Rt�Hon�Theresa�May�MP,�Home�Secretary]�on�this.��

Joanne�McCartney�AM:��No,�I�have�not.�

Boris�Johnson�MP�(Mayor�of�London):��We�are�certainly�very�happy�to�email�that�to�you.��We�can�send�
that�letter.�

Police�Funding�
Question�Number:�2015/2750� � 07�Sep�2015� � Joanne�McCartney�AM�
�
Joanne�McCartney�AM:��A�final�question:�will�you�talk�to�the�[Police�and�Crime]�Commissioners�of�the�
West�Midlands�and�Northumbria�and�any�other�like‑minded�Commissioner�who�wants�to�come�together?��A�
powerful�group�would�be�very�helpful.���

Boris�Johnson�MP�(Mayor�of�London):��I�certainly�will�ensure�that�we�have�contact.��MOPAC�is�already�in�
contact�with�Tony�Lloyd[Police�and�Crime�Commissioner,�Greater�Manchester]�and�with�the�Commissioner�of�
the�West�Midlands.�

Joanne�McCartney�AM:��Vera�Baird�[Police�and�Crime�Commissioner,�Northumbria],�yes.�

Boris�Johnson�MP�(Mayor�of�London):��We�are�not�yet�at�the�stage�of�taking�legal�action.��I�do�not�
exclude�it�but�I�want�to�make�it�clear�that�at�this�point�in�time�that�this�is�something�that�we�think�is�an�urgent�
political�concern�at�the�moment.��

Page 53



DBS�Checks�-�MPS�Vacancies�
Question�Number:�2015/2752� � 07�Sep�2015� � Valerie�Shawcross�AM�
�
Valerie�Shawcross�CBE�AM:��Mr�Mayor,�I�am�not�pleading�for�deregulation.��We�are�talking�about�people�
who�have�been�operational�in�their�professional�roles,�some�of�them�for�a�very�long�time.��

The�taxi�drivers�who�were�here�-�and�they�were�not�here�at�our�behest;�they�organised�this�-�had�an�
international�day�of�protest�by�taxi�drivers�going�on.��One�of�the�things�they�issued�in�their�press�release�this�
morning�-�which�I�had�this�morning�-�is�that�they�would�like�to�see�a�resumption�of�the�issuing�of�temporary�
licences�to�existing�taxi�drivers�who�are�waiting�for�their�DBS�check�to�come�through,�through�no�fault�of�their�
own.��That�used�to�be�the�practice�within�TfL.��They�find�it,�understandably,�incredibly�unsympathetic�of�TfL�to�
have�taken�away�that�temporary�cover�facility�in�a�way�that�causes�them�problems.��There�may�be�technical�
issues�but�it�could�be�something�under�the�current�legislation�that�you�could�do�to�ease�the�situation�for�
people�who�are�literally�running�into�problems.�

Boris�Johnson�MP�(Mayor�of�London):��Frankly,�that�sounds�like�an�extremely�positive�idea.�

Valerie�Shawcross�CBE�AM:��It�was�one�of�their�proposals.�

Boris�Johnson�MP�(Mayor�of�London):��I�will�immediately�ask�the�MPS�to�see�if�it�can�issue�temporary�DBS�
licences.��It�may�be�one�of�those�things�where�TfL�needs�the�MPS�to�give�the�go-ahead.��I�will�have�to�get�
onto�that�straightaway.�

Valerie�Shawcross�CBE�AM:��As�a�temporary�measure.��Thank�you,�Chairman.��Thank�you.�

The�Impact�of�Money�Laundering�on�Housing�in�London�
Question�Number:�2015/2753� � 07�Sep�2015� � Murad�Qureshi�AM�
�
Murad�Qureshi�AM:��Can�I�make�my�final�point?��Will�you,�as�Mayor,�support�Transparency�International’s�
recommendation�that�estate�agents�should�also�exert�due�diligence�checks�on�the�purchasers�of�properties�and�
not�just�sellers?��That�is�one�thing�it�thinks�is�useful.��At�the�moment�estate�agents�only�do�a�due-diligence�
check�on�sellers.��It�wants�to�see�this�being�done�on�purchasers�at�the�top�end�of�the�market�at�least.��

Boris�Johnson�MP�(Mayor�of�London):��Due�diligence�done�by�estate�agents?�

Murad�Qureshi�AM:��Yes.��It�is�actually�supported�by�the�National�Estate�Agency.��

Boris�Johnson�MP�(Mayor�of�London):��Again,�what�you�really�need�to�have�is�transparency�about�who�is�
buying�these�properties.��You�need�to�know�who�they�are.��If�it�can�be�done�without�completely�burdening�
estate�agents�with�the�kind�of�detective�work�for�which�they�are�simply�not�equipped�then,�yes,�I�would�
certainly�support�it.��

Murad�Qureshi�AM:��That�is�what�I�think�Transparency�[International]�need�from�you.�

Page 54



Business�and�Enterprise�
�
Outer�London�small�business�premises�
Question�Number:�2015/1258� � 12�May�2015� � Nicky�Gavron�AM�
Nicky�Gavron�AM:��That�is�very�good�to�hear.��There�is�a�saving�grace�-�you�know�that,�do�you�not�-�because�
this�policy�is�due�to�expire�in�2016.��It�is�a�three-year�policy.��Unfortunately,�the�Government�came�in�last�
summer�with�a�new�consultation,�saying�that�they�wanted�to�turn�over�the�CAZ�exemption�and�they�wanted�to�
make�permanent�office�permitted�development�right�across�the�country,�and�of�course�including�the�whole�of�
London.��You�are�now�in�a�better�position�even�than�you�were�before:�you�are�now�in�Government�you�are�a�
member�of�the�Government;�you�are�in�the�political�Cabinet.��You�have�a�great�opportunity,�because�that�has�
not�been�brought�forward.��That�consultation�has�not�been�answered.���

Boris�Johnson�MP�(Mayor�of�London):��I�will�look�at�it.��

Nicky�Gavron�AM:��Wait�a�minute.��It�has�not�been�brought�forward,�and�we�are�all�very�concerned�that�it�will�
be.��It�is�going�to�be�absolutely�catastrophic�for�London’s�economy�if�this�goes�through,�and�you�absolutely�
have�to�make�sure�that�it�is�ruled�out�in�London,�that�we�do�not�have�permitted�development�from�office�to�
residential.��Will�you�end�it?��Will�you�fight�to�end�it?�

Boris�Johnson�MP�(Mayor�of�London):��I�will�see�what�I�can�do.��I�will�study�the�implications�for�outer�
London�in�more�detail.��I�am�concerned�about�some�of�the�reports�I�am�getting�from�outer�London�town�
centres,�and�I�will�see�what�I�can�do.��I�will�get�back�to�you�on�that,�Nicky.��

Health�
�
Cardiff�Model�
Question�Number:�2014/3576� � 13�Oct�2014� � Caroline�Pidgeon�AM�
Boris�Johnson�(Mayor�of�London):��We�have�not�yet�had�responses�from�all�the�Trusts�that�we�wrote�to.��
Caroline,�I�think�you�have�a�copy�of�the�letter�I�wrote�anyway.�

Caroline�Pidgeon�MBE�AM:��I�have�seen�that,�yes.�

Boris�Johnson�(Mayor�of�London):��It�is�fairly�straightforward.��It�makes�the�point�that�it�would�be�a�huge�
benefit�to�London�if�we�had�more�data�about�what�is�happening�in�the�A&Es�and�what�kinds�of�injuries�they�
are�treating.��When�we�get�all�those�responses�back,�obviously�we�will�share�them�with�you.�

Caroline�Pidgeon�MBE�AM:���Lovely.��You�may�well�have�to�have�a�roundtable�to�really�thrash�this�out�
because�this�has�been�going�on�for�so�long.��I�welcome�your�support�and�commitment�to�achieving�this,�which�
will�help�reduce�violent�crime�in�London.�

Boris�Johnson�(Mayor�of�London):��Thank�you.�

Page 55



Other�
�
Child�poverty�in�London�
Question�Number:�2014/4309� � 10�Nov�2014� � Joanne�McCartney�AM�
Joanne�McCartney�AM:��Mr�Mayor,�that�is�all�very�good.��I�want�to�focus�particularly�on�poverty�and�what�
you�can�do�in�your�role�as�Mayor.��You�have�said�previously�that�tackling�poverty�is�key�to�ensuring�that�
children�get�the�best�start�in�life.��We�would�all�agree�with�that.��Recent�research�has�shown�that�14�of�the�top�
20�boroughs�in�the�country�for�child�poverty�are�in�London.��If�I�look�at�my�figures�from�my�own�boroughs�of�
Enfield�and�Haringey,�child�poverty�is�actually�increasing�rather�than�decreasing.��London�has�a�particular�
problem�if�you�take�it�after�housing�costs�are�included.��Therefore�I�am�going�to�ask�you�today�if�you�would�
consider�bringing�a�greater�focus�on�tackling�this�and�actually�developing�a�specific�child�poverty�strategy�
which�would�put�all�necessary�interventions�in�one�document�and�actually�would�bring�more�focus�to�the�area.��
It�would�be�a�real�leadership�commitment�from�you�into�tackling�this�--�

Boris�Johnson�(Mayor�of�London):��I�am�interested�in�the�idea.��I�will�look�at�it.��It�is�a�matter�of�concern.��
The�biggest�driver�is�the�housing�costs.��There�is�no�question�that�that�is�the�thing�which�is�now�sucking�so�
much�of�a�family’s�income.��The�answer,�as�everybody�knows,�is�to�build�more�homes�and�more�affordable�
homes.��Whether�there�is�advantage�in�a�specific�child�poverty�action�group�here�in�the�GLA�I�will�consider.��

Food�poverty�
Question�Number:�2015/0109� � 11�Jan�2015� � Fiona�Twycross�AM�
�
Fiona�Twycross�AM:��In�one�case�I�heard�recently�of�a�delay�of�over�a�year�for�somebody�to�get�their�
Personal�Independence�Payment.��If�this�is�the�case,�we�have�a�real�issue�with�people�actually�having�access�to�
the�money�they�are�entitled�to.�

I�wondered�on�the�specific�point�what�more�you�would�do�to�lobby�the�Government�to�make�sure�that�it�is�
running�the�benefit�system�effectively�to�make�sure�it�does�not�let�down�Londoners�who�are�down�on�their�
luck,�and�whether�you�would�personally�write�to�the�Secretary�of�State�for�Work�and�Pensions�to�highlight�
concerns�raised�by�the�report,�raised�by�the�all‑party�investigation�and�raised�by�Oxfam�and�the�Child�Poverty�
Action�Group�on�how�the�benefits�system�is�operating�and�the�impact�it�has�on�Londoners.�

[…]�

Boris�Johnson�(Mayor�of�London):��What�I�would�need�to�do�is�to�work�in�concert�with�an�MP�on�particular�
cases�to�help�draw�the�issue�to�the�attention�of�the�Secretary�of�State.��I�am�more�than�happy�to�do�so.��I�am�
just�trying�to�draft�the�letter�in�my�head.��I�would�need�to�have�specific�cases�that�I�would�‑‑�

Fiona�Twycross�AM:��We�can�find�you�plenty�of�specific�cases.�

Boris�Johnson�(Mayor�of�London):��That�would�be�kind.��That�is�what�I�am�really�asking�for.�

Fiona�Twycross�AM:��I�will�find�an�MP�who�will�come�forward�with�dozens�of�cases�that�you�can�raise.�

Boris�Johnson�(Mayor�of�London):��I�would�be�more�than�happy�to�support�in�that�case,�but�we�need�to�
have�a�bit�of�chapter�and�verse.��That�is�all�I�am�saying.�

Fiona�Twycross�AM:��Yes,�thank�you.�

Page 56



Report�of�the�Mayor�
Question�Number:�2015/1601� � 19�May�2015� � Roger�Evans�AM�
�
Kit�Malthouse�AM:��Is�there�any�chance�you�could�ask�the�Commissioner�to�increase�capacity�on�the�
Dangerous�Dogs�Unit?�

Boris�Johnson�(Mayor�of�London):��I�will�certainly�look.��We�have�this�Dangerous�Dogs�Unit�which�we�set�
up,�as�you�know,�and�I�totally�agree�with�you�about�the�air�of�menace�and�the�intimidation�that�one�of�those�
dogs�can�bring�with�it.��I�do�not�like�it.��I�want�them�properly�controlled.��I�think�the�difficulty�is�that�one�man’s�
dangerous�dog�is�another�man’s�beloved�old�pooch,�and�that�is�the�problem.��We�had�that�problem,�if�you�
remember,�with�the�original�dangerous�dogs�legislation�in�the�1980s.�

Kit�Malthouse�AM:��It�is�quite�clear.��There�are�illegal�breeds�of�dog�which�are�still�openly�paraded�on�the�
streets�of�London�with�no�enforcement.��If�someone�was�wandering�around�with�a�revolver,�the�police�would�
be�there�like�a�shot,�but�the�fact�that�this�thing�is�a�dog�does�not�seem�to�attract�the�same�level�of�importance,�
even�though�it�is�not�nearly�as�frightening.�

Boris�Johnson�(Mayor�of�London):��When�I�refer�to�a�dangerous�dog�being�a�beloved�old�pooch,�some�of�
the�dogs�that�have�been�involved�in�attacks,�as�far�as�I�understand�it,�are�not�illegal�breeds.��It�is�very�difficult�
to�produce�perfectly�drafted�legislation�on�this.��I�will�certainly�make�enquiries,�Kit�--�

Kit�Malthouse�AM:��Thanks.�

Boris�Johnson�(Mayor�of�London):��--�about�whether�the�MPS�feels�that�it�could�do�more�about�dangerous�
dogs�and�weapon�dogs.�

Kit�Malthouse�AM:��That�would�be�very�kind.��Thank�you.�

Boris�Johnson�(Mayor�of�London):��They�are�a�scourge.�

Report�of�the�Mayor�
Question�Number:�2015/1601� � 19�May�2015� � Roger�Evans�AM�
�
Richard�Tracey�AM:��Indeed.��A�couple�more�possible�savings�that�we�suggest.��You�will�remember�that�we�
made�a�proposal�to�fund�a�rollout�of�1,000�GPS�panic�buttons�to�protect�front�line�TfL�staff.�

Boris�Johnson�(Mayor�of�London):��Yes.��I�had�forgotten�that.�

Richard�Tracey�AM:��Bearing�in�mind�that�the�purchase�of�these�would�cost�under�a�fifth�of�what�workplace�
violence�costs�TfL�every�year,�it�is�clearly�a�worthwhile�investment�and�a�sensible�one.�

Boris�Johnson�(Mayor�of�London):��I�am�interested�in�that�idea.��As�you�will�know,�we�now�have�CCTV�on�
all�buses.��Crime�on�buses�is�down�now�by�45%�since�I�was�elected�and�continues�to�fall.��When�I�was�
campaigning�in�2007�and�2008,�it�was�a�thing�that�people�were�bringing�up�everywhere,�argy-bargy�on�the�
buses.��That�is�now�well�down.��The�Tube�is�now�the�safest�metro�system�anywhere�in�Europe.��We�should�be�
very�proud�of�that.��If�we�can�drive�crime�down�still�further�–�we�have�spoken�a�little�bit�about�sexual�
harassment;�I�am�concerned�about�that�–�against�our�employees�with�panic�buttons,�I�will�have�a�look�at�it.��
What�happens�is�you�have�a�button�about�your�person�and�you�just�press�it.�

Page 57



Mayor's�Oral�Report�
Question�Number:�2015/1603� � 21�May�2015� � Jennette�Arnold�AM�
�
Boris�Johnson�MP�(Mayor�of�London):��I�have�received�one�particular�question�from�Jenny�[Jenny�Jones�
AM]�about�the�tragic�accident�involving�a�lorry�driver.��I�want�to�offer�my�deep�condolences�to�the�family�and�
friends�of�Alan�Neve,�who�died.��Jenny,�the�difficulty�is�I�cannot�comment�on�why�the�MPS�or�the�Crown�
Prosecution�Service�(CPS)�have�made�the�individual�decisions�that�they�have�in�that�case,�although�I�
understand�people’s�deep�feelings�of�anxiety�and�outrage.��What�I�can�propose�and�what�I�will�offer�is�that�the�
MPS�contacts�you�directly�for�a�briefing�about�that,�although�clearly�the�intention�and�our�ambition�is�to�make�
cycling�ever�safer.��That�is�the�purpose�of�our�current�investments.�

[...]�

Jenny�Jones�AM:��Thank�you�for�the�offer�of�the�briefing�from�the�MPS�about�the�cyclist’s�death�and�I�will�
say�yes�to�that,�but�I�want�a�bit�more�than�that.��This�is�the�second�time�recently�that�the�MPS�has�backed�off�
from�prosecuting�a�driver�who�has�actually�killed�somebody.��This�particular�driver�should�never�have�been�
employed�in�the�first�place.��The�judge�actually�said,�“Heavens�know�why�the�lorry�owners�let�you�drive�that�
vehicle�without�checking�you�had�a�valid�‑‑�

Boris�Johnson�MP�(Mayor�of�London):��Sorry,�I�could�not�hear�that,�Jenny.�

Jenny�Jones�AM:��Basically,�the�judge�in�the�case�said�that�the�licensed�operators�were�at�fault.��Could�you�
please�ask�the�MPS�Commissioner�next�time�you�see�him�for�a�personal�explanation�of�why�they�will�not�pursue�
that�licensed�operator?�

Boris�Johnson�MP�(Mayor�of�London):��I�shall,�but�you�will�understand�the�difficulty�I�have�in�relaying�now�
any�details�that�I�may�have�to�you�about�the�thinking.��It�is�better�if�they�brief�you�directly.�

Mayor's�Oral�Report�
Question�Number:�2015/1996� � 17�Jun�2015� � Jennette�Arnold�AM�
�
Boris�Johnson�MP�(Mayor�of�London):��Thanks�very�much,�Joanne,�and�you�are�quite�right�to�take�this�up,�
frankly.��On�the�first�point�on�what�the�police�are�doing,�I�do�not�know�the�extent�to�which�the�police�have�so�
far�detected�illicit�use�of�these�scanners.��You�are�right�in�what�you�say�about�the�possibility�of�buying�them�on�
the�market.��I�cannot�give�you�any�information�about�that,�but�I�would�be�happy�to�write�to�you�and�of�course�
I�will�be�taking�it�up�with�Sir�Bernard�[Sir�Bernard�Hogan-Howe�QPM,�Commissioner�of�Police�of�the�
Metropolis].�

On�the�second�point,�it�is�absolutely�correct.��To�the�best�of�my�memory,�in�the�old�days�when�everybody�used�
landlines,�if�the�police�or�the�security�services�wanted�to�intercept�a�phone�conversation,�they�had�to�get�an�
individual�warrant�from�the�Home�Secretary�for�the�wiretap.��What�seems�to�be�at�least�plausible�from�this�
account�is�that�the�police�and�the�security�services�are�able�to�listen�in�randomly,�as�it�were,�to�all�the�
conversations�that�may�be�taking�place�in�a�certain�vicinity�of�this�‘stingray’�scanner.�

If�that�is�going�on,�it�is�clearly�unacceptable.��That�is�Stasi-like�monitoring�of�people’s�private�conversations�
and�transactions�in�a�way�that�I�do�not�think�we�would�want�to�see�in�London.��I�very�much�share�your�
concerns�about�that�and�I�would�want�to�establish�that�it�was�not�going�on.��On�the�other�hand,�if�they�are�
validly�in�pursuit�of�known�suspects,�people�who�might�mean�us�serious�harm�who�are�making�use�of�mobile�
telephony�or�other�means�of�communication�to�plan�outrages�against�this�city�and�this�country,�then�clearly�
they�are�right�to�do�what�they�do.��In�either�event,�there�needs�to�be�proper�judicial�supervision�or�some�
proper�accountability�and�control�of�what�is�going�on.�

Joanne�McCartney�AM:��Mr�Mayor,�therefore,�as�Mayor�of�London�and�as�the�Member�of�Parliament�(MP)�

Page 58



now�for�a�London�constituency,�would�you�be�able�to�write�to�the�Home�Office�expressing�that�concern�and�
the�concern�that�has�been�expressed�by�the�Independent�Reviewer�and�saying�that�there�needs�to�be�some�
legal�framework�for�the�oversight�of�this�apparatus?�

Boris�Johnson�MP�(Mayor�of�London):��Do�you�mean�following�David�Anderson’s�words?�

Joanne�McCartney�AM:��Yes.�

Boris�Johnson�MP�(Mayor�of�London):��Yes.��What�I�will�perhaps�do,�if�I�may,�is�wait�until�I�get�an�answer�
back�from�Sir�Christopher�Rose,�see�exactly�how�he�accounts�for�what�is�going�on�and�see�whether�he�is�willing�
to�share�information.��Then,�depending�on�his�account�of�it,�we�will�definitely�take�it�up�with�the�Home�
Secretary.�

Joanne�McCartney�AM:��Mr�Mayor,�when�you�get�that�response,�will�you�send�it�to�the�Chairs�of�the�--�

Boris�Johnson�MP�(Mayor�of�London):��I�will�make�sure�to.��It�will�all�be�obtainable�under�the�Freedom�of�
Information�Act�(FOI)�and�transparent.��You�will�get�it�all.�

Mayor's�Oral�Report�
Question�Number:�2015/1996� � 17�Jun�2015� � Jennette�Arnold�AM�
�
Joanne�McCartney�AM:��Good�morning,�Mr�Mayor.��Thank�you�for�your�response�in�regard�to�my�request�
about�these�fake�mobile�phone�towers�or�‘stingrays’,�as�they�are�known�colloquially.��Sky�News�undertook�an�
investigation�and�said�that�it�found�20�in�London�that�appeared�to�be�intercepting�Londoner’s�phone�calls�
before�they�reached�the�official�mobile�phone�towers,�which�obviously�gives�great�concerns�for�Londoner’s�
security�of�their�personal�information.��There�are�two�main�issues�with�this.�

Firstly,�I�understand�that�they�can�be�bought�for�about�£1,000�and�so�they�are�relatively�cheap.��I�understand�
that�criminals�can�use�them�to�intercept�personal�data.��My�first�question�is:�what�are�the�police�doing�about�
ensuring�that�criminals�are�not�using�this�bit�of�equipment?�

Secondly,�of�course,�the�police�and�security�services�may�be�using�them�for�counterterrorism�purposes.��
Mr�Mayor,�you�may�not�be�aware�that�David�Anderson�QC,�the�Government’s�Reviewer�of�Counterterrorism�
Legislation,�[Independent�Reviewer�of�Terrorism�Legislation]�brought�out�a�report�last�week�that�cited�that�
these�surveillance�instruments�in�particular�-�and�I�quote�him�here�-�“do�not�have�a�clear�and�explicit�basis�in�
legislation”.��There�were�concerns�about�the�judicial�or�otherwise�oversight�of�these.��I�wondered�whether�you�
can�just�answer�those�two�questions.�

Boris�Johnson�MP�(Mayor�of�London):��Thanks�very�much,�Joanne,�and�you�are�quite�right�to�take�this�up,�
frankly.��On�the�first�point�on�what�the�police�are�doing,�I�do�not�know�the�extent�to�which�the�police�have�so�
far�detected�illicit�use�of�these�scanners.��You�are�right�in�what�you�say�about�the�possibility�of�buying�them�on�
the�market.��I�cannot�give�you�any�information�about�that,�but�I�would�be�happy�to�write�to�you�and�of�course�
I�will�be�taking�it�up�with�Sir�Bernard�[Sir�Bernard�Hogan-Howe�QPM,�Commissioner�of�Police�of�the�
Metropolis].�

Mayor's�Oral�Report�
Question�Number:�2015/1996� � 17�Jun�2015� � Jennette�Arnold�AM�
�
Boris�Johnson�MP�(Mayor�of�London):��Thanks�very�much,�Joanne,�and�you�are�quite�right�to�take�this�up,�
frankly.��On�the�first�point�on�what�the�police�are�doing,�I�do�not�know�the�extent�to�which�the�police�have�so�
far�detected�illicit�use�of�these�scanners.��You�are�right�in�what�you�say�about�the�possibility�of�buying�them�on�
the�market.��I�cannot�give�you�any�information�about�that,�but�I�would�be�happy�to�write�to�you�and�of�course�

Page 59



I�will�be�taking�it�up�with�Sir�Bernard�[Sir�Bernard�Hogan-Howe�QPM,�Commissioner�of�Police�of�the�
Metropolis].�

On�the�second�point,�it�is�absolutely�correct.��To�the�best�of�my�memory,�in�the�old�days�when�everybody�used�
landlines,�if�the�police�or�the�security�services�wanted�to�intercept�a�phone�conversation,�they�had�to�get�an�
individual�warrant�from�the�Home�Secretary�for�the�wiretap.��What�seems�to�be�at�least�plausible�from�this�
account�is�that�the�police�and�the�security�services�are�able�to�listen�in�randomly,�as�it�were,�to�all�the�
conversations�that�may�be�taking�place�in�a�certain�vicinity�of�this�‘stingray’�scanner.�

If�that�is�going�on,�it�is�clearly�unacceptable.��That�is�Stasi-like�monitoring�of�people’s�private�conversations�
and�transactions�in�a�way�that�I�do�not�think�we�would�want�to�see�in�London.��I�very�much�share�your�
concerns�about�that�and�I�would�want�to�establish�that�it�was�not�going�on.��On�the�other�hand,�if�they�are�
validly�in�pursuit�of�known�suspects,�people�who�might�mean�us�serious�harm�who�are�making�use�of�mobile�
telephony�or�other�means�of�communication�to�plan�outrages�against�this�city�and�this�country,�then�clearly�
they�are�right�to�do�what�they�do.��In�either�event,�there�needs�to�be�proper�judicial�supervision�or�some�
proper�accountability�and�control�of�what�is�going�on.�

Joanne�McCartney�AM:��Mr�Mayor,�therefore,�as�Mayor�of�London�and�as�the�Member�of�Parliament�(MP)�
now�for�a�London�constituency,�would�you�be�able�to�write�to�the�Home�Office�expressing�that�concern�and�
the�concern�that�has�been�expressed�by�the�Independent�Reviewer�and�saying�that�there�needs�to�be�some�
legal�framework�for�the�oversight�of�this�apparatus?�

Boris�Johnson�MP�(Mayor�of�London):��Do�you�mean�following�David�Anderson’s�words?�

Joanne�McCartney�AM:��Yes.�

Boris�Johnson�MP�(Mayor�of�London):��Yes.��What�I�will�perhaps�do,�if�I�may,�is�wait�until�I�get�an�answer�
back�from�Sir�Christopher�Rose,�see�exactly�how�he�accounts�for�what�is�going�on�and�see�whether�he�is�willing�
to�share�information.��Then,�depending�on�his�account�of�it,�we�will�definitely�take�it�up�with�the�Home�
Secretary.�

Joanne�McCartney�AM:��Mr�Mayor,�when�you�get�that�response,�will�you�send�it�to�the�Chairs�of�the�--�

Boris�Johnson�MP�(Mayor�of�London):��I�will�make�sure�to.��It�will�all�be�obtainable�under�the�Freedom�of�
Information�Act�(FOI)�and�transparent.��You�will�get�it�all.�

Page 60



Public�Houses�
Question�Number:�2015/2189� � 06�Jul�2015� � Steve�O'Connell�AM�
�
Steve�O’Connell�AM:��Exactly.��My�last�point�-�and�this�is�really�something�that�you�do�have�some�
responsibility�around�-�is�talking�about�the�Great�Beer�Festival�this�year,�which�we�had�upwards�of�50,000�
people�enjoying.��It�was�a�fantastic�event�in�London.��TfL�this�year�decided�not�to�run�the�Earls�Court-to-
Olympia�Tube�line�during�that�beer�festival.��It�has�done�it�in�previous�years.��This�is�something�that�is�very�
disappointing.��There�are�upwards�of�50,000�Londoners�going�and�enjoying�themselves.��Apparently�TfL�has�
made�the�decision�not�to�run�it�this�year.��I�have�written�to�TfL�and�to�you.��Can�I�urge�you�to�look�at�that�
decision�and�see�if�you�can�rescind�that?�

Boris�Johnson�MP�(Mayor�of�London):��Sorry,�a�decision?�

Steve�O’Connell�AM:��Each�year,�there�is�an�extra�shuttle�service�during�the�CAMRA�beer�festival�to�run�the�
Earls�Court-to-Olympia�Tube�line.��TfL�has�decided�-�on�cost�reasons,�apparently,�I�am�told�-�not�to�do�it�this�
year�and�I�am�appealing�you�to�review�that�decision.�

Boris�Johnson�MP�(Mayor�of�London):��Let�me�look�into�it.��I�am�sorry.��I�will�not�give�you�that�guarantee�
now�but�I�will�certainly�raise�it�with�TfL.��

Steve�O’Connell�AM:��I�would�like�you�to�look�into�it.�

Boris�Johnson�MP�(Mayor�of�London):��I�certainly�will.�

Steve�O’Connell�AM:��That�is�all�I�need.�

Summer�Budget�
Question�Number:�2015/2216� � 06�Jul�2015� � Len�Duvall�AM�
�
Len�Duvall�AM:��Can�you�also�give�an�undertaking�that�as�part�of�your�renewed�commitment�to�the�real�
London�Living�Wage,�you�will�undertake�a�study�through�the�Greater�London�Authority�(GLA)�Living�Wage�
Unit�of�what�the�National�Living�Wage�in�London�will�need�to�be�set�at�to�compensate�for�the�cuts�in�in-work�
benefits�announced�by�the�Chancellor�in�2015�‑‑�

Boris�Johnson�MP�(Mayor�of�London):��Yes.��I�understand,�Len,�yes.�

Len�Duvall�AM:��‑‑�because�that�must�have�a�say�in�terms�of�where�you�are�coming�from�about�the�real�
London�Living�Wage?�

Boris�Johnson�MP�(Mayor�of�London):��Len,�you�are�right�that�we�should�be�looking�into�whether�there�
should�be�a�National�London�Living�Wage�weighting.��The�trouble�is�that�this�conversation�is�now�going�to�get�
so�complicated�that�people�will�cease�to�follow�which�living�wage�we�are�talking�about.��We�could�get�to�a�new�
National�London�Living�Wage�weighting,�just�as�there�is�under�the�existing�Minimum�Wage.��There�is�a�London�
weighting�and�I�think�that�is�what�you�are�driving�at.��That�is�one�conversation.�

[...]�

Len�Duvall�AM:��Mr�Mayor,�I�am�under�pressure�on�time.��I�take�it�that�somewhere�in�that�answer�was�a�yes�to�
the�study�that�you�will�do�with�the�GLA�unit�to�help�us�with�the�lobbying.�

Boris�Johnson�MP�(Mayor�of�London):��Yes.�

Len�Duvall�AM:��Then�there�is�one�further�group�that�I�would�ask�you�to�consider�lobbying�for.��In�London’s�

Page 61



demographics,�we�have�approximately�50%�more�20-to-24-year-olds�than�the�national�average.��Will�you�also�
lobby�for�a�full�or�partial�exemption�for�London�from�the�rule�that�only�people�aged�over�25�will�receive�the�
National�Living�Wage?��There�does�seem�to�be�a�big�problem�here�for�London�and�for�that�section�of�our�
community�and�it�makes�no�sense�at�all.�

Boris�Johnson�MP�(Mayor�of�London):��I�understand�that.�

Len�Duvall�AM:��Is�that�a�simple�yes�or�no?�

Boris�Johnson�MP�(Mayor�of�London):��Yes.�

Len�Duvall�AM:��Will�you�look�into�it?��Maybe�there�might�well�be�some�further�support�from�the�Assembly�
for�these�particular�areas�because�they�will�have�a�major�impact�on�our�young�people.�

Boris�Johnson�MP�(Mayor�of�London):��What�I�certainly�will�undertake,�Len,�is�to�look�at�the�particular�
impacts�of�the�Budget�on�under-25s.��That�is�reasonable.��People�should�bear�in�mind�that�on�the�whole�in�
London,�in�spite�of�the�costs�of�living�here,�people�do�better.��They�are�paid�more.��There�are�more�
opportunities�here�in�London.��To�put�it�mildly,�there�are�considerable�advantages�of�living�in�London,�which�
we�should�not�neglect�as�well.��However,�given�the�threshold�that�was�established�in�the�Budget�for�the�
National�Living�Wage�of�only�over-25s,�it�is�reasonable�that�we�should�look�at�the�impacts�for�under-25s�as�
well.�

Len�Duvall�AM:��Thank�you.�

Summer�Budget�
Question�Number:�2015/2216� � 06�Jul�2015� � Len�Duvall�AM�
�
Fiona�Twycross�AM:��Can�you�tell�me�how�many�of�the�3�million�families�whom�the�Institute�for�Fiscal�
Studies�(IFS)�has�said�will�be�hit�by�this�change�live�in�London?�

Boris�Johnson�MP�(Mayor�of�London):��I�cannot�give�you�that.�

Jennette�Arnold�OBE�AM�(Chair):��You�should�know.�

Boris�Johnson�MP�(Mayor�of�London):��I�would�be�happy�to�write�to�you�with�the�details.��I�do�not�have�
that�figure�off�the�top�of�my�head.�

Fiona�Twycross�AM:��If�you�could�establish�it?��Obviously,�we�know�that�previous�changes�to�welfare�
disproportionately�hit�Londoners�and�about�half�of�those�affected�lived�in�London.��

Questions�to�the�Mayor�on�his�Final�Draft�Consolidated�Budget�
Question�Number:�2015/0816� � 26�Feb�2015� � Jenny�Jones�AM�
Joanne�McCartney�AM:��We�asked�you�to�look�at�having�a�victims’�champion�at�MOPAC�and�to�look�at�
having�an�independent�advocacy�pilot�for�those�with�learning�disabilities�and�mental�health�issues.�

Boris�Johnson�(Mayor�of�London):��Yes.��I�am�interested�in�this�kind�of�thing.�

Joanne�McCartney�AM:��Would�you�write�to�me�about�this,�Mr�Mayor?�

Boris�Johnson�(Mayor�of�London):��I�certainly�will�write�to�you,�Joanne.�

Joanne�McCartney�AM:��Thank�you.�����

Page 62



Questions�to�the�Mayor�on�his�Final�Draft�Consolidated�Budget�
Question�Number:�2015/0816� � 26�Feb�2015� � Jenny�Jones�AM�
�
Valerie�Shawcross�CBE�AM:��Did�you�know�that�London�is�now�the�highest�fare�city�in�the�world?�

Boris�Johnson�(Mayor�of�London):��No,�it�is�not.�

Valerie�Shawcross�CBE�AM:��Independent�studies�have�shown�that.�

Boris�Johnson�(Mayor�of�London):��It�is�not�true.�

Valerie�Shawcross�CBE�AM:��London�is�the�highest�fare�city�in�the�world.�

[…]�

Valerie�Shawcross�CBE�AM:��If�you�will�write�to�me�and�tell�me�which�city�in�the�world�is�more�expensive�to�
travel�in�than�London�‑‑�

Boris�Johnson�(Mayor�of�London):��I�certainly�will.��There�are�several�more�expensive�and�you�are�talking�
total�tripe.�

Valerie�Shawcross�CBE�AM:��‑‑�I�will�write�to�you�will�a�full�account�of�the�£500�million�of�Londoners’�money�
that�you�have�wasted.��Thank�you,�Chairman.�

�
�

Page 63



Page 64

This page is intentionally left blank



 

                                                                      

City�Hall,�The�Queen’s�Walk,�London�SE1�2AA�
Enquiries:
020
7983
4100
minicom:
020
7983
4458
www.london.gov.uk




 

Subject:�Petitions



Report
to:
 London
Assembly
(Plenary)




Report
of:

Executive
Director
of
Secretariat 



Date:
4
November
2015�



This
report
will
be
considered
in
public
�
 





1.

 Summary

�

1.1� This�report�sets�out�details�of�petitions�to�be�presented�at�this�meeting�by�Assembly�Members.�

�

�

2.
 Recommendation




2.1
 That
the
Assembly
receives
and
notes
the
petitions
listed
at
paragraph
4
of
this
report


and
decides
whether
to
refer
the
petitions,
and
if
so
where
to,
and
seeks
a
response
to


the
points
raised.


�

�

3.
 Background




3.1� Standing�Orders�3.20�to�3.21�make�provision�for�the�presentation�of�petitions�by�an�Assembly�

Member�at�an�ordinary�meeting�of�the�Assembly.�

�

A�petition�to�be�presented�must:�

�

(a)�Be�addressed�to�the�Mayor,�the�Assembly,�a�Functional�Body�(as�the�case�may�be);�

�

(b)�Clearly�indicate�the�name,�address�and�contact�telephone�number�of�the�person�organising�the�

petition,�or�where�the�petition�was�organised�on�the�internet,�its�data�controller;�

�

(c)�Be�presented�in�the�form�of�printed�sheets,�each�of�which�includes�the�“prayer”�of�the�petition�

(the�“prayer”�is�the�formal�request�or�other�subject�matter�of�the�petition)�or,�if�the�petition�was�

organised�on�the�internet,�clearly�demonstrate�that�internet�users�who�subscribed�to�the�petition�

knew�what�the�prayer�was;��

�

(d)�Include�each�petitioner’s�name�(which�may�be�printed�or�be�in�the�form�of�a�signature,�provided�

that�the�signature�is�legible)�and�address�(sufficient�that�the�person�and�their�address�can�be�

identified)�or,�where�the�petition�was�organised�on�the�internet,�their�names�and�email�addresses;�

�

(e)�Indicate�the�total�number�of�manual�or�electronic�signatories�to�the�petition.�

Agenda Item 7

Page 65



        

�

(f)�Young�people�aged�17�or�under�signing�a�petition�may�give�their�address�as�that�of�the�school,�or�

other� recognised� youth� group� or� similar� organisation� that� they� attend� (with� details� of� their� class�

name�where�appropriate),�provided�that�the�lead�petitioner�is�a�teacher�at�or�leader�of�that�school�or�

youth�group�or�similar�organisation.�

�

(g)�Indicate�the�total�number�of�manual�or�electronic�signatories�to�the�petition;�and�




(h)�Refer�to�matters�within�the�responsibilities�of�the�Mayor,�the�London�Assembly�or�the�functional�

bodies,�or�to�matters�of�importance�to�Londoners,�including�those�who�visit,�live�or�work�in�Greater�

London.�

�

3.2� Notice�of�the�intention�to�present�a�petition�at�an�Assembly�meeting�and�a�copy�of�the�petition�must�

be�given�to�the�Executive�Director�of�the�Secretariat�by�no�later�than�12�noon�six�clear�working�days�

before�that�meeting.�

�

3.3� Under�Standing�Orders�the�Member�presenting�the�petition�will�read�out�the�prayer�of�the�petition�

(but�not�the�signatories).�The�Assembly�will�not�debate�the�petition.�If�the�Assembly�agrees�without�

debate,�the�petition�will�be�forwarded�to�the�Mayor,�Functional�Body,�relevant�committee�or�other�

organisation�with�a�request�for�a�response�to�the�points�made�by�the�petitioner.��The�response�

received�will�be�reported�to�the�Assembly�for�information�and�forwarded�to�the�petition’s�organiser.��

The�prayer�of�the�petition�and�the�response�received�will�be�published�in�the�appropriate�Assembly�

Minutes.�







4.
 Petitions
to
be
presented




4.1 Notice�of�the�following�petitions�has�been�received:�

�

4.2 A�petition,�received�by�Caroline
Pidgeon
MBE
AM,�is�to�be�presented�to�the�London�Assembly,�in�

accordance�with�Standing�Orders�3.20�to�3.21,�saying:�

�

‘To
get
planning
permission
for
a
new
Whitgift
Centre,
Westfield
are
paying
Croydon


£15
million.
TfL
want
to
spend
it
(+£9
million)
on
a
’Dingwall
Road
loop”
–
which
would


stop
trams
short
of
most
shops.






Our
trams
are
crowded.
Spend
the
money
instead
on
more
trams.





We
the
undersigned
want
the
£24
million
cost
of
the
proposed
“Dingwall
Road
loop”


spent
instead
on
more
trams
and
longer
trams
(and
longer
platforms
to
cope).
“





The�petition�has�2000�signatories.���

�

The�contact�person�for�this�petition�is�John�Jefkins,�36�Norfolk�Avenue�CR2�8BN



4.3 A�petition,�received�by�Stephen
Knight
AM,�is�to�be�presented�to�the�London�Assembly,�in�

accordance�with�Standing�Orders�3.20�to�3.21,�saying:�




Page 66



        

“We
call
on
the
Mayor
of
London
to
work
with
TfL
and
Westminster
City
Council
to


remove
all
motor
traffic
from
Oxford
Street,
introduce
a
zero
emission
shuttle
bus,


leading
to
full
pedestrianisation
of
Oxford
Street
by
2020.”





 The�petition�has�1,919�signatories.




The�contact�person�for�this�petition�is�Pete�Dollimore,�96�Uxbridge�Road,�Hayes,�UB4�OJH.�

��



5.
 Legal
Implications

�

5.1� By�virtue�of�sections�59,�34�and�53�of�the�GLA�Act�1999�(as�amended),�the�Assembly�has�the�power�

to�do�what�is�recommended�in�this�report.��

�

5.2� Under�Standing�Order�3.20�the�petitions�presented�to�the�Assembly,�together�with�the�pages�

containing�the�names�and�addresses�of�the�signatories�to�the�petition,�are�documents�to�which�the�

access�to�information�rules�from�sections�100A�-�H�and�Schedule�12A�of�the�Local�Government�Act�

1972�apply.�

�

5.3� Any�applications�from�Members�to�see�the�names�and�addresses�of�the�signatories�to�the�petition�

will�be�considered�by�the�Executive�Director�of�the�Secretariat�on�a�case�by�case�basis�and�in�

accordance�with�the�relevant�provisions�of�the�Local�Government�Act�1972�and�the�Data�Protection�

Act�1988.�







6.
 Financial
Implications

�

6.1� There�are�no�financial�implications�directly�arising�from�this�report.�

�

�

List
of
appendices
to
this
report:
None.�

�

Local
Government
(Access
to
Information)
Act
1985



List�of�Background�Papers:�None.�

�

Contact�Officer:� John�Barry,�Principal�Committee�Manager�

Telephone:� 020�7983�4425�

Email:� John.barry@london.gov.uk�

�

Page 67



Page 68

This page is intentionally left blank



                                                                      

City�Hall,�The�Queen’s�Walk,�London�SE1�2AA�
Enquiries:
020
7983
4100
minicom:
020
7983
4458
www.london.gov.uk




 

Subject:�Motions

Report
to:
 London
Assembly
(Plenary)




Report
of:

Executive
Director
of
Secretariat




Date:
4
November
2015�



This
report
will
be
considered
in
public


�




1.
 Summary



�

1.1 The�Assembly�is�asked�to�consider�the�motions�set�out�which�have�been�submitted�by�Assembly�

Members.�

�

�

2.
 Recommendation
�



2.1 That
the
Assembly
considers
the
motions
set
out
below.




3.
 Issues
for
Consideration�

�

3.1 The�following�motion�has�been�proposed�in�the�name�of�Darren
Johnson
AM�and�will�be�seconded��

by�Andrew�Boff�AM:�

�

“This�Assembly�notes�the�tragic�deaths�of�eight�people�cycling�in�London�so�far�this�year,�seven�of�

whom�were�killed�in�collisions�with�Heavy�Goods�Vehicles�(HGVs).�

�

Despite�positive�initiatives�led�by�the�Mayor,�TfL�and�the�MPS,�this�Assembly�believes�there�are�still�

too�many�dangerous�HGVs�on�London’s�roads.�

�

We�therefore�call�on�the�Mayor�of�London�to�work�with�the�Government�and�commercial�partners�to�

implement�the�following�policies:�

• a�rush-hour�lorry�ban,�subject�to�the�completion�of�a�full�impact�assessment;�

• the�construction�industry�to�adopt�Construction�Logistics�and�Cyclist�Safety�(CLOCS)�

standards�across�the�board,�including�direct�vision�lorry�cabs;�

• confidential�reporting�of�bad�practice�to�be�rolled�out�to�all�HGV�drivers,�irrespective�of�

whether�their�employer�wants�to�take�part;�

• comprehensive�enforcement�so�that�rogue�operators�do�not�permit�unlicensed,�untrained�

lorry�drivers,�or�unsafe�vehicles,�to�operate�on�our�roads.”�

��

�

�

Agenda Item 8

Page 69



        

3.2 The�following�motion�has�been�proposed�in�the�name�of�Stephen
Knight
AM�and�will�be�seconded�

by�Caroline�Pidgeon�MBE�AM:�
�

“This�Assembly�notes�the�recent�admission�by�Volkswagen,�the�German�carmaker,�that�it�has�

installed�‘defeat�devices’�–�software�designed�to�manipulate�emissions�test�results�–�in�11�million�

vehicles�worldwide,�of�which�1.2�million�are�in�the�UK.1��

��

This�Assembly�further�notes:�

��

i) the�failure�of�recent
European�vehicle�emissions�standards�(Euro�standards)
to�deliver�the�

anticipated�emissions�reductions;�and�

�

ii) the�results�of�TfL’s�recent�testing�of�Euro�6/VI�vehicles�using�London�drive�cycles�which�found�

that�a�number�of�Euro�6�passenger�cars�emit�several�times�more�NOx�than�some�HGVs.2�

��

This�Assembly�remains�concerned�that�large�sections�of�the�capital�continue�to�exceed�both�the�

annual�mean�and�hourly�legal�limits�for�the�concentration�of�nitrogen�dioxide�(NO2)�and�are�

currently�projected�to�continue�doing�so�until�2025�at�the�earliest,�over�fifteen�years�after�the�

original�deadline�for�compliance.3�

��

This�Assembly�believes�that�the�Mayor�has�a�duty�to�review�his�current�policies�and�proposals�in�light�

of�the�emerging�scientific�evidence�on�the�performance�of�Euro�6�vehicles�under�real-world�driving�

conditions�and�our�increasing�knowledge�of�the�adverse�effects�of�air�pollution�on�human�health.�

��

This�Assembly�therefore�calls�on�the�Mayor�of�London�to�review�the�planned�exhaust�emission�

standards�of�his�Ultra�Low�Emission�Zone�to�ensure�that�all�vehicles�driving�in�the�centre�of�the�

capital�in�2020�are�truly�ultra-low�or�zero�emission.”�
��

�

3.3 The�following�motion�has�been�proposed�in�the�name�of�Stephen
Knight
AM�and�will�be�seconded�

at�the�meeting:�
�

“This�Assembly�notes�the�Government’s�recent�consultation�on�its�review�of�the�Feed-in�Tariff�
scheme,�the�subsidy�scheme�for�the�generation�of�renewable�electricity�from�small-scale�
installations.�
��
This�Assembly�further�notes�that��
��

i) London�currently�has�the�lowest�amount�of�installed�solar�power�capacity�of�any�region�in�
the�UK,�but�among�the�greatest�potential�to�generate�solar�power;�and�that�

�
ii) 2,740�people�are�currently�employed�in�the�solar�industry�and�its�supply�chain�in�London�

according�to�recent�research�published�by�the�Solar�Trade�Association.���
��

                                                 
1See�comments�made�by�Paul�Willis,�Managing�Director�of�VW�UK,�appearing�before�the�House�of�Commons�Transport�Select�

Committee�on�Monday�12�October�2015.

2�TfL�Euro�6�emission�standard�testing:�https://www.london.gov.uk/sites/default/files/In-
service%20emissions%20performance%20of%20Euro%206VI%20vehicles%20WEBSITE%20COPY.pdf��
3�Draft�Air�Quality�Plan�for�the�achievement�of�EU�air�quality�limit�value�for�nitrogen�dioxide�(NO2)�in�Greater�London�Urban�Area:�
http://uk-air.defra.gov.uk/assets/documents/no2-consultation-2015/AQplans_UK0001.pdf 

Page 70



        

This�Assembly�is�concerned�that�the�87�per�cent�cut�to�the�Feed-in�Tariff�for�solar�energy�proposed�
by�the�Government�will�have�a�disproportionate�impact�on�London’s�ability�to�generate�energy�from�
local�and�renewable�sources.��
��
This�Assembly�also�notes�the�comments�made�by�the�Mayor�of�London�on�16�September�2015�that�
“it�would�be�wrong�if�the�cut�in�the�feed-in�tariffs�actually�stops�people�from�investing�in�solar�
because�it�clearly�has�many�attractions.”�
��
This�Assembly�calls�on�the�Mayor�of�London�to�lead�a�cross-party�delegation�of�Assembly�Members,�
solar�companies�and�other�industry�experts�to�meet�with�the�Secretary�of�State�for�Energy�and�
Climate�Change�in�order�to�express�our�shared�concerns�over�the�impact�of�the�Government's�
proposed�changes�to�the�Feed�in�Tariff�on�the�viability�of�the�solar�industry�in�London.”�

�
�

3.4 The�following�motion�has�been�proposed�in�the�name�of�Richard
Tracey
AM�and�will�be�seconded�

by�Murad�Qureshi�AM:�
�
“This�Assembly�notes�that�up�to�300�tonnes�of�rubbish�is�recovered�from�the�Thames�every�year,�
with�the�amount�of�plastics,�especially�plastic�bottles�growing�annually.�
�
With�this�in�mind�the�Assembly�offers�its�wholehearted�support�to�the�Port�of�London�Authority’s�
Cleaner�Thames�Campaign,�which�calls�on�Londoners�to�‘do�the�right’�thing�and�make�sure�their�
rubbish�goes�in�the�bin,�not�in�the�River�Thames.�
�
Noting�the�Authority’s�strategic�role�in�promoting�recycling�and�waste�reduction,�this�Assembly�also�
urges�the�Mayor�to�work�with�the�Port�of�London�Authority,�its�partners�and�London’s�riparian�
Boroughs�to�support�this�campaign.”�

�
�

3.5 The�following�motion�has�been�proposed�in�the�name�of�Andrew
Dismore
AM�and�will�be�

seconded�at�the�meeting:�
�

“This�Assembly�expresses�its�concern�over�the�decision�of�the�Government�abruptly�to�end�ESOL�

funding�for�mandated�DWP�referred�FE�students.��

�

The�Assembly�believes�that�it�does�not�represent�joined�up�Government�for�one�department,�the�

DWP,�to�mandate�people��to�go�on�ESOL�courses�or�lose�their�benefit�on�the�one�hand;�and�on�the�

other�for�another�department,�BIS,�to�entirely�cut�the�funding�for�such�mandated,�work�tailored��

courses.�

�

The�Mayor�has�previously�insisted�that�“everybody�in�London,�everybody�who�comes�to�work�in�our�

economy,�should�be�able�to�speak�English.”[1]�However,�given�this�latest�barrier�being�placed�in�the�

way�of�those�seeking�to�acquire�English�language�skills,�this�Assembly�is�sceptical�about�the�

Government’s�commitment�to�ensuring�that�all�those�seeking�employment�and�greater�integration�

into�their�communities�are�able�to�do�so,�especially�in�the�context�of�other�Government�cuts�to�the�

Adult�Skills�Budget,�which�restrict�ESOL�courses�so�that�refugees,�asylum�seekers,�and�other�

migrants�who�need�to�learn�English�find�it�ever-harder�to�access�appropriate�language�classes.��

The�Assembly�therefore�calls�on�the�Mayor�to:��

�

                                                 
[1]�Nicholas�Cecil,�Boris�Johnson:�Everybody�in�London�should�be�able�to�speak�English,�Evening�Standard,�06.01.15�

Page 71



        

• Lobby�the�Business,�Education,�and�Work�and�Pensions�Ministers�to�seek�an�alternative�to�

the�ESOL�funding�cuts.�

• To�commission�a�study�from�GLA�Economics�looking�at�the�costs�and�benefits�to�the�London�

regional�economy�of�government�funding�for�ESOL�courses.”�
�
�

3.6 The�following�motion�has�been�proposed�in�the�name�of�Nicky
Gavron
AM�and�will�be�seconded�by�

Navin�Shah�AM:�
�

“This�Assembly�calls�on�the�Mayor�of�London�to�lobby�the�Government�to�reverse�its�decision�that�

the�temporary�rule�allowing�property�owners�to�convert�offices�and�other�workspaces�into�flats�

almost�overnight,�without�the�need�for�planning�permission,�will�be�made�permanent4.�

��

The�temporary�policy�has�already�been�an�unmitigated�disaster�for�outer�London,�where�over�320�

fully�occupied�office�buildings�have�been�earmarked�for�conversions.�Richmond-upon-Thames,�for�

example,�has�lost�20�per�cent�of�its�office�space,�displacing�3,150�local�jobs5.�Where�owners�do�not�

convert,�the�hope�value�on�all�commercial�and�light�industrial�premises�provides�an�incentive�to�drive�

up�rents,�squeezing�out�even�more�affordable�workspace.�The�migration�of�jobs�outside�of�local�

authorities�and�beyond�is�particularly�concerning�in�light�of�plans�to�allow�local�authorities�to�keep�

increased�business�rate�revenues.�The�converted�housing�will�not�be�affordable�and�is�not�required�

to�meet�environmental�or�disability�standards�set�by�local�authorities6.�

��

The�extended�policy�will�be�even�more�damaging�to�London’s�economy.�The�exemption�currently�

enjoyed�by�limited�parts�of�central�London�will�expire�in�2019.�Boroughs�will�be�able�to�impose�

Article�4�directions�to�suspend�the�permitted�development�rights,�but�this�is�a�cumbersome�process�

which�can�result�in�councils�being�subject�to�compensation�claims�by�property�owners�and�can�be�

vetoed�by�the�Secretary�of�State�against�the�councils’�wishes.�

�

In�addition,�under�the�new�rules,�developers�will�be�able�to�demolish�office�buildings�and�build�new�

residential�buildings�in�their�place,�further�undermining�the�ability�of�local�authorities�to�plan�for�

development.�

�

This�Assembly�recognises�that�some�areas�may�have�a�surplus�of�office�space,�but�the�existing�

planning�system�already�gives�local�authorities�the�tools�to�allow�conversions�where�appropriate7.�

��

Given�his�statutory�planning�function�in�London,�this�Assembly�calls�on�the�Mayor�to�lobby�the�

Government�to�withdraw�its�proposals�regarding�Permitted�Development�Rights�in�the�capital.”�
�
�

3.7 The�following�motion�has�been�proposed�in�the�name�of�Fiona
Twycross
AM�and�will�be�seconded�

by�Dr�Onkar�Sahota�AM:�
�

“This� Assembly� urges� the� Government� to� maintain� Universal� Free� School� Meals� for� infant� school�

pupils� in� London,� introduced� in� 2014,�when� it� announces� the� Spending� Review�on� 25�November�

2015.��

                                                 
4�DCLG�press�release.�“Thousands�more�homes�to�be�developed�in�planning�shake�up.”�13�October�2015.�
5�London�Councils.�“The�Impact�of�Permitted�Development�Rights�for�Office�to�Residential�Conversions.”�August�2015.�
6�National�Planning�Policy�Guidance.�“Planning�Obligations.”�Paragraph:�005�Reference�ID:�23b-005-20140306�
7�London�Plan�Policy�4.2 

Page 72



        

��

Universal� Free� School� Meals� have� been� shown� to� have� significant� benefits� for� educational�

performance� of� children� across� the� country,� and� therefore� in� London,� with� the� 2009-11� pilot�

schemes� generating� four� weeks� additional� progress� for� pupils� at� Key� Stage� 1� and� eight� weeks�

progress�at�Key�Stage�2.�Universal�Free�School�Meals�for�infants�are�therefore�an�important�tool�for�

improving�attainment� in�the�classroom�and�reducing�the�stigma�of�means�tested�free�school�meals�

that�results�in�many�children�failing�to�claim�their�meal.��

��

With�over�40,000�visits�by�children�to�a�London�food�bank�last�year�(2014/15),�and�evidence�from�

the�Mayor�that�74,000�London�children�sometimes�or�often�go�to�bed�hungry�at�night,�it�is�also�clear�

that�Universal�Free�School�Meals�can�be�an�important�means�of�tackling�child�hunger�in�the�capital.�

At�a�time�when�tax�credits�are�due�to�be�severely�cut,�Universal�Free�School�Meals�are�also�helping�

the�family�budgets�of�parents�with�young�children,�who�save�around�£400�a�year�per�child.��

��

This� Assembly� therefore� urges� the�Government� to� protect�Universal� Free� School�Meals� for� infant�

school�pupils� in�London�and�for�the�Mayor�–�who�has�previously�stated�his�support�for�the�School�

Food�Plan’s�recommendation�for�the�rollout�of�universal�free�school�meals�for�4�to�7�year�olds8�--�to�

lobby� the� Prime�Minister� to� state� categorically� that� infant� school�meals� in� London� are� not� under�

threat�as�part�of�the�Spending�Review.”�
�
�

3.8 The�following�motion�has�been�proposed�in�the�name�of�Jennette
Arnold
OBE
AM�and�will�be�

seconded�by�Tony�Arbour�AM:�
�

“This�Assembly�notes�that�approximately�11�million�people�were�killed�during�the�Holocaust,�

including�1�million�Jewish�children.�Since�the�Holocaust,�other�genocides�such�as�the�Rwandan�

Genocide�of�1994�have�killed�millions�of�people.�Even�now,�people�all�over�the�world�live�in�fear�of�

being�killed�due�to�their�race,�ethnicity,�religion,�culture,�or�nationality.��

�

This�Assembly�is�proud�that�the�UK�has�always�played�a�major�role�in�ensuring�that�the�Holocaust�is�

never�forgotten.�Holocaust�Memorial�Day�has�taken�place�in�the�UK�since�2001,�with�a�UK�event�and�

over�3,600�local�activities�taking�place�on�or�around�27�January�each�year.�The�Holocaust�

Educational�Trust�has�taken�thousands�of�UK�students�to�visit�former-concentration�camps,�in�order�

to�teach�them�the�lessons�of�the�Holocaust.�

�

This�Assembly�believes�that�Holocaust�Memorial�Day�should�continue�to�be�commemorated�in�the�

UK.�Children�should�be�encouraged�and�enabled�to�actively�promote�the�lessons�learnt�from�the�

Holocaust�and�other�genocides.�Efforts�of�schools�across�London�to�raise�awareness,�such�as�the�

Hampton�School�in�Richmond,�where�pupils�promoted�the�issue�on�social�media�using�the�hashtag�

#genocideknowmore,�should�be�encouraged�and�applauded.�

�

This�Assembly�also�believes�that�the�Greater�London�Authority�and�London’s�Boroughs�should�

continue�to�work�with�local�schools,�charities,�and�other�stakeholder�organisations�to�promote�

understanding�of�this�important�issue,�to�ensure�that�the�Holocaust,�and�other�Genocides,�are�

remembered�through�the�generations.”� 
�
�

                                                 
8�Question�2015/1948,�Mayor’s�Question�Time,�17.06.15�

Page 73



        

3.9 The�following�motion�has�been�proposed�in�the�name�of�Fiona
Twycross
AM�and�will�be�seconded�

by�Andrew�Dismore�AM:�

�

“Trade�unions�play�an�important�role�in�reducing�inequality9.�Given�London’s�status�as�one�of�the�

most�unequal�cities�in�the�industrialised�world10,�this�Assembly�believes�the�Trade�Union�Bill�2015-16�

is�an�attempt�to�militate�against�the�economic�interests�of�hardworking�Londoners,�including�officers�

of�the�Greater�London�Authority,�by�discouraging�trade�union�membership.�

�

This�Assembly�believes�the�Trade�Union�Bill�will�seek�to�undermine�trade�union�membership�in�the�

following�ways:�

��

Turnout�Restrictions�

�

Strike�action�is�always�a�last�resort,�but�the�Government’s�aim�that�50%�of�members�must�turn�out�

to�vote�and�40%�of�the�entire�membership�must�vote�in�favour�(that�amounts�to�80%�of�those�

voting,�on�a�50%�turnout)11�in�‘important�public�services’,�represents�an�attack�on�the�democratic�

rights�of�workers�in�London,�such�as�those�working�for�TfL�and�for�the�London�Fire�Brigade.�

�

The�Government’s�refusal�to�allow�secure�online�balloting12�of�the�kind�used�to�select�the�

Conservative�Party�candidate�for�the�2016�London�Mayoral�Election,�and�which�could�potentially�

increase�turnout,�suggests�that�the�primary�motivation�for�the�Trade�Union�Bill�is�to�reduce�the�

scope�for�unions�to�represent�the�interests�of�workers.��

�

Surveillance�of�Trade�Union�Members�

�

The�London�Assembly�believes�draconian�measures�seeking�the�names�of�pickets�and�restrictions�on�

social�media�usage�are�an�attack�on�fundamental�human�rights13.�Oversight�of�such�matters�would�

place�costly�demands�on�the�Metropolitan�Police�Service�risk�the�independence�of�policing�in�the�

capital.��

�

Steve�White,�the�chair�of�the�Police�Federation�of�England�and�Wales,�recently�informed�MPs�that�

the�surveillance�of�trade�unionists�proposed�by�the�bill:�

�

“would�be�such�a�massively�complex�operation�and�from�the�police�point�of�a�view�a�dangerous�road�

to�go�down…It�would�be�a�travesty�if�the�police�went�back�to�the�days�of�the�70s�or�the�80s�when�

the�police�were�seen�as�an�arm�of�a�state.”14�

��

Use�of�Agency�Workers�

�

The�London�Assembly�is�further�concerned�that�allowing�the�use�of�agency�workers�to�‘break’�

strikes15�will�lead�to�staff�carrying�out�work�they�are�not�trained�for,�potentially�lead�to�unsafe�

                                                 
9�Dr�Lydia�Hayes�and�Professor�Tonia�Novitz�(2014),�Trade�Unions�and�Economic�Inequality�
10�Randeep�Ramesh,�London's�richest�people�worth�273�times�more�than�the�poorest,�Guardian,�21.04.10�
11�Trades�Union�Congress,�About�the�Trade�Union�Bill�
12�Trades�Union�Congress,�TUC�slams�Conservative�"hypocrisy"�over�use�of�online�balloting�for�London�Mayoral�selection,�02.10.15�
13�Article�23(4)�of�The�Universal�Declaration�Human�Rights�–�“Everyone�has�the�right�to�form�and�to�join�trade�unions�for�the�
protection�of�his�interests.”�
14�Patrick�Wintour,�Trade�union�bill:�police�‘dread�and�fear’�social�media�plan,�Guardian,�15.10.15 
15�Frances�O’Grady,�The�Trade�Union�Bill�is�coming�–�here's�what�it�threatens,�The�Independent,�16.10.15�

Page 74



        

workplaces�and�services,�and�undermine�good�working�relationships.�Such�practices�could�also�have�

an�impact�of�the�effective�functioning�of�London’s�transport�network.�

��

Facility�Time�and�Member�Subscriptions�

�

This�Assembly�believes�that�facility�time�arrangements�for�local�trade�union�representatives�and�the�

deduction�of�subscriptions�through�payroll�are�matters�for�negotiation�between�employers,�such�as�

individual�members�of�the�GLA�family,�and�recognised�trade�unions,�which�form�the�basis�of�good�

employee�relations.��

�

Given�the�concerns�expressed�and�that,�despite�the�Bill’s�potentially�negative�impact�on�workers�in�

the�capital,�the�Mayor�has�expressed�‘passionate�support’�for�the�proposed�legislation�16,�this�

Assembly�believes�that�

�

Ø If�enacted,�the�Trade�Union�Bill�2015-16�could�discourage�trade�union�membership,�

undermining�the�important�role�trade�unions�play�in�addressing�economic�inequality�in�

the�capital;�and�

�

Ø This�would�impact�upon�the�principle�duty�of�the�Greater�London�Authority�to�promote�

economic�development�and�wealth�creation�in�Greater�London.�

�

The�Assembly�requests�that�the�Chair�of�the�Assembly�writes�to�the�Mayor�of�London�to�convey�

these�concerns.”�

�
�
�
�

�
List
of
appendices
to
this
report:
None.�

�

Local
Government
(Access
to
Information)
Act
1985


List�of�Background�Papers:�None.�

�

Contact�Officer:� John�Barry,�Principal�Committee�Manager�
Telephone:� 020�7983�4425�

Email:� john.barry@london.gov.uk�




                                                 
16�Boris�Johnson,�If�Jeremy�Corbyn�honestly�cares�about�the�workers,�he’ll�back�trade�union�reform,�Daily�Telegraph,�13.09.15�

Page 75



Page 76

This page is intentionally left blank



 

                                                                    

�
City�Hall,�The�Queen’s�Walk,�London�SE1�2AA�
Enquiries:
020
7983
4100
minicom:
020
7983
4458
www.london.gov.uk




 

Subject:�Statutory
Officers’
Protocol�


Report
to:
 London
Assembly
(Plenary)




Report
of:

Head
of
Paid
Service

 



Date:
4
November
2015


This
report
will
be
considered
in
public�
 





1.
 Summary




1.1 The�report�sets�out�details�of�proposed�revisions�to�the�Statutory�Officers’�Staffing�Protocol.��





2.
 Recommendation�

�

2.1 That
the
Assembly
agrees
to
approve
and
adopt
(noting
that
it
is
a
joint
decision
with
the


Mayor)
the
revisions
to
the
Statutory
Officers
Staffing
Protocol,
attached
at
Appendix
A


to
the
report.








3.
 Background



�

3.1 At�its�meeting�on�11�Nov�2009,�the�Assembly�agreed�to�approve�and�adopt�(noting�that�it�was�a�

joint�decision�with�the�Mayor)�a�staffing�protocol�in�respect�of�the�three�Statutory�Officers:�the�Head�

of�Paid�Service;�the�Chief�Finance�Officer;�and�the�Monitoring�Officer.��

�

3.2 On�28�January�2015�the�Assembly�and�the�Mayor�agreed�some�minor�revisions�to�the�protocol.��

�

3.3 Subsequent�to�that�the�Local�Authorities�(Standing�Orders)�(England)�(Amendment)�Regulations�

2015�amended�the�Local�Authorities�(Standing�Orders)�(England)�Regulations�2001�and�created�a�

new�procedure�for�dismissing�statutory�officers.��

�

�

4.
 Issues
for
Consideration�

�

4.1 The�amendments�to�the�protocol�are�contained�within�Appendix�2�of�the�protocol;�the�main�changes�

are�as�follows:�

• The�designated�independent�person�is�no�longer�responsible�for�conducting�an�independent�

investigation.�Instead�a�panel�appointed�by�the�Authority,�consisting�of�the�Mayor,�Assembly�

Members�and�at�least�two�Independent�Persons�must�meet�for�the�purposes�of�advising�the�

Authority�on�matters�relating�to�the�dismissal�of�the�statutory�officers�of�the�authority;��

Agenda Item 9

Page 77



        

• The�Panel�must�be�appointed�at�least�20�working�days�before�there�is�a�meeting�of�the�authority�

to�consider,�and�decide�by�voting,�whether�or�not�to�approve�a�proposal�to�dismiss;��

• The��meeting�of�the�Authority�must,�before�voting�on�the�proposals�for�dismissal,�take�into�

account�(i)�any�advice,�views�or�recommendations�of�the�Panel;�(ii)�the�conclusions�of�any�

investigation�into�the�proposed�dismissal;�and�(iii)�any�representations�from�the�relevant�

statutory�officer.��

�

4.2� Statutory�Officers�and�Unison�have�been�consulted�on�the�protocol.�

�

�

5.
 Legal
Implications




5.1 The�Assembly�has�the�power�to�do�what�is�set�out�in�this�report.�

�

5.2 The�relevant�law�relating�to�this�matter�is�referred�to�above,�and�in�the�amended�protocol.���







6.
 Financial
Implications

�

6.1 There�are�no�direct�financial�implications�arising�from�this�report.�

�

�

List
of
appendices
to
this
report:

�
Appendix�A�–��Revised�Statutory�Officers’�Protocol�
�
�

Local
Government
(Access
to
Information)
Act
1985


List�of�Background�Papers:�

None�
�

Contact�Officer:�Juliette�Carter,�Assistant�Director�HR�and�OD�

Telephone:�020�7983�4194�
E-mail:�Juliette.carter@london.gov.uk�

�

�
�

�

�
�

�

�
�

�

�

Page 78



 

                                                                     

�
City�Hall,�The�Queen’s�Walk,�London�SE1�2AA�
Enquiries:
020
7983
4100
minicom:
020
7983
4458
www.london.gov.uk


 

Appendix A 
�




Statutory
Officers
–
Staffing
Protocol





1.

 The
Statutory
Officers



1.1� Under�the�GLA�Act�1999�(as�amended)1�the�Authority�is�required�to�have�“statutory�officers”�

mentioned�in�paragraph�1.2�below.��References�in�this�document�to�the�“staffing�committee”�are�to�
the�Assembly’s�Oversight�Committee�unless�the�Assembly�authorises�another�committee�to�exercise�
those�functions.��

�
1.2� These�are�the:��

• Head�of�Paid�Service2;��

• Chief�Finance�Officer3;�and�

• Monitoring�Officer4.�
�
1.3� The�statutory�functions�exercisable�by�these�officers�are�listed�in�Part�I�of�Appendix�1�to�this�

document.�Statutory�functions�exercisable�by�officers�other�than�the�statutory�officers�are�listed�in�
Part�II�of�Appendix�1.��



2.
 Appointment
(Designation)
without
an
external
recruitment
and
selection
process



2.1� The�Mayor�and�the�Assembly�acting�jointly�may�attribute�the�function/role�of�a�statutory�officer�to�an�

existing�post�occupied�by�an�existing�member�of�staff�(and�therefore�designate�that�postholder�as�a�
statutory�officer),�without�following�an�external�recruitment�and�selection�process�(in�which�case�
sections�3�and�4�of�this�protocol�do�not�need�to�be�followed)5.��

�
2.2� However,�in�these�circumstances,�the�Assistant�Director�of�Human�Resources�and�Organisational�

Development�should,�where�appropriate,�seek�expressions�of�interest�from�appropriately�senior�and�
experienced�officers/postholders�as�to�their�posts�being�attributed�with�the�function�of�statutory�
officer,�and�in�the�event�that�there�is:�

(i) Only�one�suitable�expression�of�interest,�the�that�postholder�may�be�permanently�designated�
as�a�statutory�officer�if�the�Mayor�and�the�Assembly�agree�to�the�designation�and�its�terms�and�
conditions;�or�

� (ii)� More�than�one�suitable�expression�of�interest,�an�appropriate�selection�and�appointment�
process�shall�be�determined�by�the�Mayor�and�the�Assembly’s�staffing�committee�acting�
jointly6.����





                                                 
1�All�references�to�the�GLA�Act�1999�(as�amended)�are�references�to�the�1999�Act�as�amended�by�the�GLA�Act�2007.�� 
2�Required�under�the�GLA�Act�1999�(as�amended)�s�72(1) 
3�Required�under�the�GLA�Act�1999�(as�amended)�s�127�and�127A� 
4�Required�under�the�GLA�Act�1999�(as�amended)�s�73�(1) 
5�This�is�provided�for�in�the�Local�Authorities�(Standing�Orders)�Regulations�1993/202 
6�Note�that,�whilst�the�Assembly’s�staffing�committee�can�determine�this,�the�full�Assembly�must�take�any�decision�to�appoint,�
and�any�decision�relating�to�the�terms�and�conditions�of�the�appointment.� 

Page 79



        



3.
 External
Recruitment
and
Shortlisting
of
the
Statutory
Officers


�
3.1� Where�it�is�not�proposed�or�possible�to�designate�a�statutory�officer�in�accordance�with�2.1�above,�a�

recruitment�and�selection�process�must�be�followed�and�the�Assistant�Director�of�Human�Resources�
and�Organisational�Development�shall7:��

a. Draw�up�a�job�description�and�person�specification�which�sets�out:�

(i) The�duties�and�accountabilities�of�the�officer�concerned;�and��

(ii) Any�qualifications,�skills�and�experience�required;��

b. Make�arrangements�for�a�copy�of�the�documents�mentioned�at�(a)�above�to�be�sent�to�any�
person�on�request;��and��

c. Make�arrangements�for�the�post�to�be�brought�to�the�attention�of�persons�who�are�qualified�to�
apply�for�it�(i.e.�through�an�advertising�and/�or�search�process).����

�
3.2� Where�a�post�has�been�advertised�as�set�out�in�3.1�above,�the�Mayor�and�the�Assembly�(through�its�

staffing�committee)�shall�approve�the�arrangements�for�the�selection�of�a�shortlist�of�such�qualified�
applicants�to�be�interviewed�in�accordance�with�section�4�of�this�protocol�below.��

�
3.3� Where�no�qualified�person�has�applied,�the�Assistant�Director�of�Human�Resources�and�Organisational�

Development�shall�make�further�arrangements�for�advertisement�in�accordance�with�paragraph�3.1�
above.��

�
�
4.

 Appointment
of
the
Statutory
Officers

�
4.1� The�Mayor�and�Assembly�are�required�to�make�appointments�to�these�statutory�officer�posts�acting�

jointly.��
�
4.2 Subject�to�any�express�decision�of�the�Mayor8�and/or�the�Assembly��to�the�contrary,�the�interviews�for�a�

vacant�statutory�officer�post�should�be�conducted�by�the�Mayor�and�Assembly��acting�together�as�one�
panel�and�taking�a�joint�decision�through�the�use�of�one�of�the�following�options�(to�be�determined�by�
the�Mayor9�and�Assembly�as�necessary):��

A. the�Mayor,�and�a�representative�of�his�staff�appointed�under�s�67(1)�of�the�GLA�Act�acting�as�an�
adviser�to�the�Mayor,�and�a�sub-committee�of�the�Assembly’s�staffing�committee,�with�such�
membership�being�politically�proportional�as�per�the�usual�rules�as�to�proportionality;�or��

B. up�to�two�representatives�of�the�Mayor,�who�must�be�staff�appointed�under�s�67(1)�of�the�GLA�
Act,�and�a�sub-committee�of�the�Assembly’s�staffing�committee�(with�membership�as�set�out�in�A.�
above)�

�
WITH�
�
formal�decisions�being�taken�subsequent�to�the�conclusion�of�the�interview�process�by�the�Mayor�
taking�his�decision�on�appointment�and�terms�and�conditions�via�a�Mayoral�Decision�form�(following�a�
recommendation�from�one�of�his�appointees�if�under�option�b),�and�the�Assembly’s�staffing�sub-
committee�making�a�recommendation�to�the�full�Assembly�to�appoint�a�candidate�upon�recommended�
terms�and�conditions.�(In�these�circumstances,�any�offer�of�employment�will�need�to�be�made�
conditional�upon�and�subject�to�the�formal�approval�of�the�Mayor�and�the�Assembly).��

�

                                                 
7�The�following�provisions�incorporate�the�requirements�of�the�Local�Authorities�(Standing�Orders)�Regulations�1993/202 
8�In�respect�of�the�matters�relating�to�the�Mayor�within�this�protocol 
9�With�a�formal�written�delegation�being�made�to�one�of�his�appointees�where�this�is�required�by�any�of�the�options�below 

Page 80



        

4.3� The�Head�of�Paid�Service�will�participate�in�the�interviews�of�candidates�for�the�posts�of�Monitoring�
Officer�and�Chief�Finance�Officer�(in�an�advisory�capacity).��

�
4.4� The�Mayor�and�Assembly�(through�its�staffing�committee)�may�jointly�agree�to�invite�any�external�

persons�to�provide�expert,�independent�advice�to�them�(concurrently)�during�the�recruitment�process�
and/or�at�the�interviews.�

�
4.5� Other�than�in�exceptional�circumstances,�the�composition�of�those�conducting�the�interviews�should�

remain�the�same�for�all�candidates�in�all�rounds�of�interviews�for�a�statutory�officer�vacancy.��
�
4.6� Any�proposed�appointment�will�be�subject�to�references�and�the�Authority’s�usual�pre-employment�

checks.� 
 

 

5.

 Terms
and
Conditions


�

� 5.1� The�Mayor�and�Assembly�are�required,�acting�jointly,�to�determine�the�terms�and�conditions�of�the�
statutory�officers.��

�
5.2� The�full�Assembly�must�decide�any�changes�to�the�statutory�officers’�terms�and�conditions.�
�
5.3� By�adopting�this�document�the�Mayor�and�Assembly�jointly�agree�that,�as�a�matter�of�principle,�terms�

and�conditions�that�apply�to�all�staff�appointed�by�the�Head�of�Paid�Service�10,�should�normally�also�
apply�to�the�statutory�officers.���

�
5.4� To�this�end,�when�the�Head�of�Paid�Service�(HOPS)�consults�with�Mayor�and�the�Assembly’s�staffing�

committee�upon�proposed�changes�to�terms�and�conditions�of�employment�that�apply�to�staff�
appointed�by�the�HOPS,11�the�Mayor�should�be�asked,�and�the�Assembly’s�staffing�committee�should�
also�be�asked�to�recommend�to�the�full�Assembly,�whether�or�not�(upon�the�HOPS�agreeing�to�the�
proposed�changes)�to�apply�the�proposed�change�to�terms�and�conditions�in�respect�of�the�statutory�
officers.���

�
5.5� In�some�circumstances,�however,�and�due�to�the�nature�of�their�offices,�the�statutory�officers�do�need�

to�have�terms�and�conditions�of�employment�that�are�different�to�those�that�apply�to�all�staff�
appointed�by�the�HOPS.�

�
5.6� Such�terms�and�conditions�must�be�approved�by�the�Mayor�and�the�Assembly�acting�jointly,�and�have�

been�so�approved�as�attached�at�Appendices�2-3�to�this�document.���
�

5.7� Before�any�proposals�to�change�the�terms�and�conditions�of�the�statutory�officers�are�submitted�to�the�
Mayor�and�the�Assembly,�the�statutory�officers�themselves�must�be�consulted�on�the�proposals.��



 
6.
 Disciplinary
action
and
investigations




6.1� This�is�dealt�with�at�Appendix�2�to�this�document.��


 
7.
 Dismissal



 
7.1� The�statutory�officers�may�only�be�dismissed�by�the�Mayor�and�the�Assembly�acting�jointly.��

                                                 
10�“Terms�and�conditions”�here�includes�any�employment�protocols�or�policies�that�confer�contractual�rights�upon�all�staff�
appointed�by�the�HOPS.� 
11�Or�proposed�changes�to�employment�protocols�or�policies�that�confer�contractual�rights�upon�all�staff�appointed�by�the�HOPS.� 

Page 81



        

�
7.2� Detailed�procedures�in�respect�of�how�the�statutory�officers�may�be�dismissed�as�a�result�of�

probationary,�disciplinary�or�capability�(excluding�ill�health)�action�are�contained�in�Appendix�2.�
Appendix�3�modifies�the�GLA’s�sickness�policy�and�sets�out�a�procedure�in�respect�of�how�the�
statutory�officers�may�be�dismissed�as�a�result�of�ill�health.���

�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

Page 82



        

APPENDIX
1




PART
I




STATUTORY
OFFICERS
–
STATUTORY
FUNCTIONS�





A.
The
Head
of
Paid
Service




1. Functions�of�the�proper�officer�of�the�Authority�for�the�purposes�of�Parts�I�and�II�of�the�Greater�
London�Authority�Act�1999�(as�amended),�other�than�those�relating�to:�
a) The�functions�of�the�Greater�London�Returning�Officer;�
b) Part�VA�of�the�Local�Government�Act�1972�(access�to�information)�as�applied�to�the�Assembly�

by�Section�58�of�the�GLA�Act�1999�(Openness)�(see�below)�
�
2. Functions�of�the�Authority’s�head�of�paid�service�under�the�Greater�London�Authority�Act�1999.�
�
3. Functions�of�proper�officer�of�the�Authority�for�the�purposes�of�Part�III�of�the�Local�Government�Act�

1974�(local�government�administration)�as�applied�to�the�Authority�by�Section�74�of�the�GLA�Act�
1999.�

�
4. Functions�of�the�proper�officer�of�the�Authority�for�the�purposes�of�Sections�225�(deposit�of�

documents)�and�228�(inspection�of�documents)�of�the�Local�Government�Act�1972�as�applied�to�
the�Authority�by�Section�75�of�the�GLA�Act�1999.�

�
5. Functions�of�head�of�paid�service�under�Part�I�of�the�Local�Government�and�Housing�Act�1989�

generally,�including�under�Section�4�(designation�and�reports�of�head�of�paid�service)�as�applied�to�
the�Authority�by�Section�72�of�the�GLA�Act�1999.�

��
6. Functions�of�the�proper�officer�under�the�Local�Government�and�Housing�Act�1989�generally.�
�
7. The�functions�under�any�other�enactment�(whenever�passed)�of�a�proper�officer�or�responsible�

officer�(or�other�designation�used�in�the�enactment)�as�regards�areas�not�falling�within�paragraphs�
2(d)�and�3(d)�below.�

�
8. The�functions�of�consulting�with�the�Mayor�and�the�Assembly�and�appointing�staff�under�s�67(2)�of�

the�GLA�Act,�and�determining�such�staffs’�terms�and�conditions�of�employment�under�s�70(2)�of�
the�GLA�Act.��� �

�

Page 83



        

�

�
B.
The
Chief
Finance
Officer




9.� � Functions�of�the�chief�finance�officer�responsible�for�the�proper�administration�of�the�financial�

affairs�of�the�authority�under�Section�127(1)�of�the�Greater�London�Authority�Act�1999.�
�
10.� � Functions�of�the�responsible�officer�under�Local�Government�Finance�Act�1988.�
�
11.� � Functions�of�the�proper�officer�under�the�Local�Government�Finance�Act�1988.�
�
12.� � Functions�under�any�other�enactment�(whenever�passed)�of�a�chief�finance�officer,�proper�officer�or�

responsible�officer�(or�other�designation�used�in�the�enactment)�concerning�the�Authority’s�
accounting�practices,�audit�arrangements�or�its�financial�affairs�and�arrangements.��






C.
The
Monitoring
Officer

�
13.� Functions�of�the�monitoring�officer�for�the�Authority�under�Section�5�of�the�Local�Government�and�

Housing�Act�1989.�
�
14.� Functions�of�the�monitoring�officer�under�Part�III�of�the�Local�Government�Act�2000�(as�amended)�

including�the�GLA�Code�of�Conduct,�and�the�Standards�Committee�(England)�Regulations�
2008/1085,�and�any�rules�as�to�the�investigation�and�determination�of�alleged�breaches�of�that�
Code.�

�
15.� Functions�of�the�proper�officer�of�the�Authority�under�Sections�229�(photographic�copies�of�

documents)�and�234�(authentication�of�documents)�of�the�Local�Government�Act�1972�as�applied�to�
the�Authority�by�Section�75�of�the�GLA�Act�1999.��

�
16.� The�functions�under�any�other�enactment�(whenever�passed)�of�a�monitoring�officer,�proper�officer�

or�responsible�officer�(or�other�designation�used�in�the�enactment)�concerning�the�Authority’s�legal�
affairs�and�arrangements,�including�compliance�with�the�law.�

�
�

















Page 84



        

PART
II




 
 OTHER
OFFICERS
–
STATUTORY
FUNCTIONS





�
�

D.
The
Executive
Director
of
Secretariat



22.� Functions�of�proper�officer�of�the�authority�for�the�purposes�of�Part�VA�(Access�to�Meetings�and�

Documents�of�Certain�Authorities,�Committees�and�Sub-Committees)�of�the�Local�Government�Act�
1972�as�applied�to�the�Assembly�by�Section�58�(openness)�of�the�GLA�Act�1999.�

�
23.
 Functions�of�the�proper�officer�under�Sections�15�to�17�(political�balance�on�committees�etc.)�of�the�

Local�Government�and�Housing�Act�1989�including�under�the�Local�Government�(Committees�and�
Political�Groups)�Regulations�1990.��

















 

 

Page 85



        

APPENDIX
2

 

 

Statutory
Officers
–
Performance,
Disciplinary
and
Dismissal
Procedure


�

Only�the�Mayor�and�the�Assembly�acting�jointly�can�authorise�action�being�taken�against�a�statutory�
officer�on�grounds�of�capability�or�misconduct.�

�
A.
Action
short
of
dismissal


�
1.� Action�short�of�dismissal�may�only�be�taken�in�respect�of:��

a) misconduct,�after�the�GLA’s�Disciplinary�Procedure�has�been�complied�with;��
b) capability,�after�the�GLA’s�Capability�Procedure�has�been�complied�with.�

�
2.� In�applying�the�above�procedures,�the�Head�of�Paid�Service�shall�usually�exercise�management�

responsibilities�in�respect�of�the�Monitoring�Officer�and�the�Chief�Finance�Officer�(although,�at�any�
time,�the�Mayor�and�Assembly�acting�jointly,�in�such�manner�as�they�agree,�may�undertake�these�
responsibilities).�

�
3.�� The�Mayor�and�Assembly�acting�jointly�(in�such�manner�as�they�agree)�shall�exercise�management�

responsibilities�under�the�above�procedures�in�respect�of�the�Head�of�Paid�Service.��
�

4.� A�decision�to�take�disciplinary�action,�short�of�dismissal,�against�any�of�the�statutory�officers�in�
connection�with�their�role�as�a�statutory�officer�must�be�taken�by�the�Mayor�and�Assembly�acting�
jointly.��

�

B.
Statutory
Officers’
Dismissal
Procedure


�
5.� This�procedure�applies�where�a�GLA�employee�who�has�been�designated�as�a�statutory�officer�may�

be�dismissed�for�reasons�of�poor�performance�(capability)�or�misconduct12,�whether�in�probationary�
period�or�otherwise.�

�
C.
Procedure


�
6.� Where�there�is�an�allegation�of�poor�performance�or�misconduct�which,�if�proven,�could�result�in�the�

dismissal�of�a�statutory�officer,�the�matter�must�be�referred�to�and�considered�by�a�concurrent�
meeting�of�the�following�(subject�to�any�express�decision�of�the�Mayor�and/or�the�Assembly�to�the�
contrary)�(“The�Panel”):��
a) the�Mayor�and,�if�the�Mayor�so�chooses,�one�of�his/her�staff�appointed�under�section�67(1)�of�

the�GLA�Act,�and��
b) an�advisory�sub-committee�of�the�Assembly�which�is�politically�proportionate�as�per�the�usual�

rules�as�to�proportionality.����
c) two�Independent�Persons13,�who�will�not�have�voting�rights.��

                                                 
12
 The Regulations apply to disciplinary action, which is defined as including “any proposal for dismissal of a member of staff 

for any reason other than redundancy, permanent ill-health or infirmity of body or mind, but does not include failure to renew 

a contract of employment for a fixed term unless the authority has undertaken to renew such a contract.”   
13
 An Independent Person appointed under section 28(7) of the Localism Act (see: the Local Authorities (Standing Orders) 

(England) Regulations 2015/881 Schedule 3 paragraph 1). Independent Persons must be appointed to the sub-committee in the 

following priority order: an independent person who has been appointed by the GLA and who is an elector within Greater 

London; any other independent person appointed by the GLA; or an Independent Person who has been appointed by another 

authority.  Any remuneration, allowances or fees paid by the Authority to an Independent Person appointed to the Panel must 

not exceed the level of remuneration, allowances or fees paid to that person in respect of that person’s role as an independent 

person in relation to the standards regime under Part 1 Chapter 7 of the Localism Act 2011.  

Page 86



        

�
The�Head�of�Paid�Service�should�attend�and�participate�(in�an�advisory�non-voting�capacity)�in�any�
meeting�of�the�Panel�considering�allegations�concerning�the�Chief�Finance�Officer�or�the�Monitoring�
Officer.���

�
7.� Meetings�of�the�Panel�must�be�convened�and�conducted�in�accordance�with�legal�advice.�The�Panel�

may�resolve�to�conduct�its�meeting�in�private�if�it�considers�confidential�or�exempt�information�(as�
defined�in�Part�5A�of�the�Local�Government�Act�1972)�is�likely�to�be�disclosed.��

8.� The�Panel�must�decide�whether�or�not�to�appoint�someone�to�investigate�the�allegation(s)�and,�if�so,�
whom;�and�whether�or�not�to�permit�the�statutory�officer�to�attend�a�meeting�of�the�Panel�and�make�
representations.�

�
9.� The�Panel�must�produce�a�report�(“the�Report”)�containing�the�Panel’s�advice,�views�and�

recommendations�to�the�Authority�on�the�allegations,�and�whether�or�not�the�statutory�officer�
should�be�dismissed.�

�

10.� At�the�next�appropriate�time,�providing�it�is�least�twenty�working�days�after�the�Panel’s�last�meeting,�
the�Authority�must�consider�the�Report;�the�conclusions�of�any�investigation�into�the�proposed�
dismissal;�any�representations�from�the�relevant�officer,�and�decide�whether�or�not�the�statutory�
officer�should�be�dismissed.�

�

11.� The�Authority�must�do�what�is�set�out�in�paragraph�10�above�by�a�concurrent�meeting�of�the�Mayor�
and�the�Assembly,�to�be�convened�and�conducted�in�accordance�with�legal�advice.�The�Mayor�and�
the�Assembly�may�resolve�to�conduct�this�meeting�in�private�if�they�consider�confidential�or�exempt�
information�(as�defined�in�Part�5A�of�the�Local�Government�Act�1972)�is�likely�to�be�disclosed.�

�

12.� The�Authority�may�only�decide�to�dismiss�a�statutory�officer�if�the�Mayor�and�a�majority�of�the�
Assembly�both�agree�to�this.�

�
13.� If�the�Authority�decides�to�dismiss�a�statutory�officer,�notice�of�dismissal�must�be�given�in�

accordance�with�their�terms�and�conditions�of�employment.�

�

�

�

�

�

Page 87



        

APPENDIX
3


�

Statutory
Officers
–
Sickness
Policy

�
�
The�GLA’s�sickness�policy�applies�to�the�statutory�officers�but�with�the�following�modifications:��
�

• All�the�statutory�officers�shall�report�their�sickness�absence�to�their�line�manager.��

• Usually,�the�Head�of�Paid�Service�shall�exercise�management�responsibilities�under�the�procedure�in�
respect�of�the�Monitoring�Officer,�the�Chief�Finance�Officer�(unless�the�Mayor�and�the�Assembly�
acting�jointly�decide�to�exercise�their�powers�in�this�regard).��

• The�Mayor�and�the�Assembly�acting�jointly�(in�such�a�manner�as�they�agree)�shall�exercise�
management�responsibilities�under�the�procedure�in�respect�of�the�Head�of�Paid�Service.��

• Final�formal�interviews�under�the�sickness�policy�should�only�be�conducted�in�respect�of�the�
statutory�officers�strictly�in�relation�to�their�ill�health�(otherwise,�for�matters�of�capability�and�
conduct,�Appendix�2�above�applies).��Prior�to�any�final�formal�interviews,�the�Authority�should�
consider�appointing�an�independent�medical�adviser�(at�its�own�cost),�where�the�medical�opinion�of�
the�statutory�officer’s�medical�adviser�and�the�Authority’s�medical�adviser�are�not�in�agreement.�The�
Mayor�and�Assembly�acting�jointly�(in�such�a�manner�as�they�agree)�will�conduct�and�determine�all�
final�formal�interviews,�and�appeals�against�dismissal,�under�the�sickness�policy�in�respect�of�all�the�
statutory�officers.��

�



�

�

Page 88


	Agenda
	2 Declarations of Interests
	3 Question and Answer Session - London & Partners
	4 Action Taken by the Chair Under Delegated Authority and Outcome of Confirmation Hearings
	Action Taken by the Chair Under Delegated Authority - Appendix 1(a) - Letter from Mayor re LPFA
	Action Taken by the Chair Under Delegated Authority -  Appendix 1(b) Letter from Mayor re LLDC_
	Action Taken by the Chair Under Delegated Authority - Appendix 2 - Letter of recommendation to the Mayor re LPFA
	Action Taken by the Chair Under Delegated Authority - Appendix 3 - Letter from Mayor re LPFA appointment
	Action Taken by the Chair Under Delegated Authority - Appendix 4 - Letter to LPFA Chairman
	Action Taken by the Chair Under Delegated Authority - Appendix 5 - Letter of Recommendation to Mayor re LLDC_
	Action Taken by the Chair Under Delegated Authority  - Appendix 6 - Letter re LLDC appointment

	5 Mayoral Commitments
	Mayoral Commitments - Appendix 1 - Mayor's Commitments Oct 14 - Oct 15

	7 Petitions
	8 Motions
	9 Statutory Officers' Protocol
	Statutory Officers' Protocol -  Appendix A


